
  
 

APOPKA CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
May 18, 2016 7:00 PM 

APOPKA CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
INVOCATION - Pastor James Hicks of Center of Faith Church.  
PLEDGE 
 
Please submit a “Notice of Intent to Speak card” to the City Clerk.  Action may not be taken by the Council at this meeting but questions 

may be answered by staff or issues may be referred for appropriate staff action.  If further action is necessary, the item may be placed 

on the agenda for further review and consideration.  NOTE:  Zoning or code enforcement matters which may be coming before the 

Board at a later date should not be discussed until such time as they come before the Board in a public hearing.  

Pursuant to F.S. 286.0114, members of the public shall be given a reasonable opportunity to be heard on propositions before the City 

Council.  Accordingly, comments, questions, and concerns regarding items listed on this agenda shall be received at the time the City 

Council addresses such items during this meeting.  Public comments are generally limited to four minutes. 

PUBLIC/STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
Proclamations: 

1. National EMS Week Proclamation Mayor Kilsheimer 
 
Presentations: 

1. Special Presentation to Christian Lamphere and Boy Scout Troop 211 Commissioner Velazquez 
 
CONSENT (Action Item) 

1. Approve appointment of Jose Molina to the Planning Commission. 
2. Confirm appointment of Commissioner Dean as alternate to MetroPlan Orlando Board of Directors. 
3. Authorize the purchase of a concrete mixer from Ernest Industries, Inc. 
4. Authorize the change of dealer and additional cost for a vehicle for the Sewer Maintenance Division.   
5. Authorize the purchase and installation of a mast arm traffic signal. 
6. Approve the Sensus Agreement relating to the Automated Meter Reading (AMR) System Upgrade. 
7. Approve the final extensions of the contracts for Geotechnical and Environmental Engineering Services. 
8. Award the perimeter boundary clearing of the Golden Gem property to The Collage Companies. 
9. Award a contract to Dell Financial Services for the lease of Police Department laptops. 

10. Award a contract for CMAR Preconstruction Services to Garney Construction Company. 
11. Award a contract to Florida Community Bank (FCB) for banking services.  

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION (Action Item) 

1. Ordinance 2498 – First Reading – Change of Zoning - Quasi-Judicial David Moon 
 
BUSINESS (Action Item) 

1. Preliminary Development Plan/Development Agreement – Copart, Inc. David Moon 
2. Council 

a. Lake Apopka Natural Gas District board Appointment Letter Vice Mayor Dean 
3. Public 

 
MAYOR’S REPORT 

1. Appointments to Lake Apopka Natural Gas District Board of Commissioners 
 
NOT REQUIRING ACTION 

1. Thank you letter to the City of Apopka from the GFWC Apopka Woman's Club Inc.  
2. Thank you letter to the Police Department from the Kids House Children's Advocacy Center.  
3. Thank you letter to the Community Development Department from Resident.  
4. Thank you card to the City from the Family of the Late Reverend Albert E. Dean 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
MEETINGS AND UPCOMING EVENTS 

Page 1



  
 

DATE TIME EVENT 

May 30, 2016 – Memorial Day Holiday – City Offices Closed 

June 1, 2016   1:30pm – City Council Meeting 

June 2, 2016 5:30pm – 9:00pm Food Truck Round Up 

June 14, 2016 5:30pm – 6:00pm Planning Commission Meeting 

June 15, 2016   7:00pm – Council Meeting 

 
Individuals with disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk at least two (2) working days in 
advance of the meeting date and time at (407) 703-1704.  F.S. 286.0105 If a person decides to appeal any decision or recommendation made by 
Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he will need record of the proceedings, and that for such purposes he may need to ensure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
 
Any opening invocation that is offered before the official start of the Council meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private person, to and for the 
benefit of the Council.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the City Council or 
the city staff, and the City is not allowed by law to endorse the religious or non-religious beliefs or views of such speaker.  Persons in attendance at the 
City Council meeting are invited to stand during the opening ceremony. However, such invitation shall not be construed as a demand, order, or any other 
type of command.  No person in attendance at the meeting shall be required to participate in any opening invocation that is offered or to participate in the 
Pledge of Allegiance.  You may remain seated within the City Council Chambers or exit the City Council Chambers and return upon completion of the 
opening invocation and/or Pledge of Allegiance if you do not wish to participate in or witness the opening invocation and/or the recitation of the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
  

Page 2



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Approve appointment of Jose Molina to the Planning Commission. 
  

Page 3



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: May 18, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:  Mayor Kilsheimer 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS: Resignation Letter of  

       OTHER:        Pam Toler, Board Appointment Form, 

Cover Letter, Resume 
  

 

SUBJECT: APPROVE APPOINTMENT OF JOSE MOLINA TO THE PLANNING 

COMMISSION. 

 

REQUEST: APPROVE APPOINTMENT OF JOSE MOLINA TO THE PLANNING 

COMMISSION FOR THE REMAINDER OF THE THREE (3) YEAR TERM 

ENDING OCTOBER 14, 2017. 
  
SUMMARY:  
 

On, May 12, 2016, Pam Toler submitted her resignation from the Planning Commission effective May 15, 

2016.  Accordingly, Mayor Kilsheimer has appointed Jose Molina, legal resident, to the Planning 

Commission for the three-year term ending October 14, 2017.  Pursuant to §11.05.00 B.1., City of Apopka 

Code of Ordinances, this mayoral appointment requires approval by City Council. 
  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve appointment of Jose Molina to Planning Commission for the three-year term ending October 14, 

2017. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

Page 4



 

Page 5



Page 6



 

Page 7



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Confirm appointment of Commissioner Dean as alternate to MetroPlan Orlando Board of Directors. 
  

Page 8



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: May 18, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:  Mayor Kilsheimer 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS: MetroPlan Orlando  

       OTHER:        Internal Operating Procedures 
  

 

SUBJECT: APPOINTMENT OF ALTERNATE TO METROPLAN ORLANDO BOARD. 

 

REQUEST: CONFIRM APPOINTMENT OF COMMISSIONER DEAN AS AN ALTERNATE 

TO THE METROPLAN ORLANDO BOARD OF DIRECTORS. 
  
SUMMARY:  
 

Currently, Mayor Kilsheimer sits on the Board of Directors of MetroPlan Orlando as a member who is a 

representative of the Office of Mayor of the City of Apopka.  Pursuant to III.(3.), MetroPlan Orlando 

Internal Operating Procedures, “A MetroPlan Orlando member entity may appoint, by action taken at an 

official meeting of the entity, an alternate for one or more of its appointed MetroPlan Orlando members.”  

Mayor Kilsheimer, in accordance with the applicable MetroPlan Orlando Internal Operating Procedures, 

Florida Laws and Charter of the City of Apopka, requests a vote by council to confirm appointment of 

Commissioner Billie Dean as an alternate to the MetroPlan Orlando Board of Directors. 
  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A   
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 

Confirm appointment of Commissioner Billie Dean as an alternate to the MetroPlan Orlando Board of 

Directors. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. Authorize the purchase of a concrete mixer from Ernest Industries, Inc. 
  

Page 66



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: May 18, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:             Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       

       OTHER 
  

 

SUBJECT: PURCHASE OF ONE CUBIC YARD CONCRETE MIXER FOR THE STREETS 

DIVISION 
  

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE THE PURCHASE OF ONE SHORTSTOP #1 MIXER A ONE(1) CUBIC 

YARD CONCRETE MIXER FROM ERNEST INDUSTRIES, INC., IN THE AMOUNT 

OF $18,750 WHICH INCLUDES SHIPPING 

 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

The purchase of a one cubic yard (cy) concrete mixer for the Streets Division to fill the growing 

requirement of repairing City sidewalks, curbs, and driveways.  The price quote for the concrete mixer is 

as follows: 

 

Company Product Price Shipping Total 

Ernest Industries, Inc. Shortstop #1 Mixer 1 cy $16,750 $2,000 $18,750 

Cart-Away Concrete Systems, Inc. CMT-100 Concrete Mixer1 cy $17,950 $2,591 $20,541 

Right Manufacturing Systems, Inc. 2DH-Concrete Mixer, 1.25 cy $19,500 $3,000 $22,500 

 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

The $16,750 is included in the General Fund – Streets Division FY16 Budget and the $2,000 shipping 

cost can be transferred from the Repair and Maintenance budget line.    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the purchase of one Shortstop #1 Mixer, one cubic yard concrete mixer from Ernest Industries, 

Inc., in the amount of $18,750, which includes shipping. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director   

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

 

Page 67



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. Authorize the change of dealer and additional cost for a vehicle for the Sewer Maintenance Division.   
  

Page 68



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: May 18, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:             Administration 

      SPECIAL REPORTS           EXHIBITS:      FSA Bid Announcement 

       OTHER                 Mullinax RFP 

                   Alan Jay Quotes (3) 
  

 

SUBJECT: NEW VEHICLE FOR THE PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT: WASTEWATER 

MAINTENANCE F-550 
  

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE THE CHANGE OF DEALER TO ALAN JAY FORD AND 

ADDITIONAL COST FOR THE F-550 FOR THE SEWER MAINTENANCE 

DIVISION. 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

On March 16, 2016, the City Council approved the purchase of a 2016 Ford F-550, for the Wastewater 

Maintenance Division, from Mullinax for $51,667.10.  When the City submitted an order to Mullinax for 

the vehicle, it was discovered that the model build date had already expired.  Normally in this circumstance, 

Ford would have issued the dealer a letter stating that they would absorb any cost increase.  However, since 

the body style of the 2017 Ford F-550 model is going to be completely changed, Ford would not honor the 

pricing from the previous model year.   

 

The original staff report indicated the following pricing for the 2016 Ford F-550: Mullinax at $51,667.10 

and Allan Jay Ford at $52,766.95, the award subsequently went to Mullinax at the lower amount.  The 

updated 2017 Ford F-550, from Ford, straight pricing (non-contract pricing) at Mullinax is priced at 

$54,934.00 and Alan Jay Ford at $ 58,591.95.  Due to the complete body change of the 2017 Ford F-550 

the vehicle will not be available until the last quarter (October-December) of 2017.  Considering the 

condition and unreliability of the current vehicle in use at the Wastewater Maintenance Division, the City 

requested both auto dealers to search for an available 2016 Ford F-550.  Mullinax could not locate any 

comparable 2016 Ford F-550 vehicles available.  Alan Jay Ford has located a 2016 Ford F-550 that is now 

available due to a customer canceling their order.  The vehicle is priced at $54,830.95, which is $3,163.85 

above what was originally approved at the City Council meeting on March 16, 2016.  The elevated price is 

the result of the options chosen by the original customer who ordered the vehicle.  The options are as 

follows: rear traction with all season terrain tread tires, 19,500lb payload upgrade package, chrome bumper, 

hub covers, center ornaments, MP3, cruise control, engine block heater, and daytime running lamps.  While 

not all of these options are required for the City’s use, it does have all the features that the City needs.  Alan 

Jay Ford has agreed to place a hold on this vehicle to allow time for the City Council to approve the purchase 

of the vehicle. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Funding is included in the General Fund FY16 Budget for $$52,450 Wastewater Maintenance Division, 

and the additional $700 cost can be transferred from the Repair and Maintenance budget line.    Page 69



RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the purchase of a 2016 Ford F-550 from Alan Jay Ford for $54,830.95 (a difference of 

$3,163.85 from the originally approved amount on March 16, 2016) for the Sewer Maintenance Division. 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director   

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

Page 70



BID AWARD 
ANNOUNCEMENT 

15-13-0904
 
 

Effective Dates:
October 1, 2015– September 30, 2016 

Cab & Chassis Trucks 
 & Other Fleet Equipment 

Participating Sheriffs Offices & Local Governmental 
Agencies of the State of Florida 

Coordinated By 

The 
Florida Sheriffs Association 

& Florida Association of Counties 

Bid Award Announcement 15-13-0904 1

Page 71



MEMO 
FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION 
P. O. Box 12519 • Tallahassee, FL 32317-2519 
PHONE (850) 877-2165 • FAX (850) 878-8665 
WEB SITE: www.flsheriffs.org 

DATE: October 3, 2015 

TO: ALL PROSPECTIVE PARTICIPANTS 

FROM: Steve Casey

Executive Director 

Drew Terpak 

RE: Cab & Chassis Trucks  & Other Fleet Equipment Bid Number:15-13-0904

We are pleased to announce that the Florida Sheriffs Association and the Florida Association of 
Counties has successfully conducted its 13th statewide competitive bid for vehicles which includes 
trucks, backhoes, motorgraders, agriculture type tractors, skid steer loaders, street 
sweepers, generators, and light towers. This contract is effective beginning October 1, 2015 
through September 30, 2016, as long as vehicles are available through fleet. 

Bids will be extended and guaranteed to any and all units of local governments/political 
subdivisions including but not limited to county, local county board of public instruction, 
municipalities and/or police agencies, other local public or public safety agencies or authorities 
within the State of Florida, and the state universities and colleges. In addition, bids will be extended 
and guaranteed to any other entities approved by manufacturers to participate in this contract. The 
participating agencies cannot guarantee any order other than those ordered through each individual 
agency.

In order to ensure quality service for our user agencies, we are requesting each of you to notify 
the Florida Sheriffs Association regarding any problems encountered in working with the awarded 
dealers. Any issues, including but not limited to, receipt of confirmation of order, delivery problems 
and communication problems, should be reported to us by e-mail at fleet@flsheriffs.org. This 
information will be considered in future bid awards in order to ensure that agencies are receiving the 
level of service required of dealers who wish to participate in this program. 

All interested parties who wish to purchase from this contract may do so by 
following these simple procedures: 

1. Contact the awarded dealership listed in the zone from which you wish to purchase and advise 
them of your interest to purchase from Bid No. 15-13-0904. They will assist you with the 
placement of your order and answer any questions you may have regarding the

Peggy Goff 

Deputy Executive 
Director

Business Operations 
Manager 

Annette Grissom

Cooperative Bid 
Coordinator

ORDERING INSTRUCTIONS 

Bid Award Announcement 15-13-0904 2

Page 72



vehicles purchased through this program. You can only purchase from a dealer who is listed 
as a winner of one of the four zones for the vehicle you wish to purchase.  However, you 
may purchase from any awarded dealer within any zone (additional delivery fees may 
apply). 

Agencies ordering a Ford, General Motors, Chysler, or Toyota product, please be advised that you 
must use the appropriate FIN Code/FAN Code for the Florida Sheriffs Association in order to 
obtain the manufacturer’s concessions. Also, you must use your FIN Code/FAN Code as a 
secondary number. For further assistance call the Fleet Customer Information Center for your 
appropriate manufacturer. 

Manufacturer Type Code FSA Code Fleet Center Contact Numbers 
Ford FIN Code QE065 1-800-34-FLEET (1-800-343-5338) 

General Motors   FAN Code 917872 

Chrysler FAN Code 48830

Toyota FIN Code GE159 

1-800-FLEET OP     (1-800-353-3867)  

2. You must send a copy of the original purchase order (including FSA’s Contract No.
15-13-0904) submitted to the participating dealer electronically to: COOP@flsheriffs.org

3. Basic information required on all purchase orders is listed in this Bid Award Announcement.
Purchase orders lacking the required basic information listed may result in the delay of
placement and/or confirmation of orders. NOTE: The agency is responsible for obtaining a
“Confirmation of Order” from the respective dealership. Dealers are required to complete a
“Confirmation of Order” and send it to the purchaser within fourteen (14) calendar days after
receipt of purchase order. Purchasers are encouraged to contact the dealer if a “Confirmation of
Order” has not been received within a reasonable time.

Purchasers are reminded that the issuance of a purchase order does not in itself guarantee the
placement of an order.

4. All Cooperative Contracts include an administratrive fee of .0075 or three quarters of one percent. 
The base price  and all add options are inclusive of the administrative fee.

• Cab & Chassis Trucks & Other Fleet Equipment – Dealers have included a three-quarter
of one percent (.0075) administrative fee in the base price and all add options that are listed.
The three quarters of one percent (.0075) will also be included in any additional equipment
(add options) the dealers quote to the governmental agencies.

5. In order to ensure quality service for our user agencies, we are requesting that you notify the
Florida Sheriffs Association regarding any problems encountered in working with the awarded
dealers. Any issues, including but not limited to, receipt of confirmation of order, delivery
problems and communication problems, should be reported to us by e-mail at
FLEET@flsheriffs.org. This information will be considered in future bid awards in order to ensure
that agencies are receiving the level of service required of dealers who wish to participate in this
program.

6. Add/delete options might include a superscript listed by the Order Code. The purpose of the
superscript is to identify which options correlate to a specific dealer. Superscripts will be a number
between 1 and 4, and will correspond as follows:

1 = Western zone dealer

1-800-732-2798

1-800-999-FLEET    (1-800-999-3533)

2 = Northern zone dealer

3 = Central zone dealer

4 = Southern zone dealer

Bid Award Announcement 15-13-0904 3

Page 73



If a dealer has been awarded more than one zone, they will only have one superscript 
number assigned, and it will be the lowest numerical number that applies to their awarded 
zones. For example, if a dealer is awarded the northern and southern zones, their add/delete 
options for both zones will be represented by a “2” superscript. 

Options are intended to add or delete equipment and/or features from the base vehicle 
specification, and to allow for an upgrade or downgrade to a manufacturer’s model with a 
slightly different engine size or horsepower, and as such, will not be made available for 
purchase separate from the base vehicle. 

Bid Award Announcement 15-13-0904 4

Page 74



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  

Contract Terms and Conditions Rev 8/236/14Rev 07/27/15 
 

REV			0807/2127/2014		2015			

	 Page	37	
 

All terms and conditions are applicable throughout the term of the contract and not any given “Year, Make 
or Model”. 
 
Schedule of Fines – The list of fines are a minimum result of non‐compliance.   
Failure to submit monthly report on time………………………………………………………..………….….… $25.00 per day 
Lost Purchase Order*s (PO) – 1st Offense ……………............................................................................ $100.00 
per P.O. 
Lost Purchase Order* (PO) – 2rd Offense ………………….……………………………………………...…. $250.00 per Vehicle 
Lost Purchase Order* (PO) – 3rd Offense will result in removal from the contract. 
Failure to place order within ten (10) business days…….……………………………………………….…..$100.00 per day 
Failure to issue acknowledgment of Purchase Order to Agency and/or FSA within the 14 calendar days as 
per 3.54 of the terms and conditions………..…………………………………………………….……………… $100.00 per P.O. 
Failure to Report Sales ……………………………….……. .0075 plus 1.5% each month following the delivery date. 
*Each report of a lost purchase order will be handled on a case by case basis.  REV 6/14 




Line Item 3.22 to 3.50  Not Assigned  
 
 
3.51  FACTORY INSTALLED 
 

Aftermarket  parts, modifications  and  factory  produced  parts  and  components  ordered  as  parts  and 
installed by the dealer, or a Contractor, do not meet the requirements of “Factory Installed” components, 
and will be rejected for noncompliance with the requirements of the specification.   

 
In  the event a component(s) that does not meet the specifications  is  found  to be  installed on a vehicle 
before or after the vehicle has been accepted by the customer, the Contractor shall be required to replace 
the  vehicle with a  vehicle  that meets  the  required  specifications,  INCLUDING ALL  FACTORY  INSTALLED 
COMPONENTS.  In  the  alternative,  the  customer  shall  decide whether  they will  accept dealer  installed 
components.   
 
 
 
 
 

3.52  EQUITABLE ADJUSTMENT 
 

The Contract Administrator may make an equitable adjustment  in  the  contract  terms or pricing  in  the 
contract  at  its  discretion.    Adjustments  to  pricing may  occur  for  various  reasons,  such  as  pricing  or 
availability  of  supply  (i.e. material  surcharge)  is  affected  by  extreme  and  unforeseen  volatility  in  the 
marketplace, that is, by circumstances that satisfy all the following criteria: (1) the volatility is due to causes 
wholly beyond the contractor’s control, (2) the volatility affects the marketplace or industry,  not just the 
particular contract source of supply, (3) the effect on pricing or availability of supply is substantial, and (4) 
the  volatility  so  affects  the  contractor  that  continued  performance  of  the  contract would  result  in  a 
substantial loss. 

 
When  requesting  an  adjustment,  including  but  not  limited  to  price  increases,  the  following must  be 
submitted to the Contract Administrator: 

 

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Page 75



FLORIDA SHERIFFS ASSOCIATION  

Contract Terms and Conditions Rev 8/236/14Rev 07/27/15 
 

REV			0807/2127/2014		2015			

	 Page	38	
 

•  A letter of request from the contractor, including the specification number and model listed in the 
contract, along with the requested changes; 

•  When requested adjustment is based on production cutoff of a currently listed model, a letter of 
affirmation from the manufacturer; 

•  When  requested adjustment  includes model  changes, manufacturer’s documentation of  items 
included in the proposed model in order to determine that the proposed model meets the base 
specification; 

  •  Currently published MSRP Listing  
 
 
 
3.53  PRE‐DELIVERY SERVICES 
 

Bidder’s attention is directed to the pre‐delivery service requirements as detailed. To assure proper pre‐
delivery service, the contractor shall provide, at time of delivery, a completed copy of the manufacturer’s 
standard retail sale pre‐delivery inspection form (examples are listed below). 
 

o CHRYSLER NEW PREPARATION, INSPECTION AND ROAD TEST 
o FORD PRE‐DELIVERY SERVICE RECORD 
o GM NEW VEHICLE INSPECTION PROCEDURE 

    (orOr manufacturer’s latest pre‐delivery form) 
  
3.54  ORDER, DELIVERY AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES REV 6/14 
 
  A.  Order 
 

1) Eligible customers shall  issue a purchase order to the contractor, and such purchase order shall 
bear the contract or bid number, specification number, customer’s federal identification number 
and  contact  information  (phone  number  and  email  address)  shall  be  placed  by  the  customer 
directly with the contractor, and shall be deemed to  incorporate the contract solicitation terms 
and conditions.  Required delivery or due dates should be discussed with the dealer at the time of 
the quote. It is important to note that dealers do not have ANY control over production delays in 
schedules from the manufacturer.   

 
While  it  is recommended  that  the agency purchase  from  the “region” which  is closest  to  their 
location, it is not mandatory to do so, however, ordering from outside the local region may result 
in additional cost for delivery. 
 
 

2) Purchasing agency is required to forward an executed copy of the purchase order to the Florida 
Sheriffs Association Cooperative Bid Coordinator (by email, fax or hard copy) at the same time the 
purchase order is released to the contractor. 
 

3) If a contractor receives a purchase order for a specification for which they were not awarded, the 
contractor must notify the customer and return the purchase order to the customer within three 
(3) business days. 

 
4) Contractor shall state  in space provided on each price sheet the approximate time required for 

delivery after receipt of purchase order.  See contractor limitations noted in 3.54 A.1. 
 

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Page 76



Page 77



NJPA-APOPKA, CITY OF-F5G_6923-2

1

PHONE (800) ALANJAY (252-6529) DIRECT 863-402-4234 WWW.ALANJAY.COM Quote: 6923-2
Corporate 2003 U.S. 27 South MOBILE 863-381-3411 Mailing P.O. BOX 9200

Office Sebring, FL 33870 FAX 863-402-4221 Address Sebring, FL 33871-9200

PAGE 1 of 1

REQUESTING AGENCY: APOPKA, CITY OF
ORIGINAL QUOTE DATE: 5/10/2016 REVISED QUOTE DATE: 5/10/2016
CONTACT PERSON: JOSEPH ROUTT QUOTED BY Chris Wilson
PHONE NUMBER: 407-703-1724 --
FAX NUMBER: -- EMAIL Jroutt@apopka.net

MODEL: MSRP:

CUSTOMER ID:
84" CA NJPA PRICE:

**All vehicles will be ordered white w/ darkest interior unless Clearly stated otherwise on purchase order.
FACTORY OPTIONS DESCRIPTION

Z1 AS

99T 44W
REG 165
52B
X4N
62R
59H
CPO

FACTORY OPTIONS
CONTRACT OPTIONS DESCRIPTION

K6132DL-30J

CLVWC
TAG

Warranty

CONTRACT OPTIONS TOTAL
NON-IDENTIFIED CONTRACT OPTIONS DESCRIPTION
GPC

NON-IDENTIFIED CONTRACT OPTIONS TOTAL

TOTAL COST $58,591.95
TRADE IN

$0.00

TOTAL COST LESS TRADE IN(S): QTY 1 = $58,591.95

Comments:

VEHICLE QUOTED BY: Chris Wilson FLEET SALES MANAGER chris.wilson@alanjay.com

$50,200.00

I appreciate the opportunity to submit this quotation. Please review if carefully.  If there are any errors of changes, please feel free to contact me at any time.  I am always happy to be of 

Call Us first , for all of your Fleet Automotive, & Light Truck needs.

F5G

BED LENGTH $45,047.00

QUICK QUOTE SHEET

NATIONAL JOINT POWERS ALLIANCE BID # 2017-102811                   WWW.NATIONALAUTOFLEETGROUP.COM

GOVERNMENT PRICE CONCESSION

$0.00

$16,544.95

($3,000.00)

$15,539.00

2016 FORD F-550 REG CAB CHASSIS 2WD DRW

EXTERIOR COLOR OXFORD WHITE WITH STEEL VINYL INTERIOR 40/20/40 SPLIT FRONT BENCH. $0.00

11' Knapheide 30K Crane Body (for 5K crane)**KNAPHEIDE  incl. Standard Shelving, 12" Bumper & Manual 
Crank Outriggers.** //All Include FHSMV required chassis certification & manufacturer required PDI as 
"completed vehicle".

6.7L 32V POWER STROKE V8 DIESEL W/ 6 SPD HD AUTOMATIC TRANSMISSION (STD ON F-450 & F-
550 CAB CHASSIS). $0.00
84" CAB TO AXLE ON REGULAR CAB. $0.00
ELECTRIC BRAKE CONTROLLER $0.00
4.10 LIMITED SLIP REAR DIFFERENTIAL $0.00
PTO PROVISION $0.00

UTILITIES

CENTER HIGH MOUNT STOP LAMP (CHSML)

"I Want to be Your  Fleet Provider"

(NJPA ALLOWS FOR INCLUSION OF ALL AVAILABLE OPTIONS)

YES WE TAKE TRADE INS  ~~~  ASK ABOUT MUNICIPAL FINANCING ~~~

$0.00
SEE ATTACHED PRINT OUT FOR COMPLETE VEHICLE DETAILS $0.00

HD Class V Titan 2.5" Receiver, 7 Pin Wire Harness, Solid Steel Shank Draw Bar, 2 & 5/16" Ball, pin & Clip. $785.00
NEW CITY TAG (INCLUDES TEMP TAG AND 2-WAY OVER NIGHT SHIPPING FOR SIGNATURE) $220.95

-$3,000.00

Page 78



WebConnect

https://www.dealer.webconnect.ford.com/switch.html[5/10/2016 6:05:32 PM]

  CNGP530                  VEHICLE ORDER CONFIRMATION           05/10/16 18:05:09
  ==> _________ ________________________________________           Dealer: F24710
                              2017 F-SERIES SD                       Page: 1 of 1
  Order No: Z001    Priority: G2  Ord FIN: QE065  Order Type: 5B Price Level: 725
  Ord PEP:  660A Cust/Flt Name: TEST                PO Number:                   
                       RETAIL                                  RETAIL            
  F5G  F550 4X2 CHAS/C $38840             425  50 STATE EMISS      NC            
       169" WHEELBASE                     52B  BRAKE CONTROLLR    270            
  Z1   OXFORD WHITE                       59H  HI MNT STOP LMP     NC            
  A    VNYL 40/20/40                      62R  TRANS PTO PROV     280            
  S    MEDIUM EARTH GR                    63B  CLN IDLE DECAL      NC            
 660A  PREF EQUIP PKG                     65Z  AFT AXLE TANK       NC            
       .XL TRIM                                SP DLR ACCT ADJ                   
  572  .AIR CONDITIONER    NC                  SP FLT ACCT CR                    
       .AM/FM STER/CLK                         FUEL CHARGE                       
  99T  6.7L V8 DIESEL    8485             B4A  NET INV FLT OPT     NC            
  44W  6-SPEED AUTO        NC                  DEST AND DELIV    1195            
  TFB  .225 BSW AS 19.5                  TOTAL BASE AND OPTIONS 49430            
  X4N  4.10 LTD SLIP      360            TOTAL                  49430            
       LESS TPMS                         *THIS IS NOT AN INVOICE*                
       18000# GVWR PKG                                                           
  F1=Help                F2=Return to Order            F3/F12=Veh Ord Menu       
  F4=Submit              F5=Add to Library                                       
 S099 - PRESS F4 TO SUBMIT                                              QC09314  
fmcdealr@AJNFT123  
May 10, 2016 6:05:12 PM

Page 79



FSA-APOPKA, CITY OF-F5G_6313-1.xlsm

1

Quote
PHONE (800) ALANJAY (252-6529) DIRECT 863-402-4234 WWW.ALANJAY.COM 6313-1

Corporate 2003 U.S. 27 South MOBILE 863-991-4693 Mailing P.O. BOX 9200
Office Sebring, FL 33870 FAX 863-402-4221 Address Sebring, FL 33871-9200

PAGE 1 of 1

REQUESTING AGENCY: APOPKA, CITY OF
ORIGINAL QUOTE DATE: 2/24/2016 REVISED QUOTE DATE: 2/24/2016
CONTACT PERSON: JOSEPH ROUTT QUOTED BY Scott Wilson
PHONE NUMBER: 407-703-1724 --
FAX NUMBER: -- EMAIL Jroutt@apopka.net

MODEL: SPECIFICATION #: 
PAGE #: 

BASE DISTRICT PRICE:
84" CA

**All vehicles will be ordered white w/ darkest interior unless Clearly stated otherwise on purchase order.
FACTORY OPTIONS DESCRIPTION

Z1 AS

99T 44W
REG 165
52B
X4N
62R
59H

FACTORY OPTIONS
CONTRACT OPTIONS DESCRIPTION

K6132DL-30J

CLVWC
TAG

Warranty

CONTRACT OPTIONS TOTAL
NON-IDENTIFIED CONTRACT OPTIONS DESCRIPTION

NON-IDENTIFIED CONTRACT OPTIONS TOTAL

TOTAL COST
TRADE IN

TOTAL COST LESS TRADE IN(S): QTY 1 =

Comments:

VEHICLE QUOTED BY: Scott Wilson FLEET SALES MANAGER scott.wilson@alanjay.com

$16,544.95

HD Class V Titan 2.5" Receiver, 7 Pin Wire Harness, Solid Steel Shank Draw Bar, 2 & 5/16" Ball, pin & Clip. $785.00
NEW CITY TAG (INCLUDES TEMP TAG AND 2-WAY OVER NIGHT SHIPPING FOR SIGNATURE) $220.95

$1,596.00

Call Us first , for all of your Fleet Automotive, & Light Truck needs.

$0.00

F5G

BED LENGTH

QUICK QUOTE SHEET

FLORIDA SHERIFF'S ASSOCIATION BID #'s 15-23-0904 & 15-13-0904                                    www.flsheriffs.org

2016 FORD F-550 REG CAB CHASSIS 2WD DRW
$34,626.00

273
009

I appreciate the opportunity to submit this quotation. Please review if carefully.  If there are any errors of changes, please feel free to contact me at any time.  I am always happy to be of 
assistance.

"I Want to be Your  Fleet Provider"

YES WE TAKE TRADE INS  ~~~  ASK ABOUT MUNICIPAL FINANCING ~~~

$52,766.95

$0.00

$0.00

$52,766.95

EXTERIOR COLOR OXFORD WHITE WITH STEEL VINYL INTERIOR 40/20/40 SPLIT FRONT BENCH

11' Knapheide 30K Crane Body (for 5K crane)**KNAPHEIDE  incl. Standard Shelving, 12" Bumper & Manual 
Crank Outriggers.** //All Include FHSMV required chassis certification & manufacturer required PDI as 
"completed vehicle".

$0.00

$15,539.00

6.7L 32V POWER STROKE V8 DIESEL W/ 6 SPD HD AUTOMATIC TRANSMISSION (STD ON F-450 & F-
550 CAB CHASSIS). $0.00
84" CAB TO AXLE ON REGULAR CAB. $699.00
ELECTRIC BRAKE CONTROLLER $269.00
4.10 LIMITED SLIP REAR DIFFERENTIAL $349.00
PTO PROVISION $279.00
CENTER HIGH MOUNT STOP LAMP (CHSML)

Page 80



FSA-APOPKA, CITY OF-F5G_6313-2

1

Quote
PHONE (800) ALANJAY (252-6529) DIRECT 863-402-4234 WWW.ALANJAY.COM 6313-2

Corporate 2003 U.S. 27 South MOBILE 863-991-4693 Mailing P.O. BOX 9200
Office Sebring, FL 33870 FAX 863-402-4221 Address Sebring, FL 33871-9200

PAGE 1 of 1

REQUESTING AGENCY: APOPKA, CITY OF
ORIGINAL QUOTE DATE: 2/24/2016 REVISED QUOTE DATE: 5/10/2016
CONTACT PERSON: JOSEPH ROUTT QUOTED BY Scott Wilson
PHONE NUMBER: 407-703-1724 --
FAX NUMBER: -- EMAIL Jroutt@apopka.net

MODEL: SPECIFICATION #: 
PAGE #: 

CUSTOMER ID: BASE DISTRICT PRICE:

84" CA
**All vehicles will be ordered white w/ darkest interior unless Clearly stated otherwise on purchase order.
FACTORY OPTIONS DESCRIPTION

Z1 AS

99T 44W
REG 165
52B
62R
59H
X8L
THB
68M

96V

17F
41H
942

FACTORY OPTIONS
CONTRACT OPTIONS DESCRIPTION

K6132DL-30J

CLVWC
TAG

Warranty

CONTRACT OPTIONS TOTAL
NON-IDENTIFIED CONTRACT OPTIONS DESCRIPTION
POOL

NON-IDENTIFIED CONTRACT OPTIONS TOTAL

TOTAL COST
TRADE IN

TOTAL COST LESS TRADE IN(S): QTY 1 =

Comments:

VEHICLE QUOTED BY: Scott Wilson FLEET SALES MANAGER scott.wilson@alanjay.com

XL DÉCOR GROUP INCLUDES FRONT/REAR CHROME BUMPERS (INCLUDED WITH 96V XL VALUE 
PACKAGE) $0.00
ENGINE BLOCK HEATER $74.00
DAYTIME RUNNING LAMPS $43.00

$0.00CHASSIS POOL UNIT KNAHPHEIDE ORDER # C951-16       *-*-*-* 48 HOUR HOLD*-*-*-*

$16,544.95

NEW CITY TAG (INCLUDES TEMP TAG AND 2-WAY OVER NIGHT SHIPPING FOR SIGNATURE) $220.95

$3,660.00

Call Us first , for all of your Fleet Automotive, & Light Truck needs.

$359.00
REAR (4) LT225R X 19.5 BSW TRACTION WITH FRONT (2) ALL SEASON $189.00
19,500LB PAYLOAD UPGRADE PACKAGE $1,154.00

F5G

BED LENGTH

QUICK QUOTE SHEET

FLORIDA SHERIFF'S ASSOCIATION BID #'s 15-23-0904 & 15-13-0904                                    www.flsheriffs.org

2016 FORD F-550 REG CAB CHASSIS 2WD DRW

$34,626.00

273
009

4:88 AXLE RATIO LIMITED SLIP REAR DIFFERENTIAL

I appreciate the opportunity to submit this quotation. Please review if carefully.  If there are any errors of changes, please feel free to contact me at any time.  I am always happy to be of 
assistance.

"I Want to be Your  Fleet Provider"

YES WE TAKE TRADE INS  ~~~  ASK ABOUT MUNICIPAL FINANCING ~~~

$54,830.95

$0.00

$0.00

$54,830.95

XL VALUE PACKAGE INCLUDES FRONT/REAR CHROME BUMPER, BRIGHT HUB COVERS & CENTER 
ORNAMENTS, AM/FM/CD/MP3, AND CRUISE CONTROL. $594.00

HD Class V Titan 2.5" Receiver, 7 Pin Wire Harness, Solid Steel Shank Draw Bar, 2 & 5/16" Ball, pin & Clip. $785.00

EXTERIOR COLOR OXFORD WHITE WITH STEEL VINYL INTERIOR 40/20/40 SPLIT FRONT BENCH.

11' Knapheide 30K Crane Body (for 5K crane)**KNAPHEIDE  incl. Standard Shelving, 12" Bumper & Manual 
Crank Outriggers.** //All Include FHSMV required chassis certification & manufacturer required PDI as 
"completed vehicle".

$0.00

$15,539.00

6.7L 32V POWER STROKE V8 DIESEL W/ 6 SPD HD AUTOMATIC TRANSMISSION (STD ON F-450 & F-
550 CAB CHASSIS). $0.00
84" CAB TO AXLE ON REGULAR CAB. $699.00
ELECTRIC BRAKE CONTROLLER $269.00
PTO PROVISION $279.00
CENTER HIGH MOUNT STOP LAMP (CHSML) $0.00

0

Page 81



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

5. Authorize the purchase and installation of a mast arm traffic signal. 
  

Page 82



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: May 18, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:             Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:      Chinchor Electric 

                                    Proposal 

       OTHER 
  

 

SUBJECT: TRAFFIC LIGHT SIGNAL AT PLYMOUTH-SORRENTO ROAD (C.R. 437) AND 

WEST LESTER ROAD / YOTHERS ROAD. 
  

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE THE PURCHASE AND INSTALLATION OF A NEW MAST ARM 

TYPE TRAFFIC LIGHT SYSTEM FOR SIGNALIZATION OF TRAFFIC, IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $240,899.66 TO CHINCHOR ELECTRIC, INC. 

 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

The Public Services Department has obtained a proposal from Chinchor Electric, Inc., to construct the 

new mast arm type traffic light system for signalization of traffic at the intersection of Plymouth-Sorrento 

Road (C.R. 437) and West Lester Road / Yothers Road.  The amount of the proposal is $218,999.69, and 

is based on a current Seminole County Push-Button Contract for construction of Traffic Signals and 

System Communication Equipment.  A 10% contingency ($21,899.97) has been added to this amount, for 

a total cost of the project of $240,899.66. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Traffic Impact Fees    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the purchase and installation of the new mast arm type traffic light system for signalization of 

traffic, in the amount of $240,899.66 to Chinchor Electric, Inc.   
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director   

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

Page 83



Plymouth Sorrento Rd. / W. Lester Rd.

Item Description Quantity Units Unit Cost Total Cost

102-1a Police Officer during MOT (per officer per hour) 16 HR $68.04 $1,088.64

620-1-1 Grounding Electrode 150 LF $10.09 $1,513.50

630-2-11 Conduit, Underground 300 LF $7.03 $2,109.00

630-2-12 Conduit, Directional Bore 300 LF $18.15 $5,445.00

632-7-1 Signal Cable 1 PI $6,015.87 $6,015.87

635-2-11A Pull & Junction Box, Ground Mounted w/ Apron 8 EA $646.95 $5,175.60

639-1-122 Electrical power serv., underground 1 AS $1,181.63 $1,181.63

639-2-1 Electrical service wire 10 LF $4.13 $41.30

649-31-206 Steel mast arm assembly ( 36 w/ Luminaire ) FDOT Std 4 EA $23,916.06 $95,664.24

650-1-1311 Traffic Signal 12” std 3 section 1 way 4 EA $883.10 $3,532.40

650-1-551 Signal head 12” Std 5S 1W 4 EA $1,333.87 $5,335.48

653-1-12 Pedestrian Signal, L.E.D. Countdown, int. sym. 2W 4 EA $1,149.31 $4,597.24

663-1-110 Signal Priority and Preemption System - Cabinet Electronics 1 EA $4,401.05 $4,401.05

663-1-110D Signal Priority and Preemption System (IR) - 4 directions 1 EA $3,315.82 $3,315.82

660-4-11 Video Vehicle Detection Controller Assembly 1 EA $11,183.51 $11,183.51

660-4-10E Video Vehicle Detector - 4 directions 1 EA $12,484.21 $12,484.21

665-1-11A Pedestrian detector (det.w/sign only) 8 AS $237.01 $1,896.08

670-5-112 Type V Cabinet /  TS2 Type1  ( Eagle ) 1 AS $25,018.72 $25,018.72

700-89-1A Hanging arm assembly 4 AS $1,781.51 $7,126.04

700-5-22B LED Illuminated Street Sign - 8' by 19" 4 EA $2,619.54 $10,478.16

$206,603.49

Maintenance of Traffic  1 % of Total $2,066.03

Mobilization  5 % of Total $10,330.17

TOTAL $218,999.69

IFB-602346-15/GCM - Term Contract for Traffic Signal Construction and System Communication Equipment

Page 84



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

6. Approve the Sensus Agreement relating to the Automated Meter Reading (AMR) System Upgrade. 
  

Page 85



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X     CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: May 18, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:             Utility Billing 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:      Sensus SaaS Agreement 

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT:  SENSUS AUTOMATED METER READING (AMR) SYSTEM AGREEMENT 

 

REQUEST: APPROVE THE SENSUS AGREEMENT RELATING TO THE AUTOMATED 

METER READING (AMR) SYSTEM UPGRADE AND DIRECT STAFF TO 

EXECUTE MULTI-YEAR CONTRACT FOR IMPLEMENTATION AND 

OPERATIONAL MAINTENANCE COSTS THROUGH 2020. 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

On April 06, 2016, City Council approved the Sensus proposal to upgrade the Automated Meter Reading 

(AMR) System. Major technological advancements have been made to the existing meter reading system 

and without the upgrade our existing equipment, both hardware and software, will become obsolete and no 

longer function.  Therefore, it is imperative to upgrade the AMR system. 

 

The Sensus Agreement provides for the implementation of the upgrade at a cost of $41,793 for the first year 

and operational maintenance for the next four subsequent years (2017 thru 2020) at costs ranging from 

$33,779 to $36,911. 

 

 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Funding of $47,000 was specifically identified and included in the FY16 Utility Billing Budget. 

 (Account #401-3161-533.4600) 

    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve the Sensus Agreement for the Automated Meter Reading (AMR) system upgrades and direct staff 

to execute the multi-year contract. 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

Page 86



CONFIDENTIAL │ Page 1 of 16 

Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) Agreement 

between 

City of Apopka 
 (“Customer”) 

and  
Sensus USA Inc. 

(“Sensus”) 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this AMI Agreement (“Agreement”) to be executed by their duly 
authorized representatives as of the day and year written below. The date of the last party to sign is the “Effective Date.”   

This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and continue for/until: 5 Years  (“Initial Term”).  At the end of the 
Initial Term, this Agreement shall automatically renew for an additional term of 5 years (“Renewal Term”).  The “Term” shall 
refer to both the Initial Term and the Renewal Term.  

This Agreement contains two parts: Part (1) is The FCC Notification for Spectrum Manager Lease, to be filed with the FCC 
by Sensus on behalf of the Customer and Part (2) is a AMI Agreement between Sensus and Customer. Together, these two 
parts create the Agreement.   

Sensus USA Inc. 
By: 

Name: 

Title: 

Date: 

Customer:  City of Apopka 
By: 

Name: 

Title: 

Date: 

Pricing remains firm until 1/1/2017 (“Trigger Date”) 

All purchase orders shall be sent to the address provided 
by Sensus. Sensus may change this address upon 
notice to Customer.  

Contents of this Agreement:  

 Part 1: Notification for Spectrum Manager Lease 
 Part 2:AMI Agreement 

 Exhibit A     Software  
 Exhibit B     Technical Support 
 Exhibit C     Pricing 

Customer order acknowledgements shall be sent to: 
[insert email address or fax number]    

_____________________________________________
____________________________________________  

Sensus shall send all invoices to: [insert mailing address, 
email address, fax number, as applicable]  

_____________________________________________
_____________________________________________ 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer
Mayor

May 18, 2016

Page 87



CONFIDENTIAL │ Page 2 of 16 

 Part 1: Notification for Spectrum Manager Lease 

In order for Sensus to apply to the FCC on the Customer’s behalf for a spectrum manager lease, Customer must complete the information below in boxes one (1) through ten (10) and certify via 
authorized signature.  Customer’s signature will indicate that Customer authorizes Sensus to file the spectrum manager lease notification on FCC Form 608 with the Customer as spectrum 
Lessee, and if Customer does not already have one, ownership disclosure information on FCC Form 602.   

1. 

Customer/Lessee Name:  

Attention To:  Name of Real Party in Interest:  

Street Address:  City:  

State:  Zip:  Phone:  

Fax:  Email:  

Is Customer contact information same as above? Yes  No  (If No, complete box 2 below) 

2.  
Additional Customer/Lessee Contact Information 

Company Name:  

Attention To:  

Street Address:  City:  

State:  Zip:  Phone:  

Fax:  Email:  

3. 

Customer/Lessee is a(n) (Select one): Individual  ǀ  Unincorporated Association ǀ Trust 
Government Entity  ǀ Corporation ǀ  Limited Liability Company ǀ General Partnership 
Limited Partnership ǀ Limited Liability Partnership ǀ Consortium    ǀ  Other __________ 

4. 
FCC Form 602: FCC File Number of Customer’s Form 602 Ownership Information: __________.  If Customer has not filed a Form 602, Sensus will file one for Customer.  Please 
complete questions 5, 6, and 7 below if Customer does not have a Form 602 on file.   
Customer must complete items 8, 9 and 10 irrespective of whether Customer has an ownership report on file. 

5. 

6.  
Individual Contact For FCC Matters 

Please designate one individual (the Director of Public Works or similar person) who is responsible to the FCC for the operation of the FlexNet radio system.   

Name  

Title:  

Email:  Phone:  

7.
Ownership Disclosure Information 

If Customer/Lessee is a government entity, list the names of the Mayor and all Council Members below, as well as verify citizenship and ownership interests in any entity regulated by 
the FCC.  Such ownership must be disclosed where a mayor/council member owns 10% or more, directly or indirectly, or has operating control of any entity subject to FCC regulation. 
If any answer to Ownership question is Yes, or any answer to Citizenship question is No, provide an attachment with further explanation.   

1) US Citizen? Ownership Disclosure? 

2) Mayor: 
Yes No Yes No 

Council Member: 
Yes No Yes No 

Council Member: 
Yes No Yes No 

Council Member: 
Yes No Yes No 

Council Member: 
Yes No Yes No 

Customer Tax ID:  

4 

5 

4 
4 

City of Apopka

120 E. Main Street Apopka

FL 32703 407-703-1725

407-703-1723 ewatson@apopka.net

Utility Billing Manager

x

59-6000265

Lynn Pettingill
Lieutenant-Communications Officer

lpettingill@apopka.net 407-703-1768

Joseph E. Kilsheimer x

Billie L. Dean x

Diane Velazquez x

Douglas Bankson x

Kyle Becker x

Page 88



CONFIDENTIAL │ Page 3 of 16 

Council Member: 
Yes No Yes No 

Council Member: 
Yes No Yes No 

Council Member: 
Yes No Yes No 

Council Member: 
Yes No Yes No 

Council Member: 
Yes No Yes No 

8.
Alien Ownership Questions (if the answer is Yes, provide an attachment explaining the circumstances) 

1) Is the Customer/Lessee a foreign government or the representative of any foreign government? Yes No  

9.
Basic Qualification Information 

1) Has the Customer or any party to this application had any FCC station authorization, license, or construction permit revoked or had any
application for an initial, modification or renewal of FCC station authorization, license or construction permit denied by the Commission? 

Yes No 

2) Has the Customer or any party to this filing, or any party directly or indirectly controlling the Customer or any party to this filing ever been
convicted of a felony by any state or federal court? 

Yes No 

3) Has any court finally adjudged the Customer or any party directly or indirectly controlling the Customer guilty of unlawfully monopolizing or 
attempting to unlawfully monopolize radio communication, directly or indirectly, through control of manufacture or sale of radio apparatus, exclusive 
traffic arrangement, or any other means or unfair methods of competition? 

Yes No 

10.
Customer/Lessee Certification Statements 

1) The Customer/Lessee agrees that the Lease is not a sale or transfer of the license itself. Yes 

2) The Customer/Lessee acknowledges that it is required to comply with the Commission’s Rules and Regulations and other applicable law at all
times, and if the Customer/Lessee fails to so comply, the Lease may be revoked, cancelled, or terminated by either the Licensee or the 
Commission. 

Yes 

3) The Customer/Lessee certifies that neither it nor any other party to the Application/Notification is subject to a denial of Federal benefits pursuant
to Section 5301 of the Anti-Drug Abuse Act of 1988, 21 U.S.C § 862, because of a conviction for possession or distribution of a controlled substance 

(See Section 1.2002(b) of the rules, 47 CFR § 1.2002(b), for the definition of “party to the application” as used in this certification.) 

Yes 

4) The Customer/Lessee hereby accepts Commission oversight and enforcement consistent with the license and lease authorization.  The Lessee 
acknowledges that it must cooperate fully with any investigation or inquiry conducted either by the Commission or the Licensee, allow the 
Commission or the Licensee to conduct on-site inspections of transmission facilities, and suspend operations at the direction of the Commission or 
the Licensee and to the extent that such suspension of operation would be consistent with applicable Commission policies.   

Yes 

5) The Customer/Lessee acknowledges that in the event an authorization held by a Licensee that has associated with it a spectrum leasing
arrangement that is the subject of this filing is revoked, cancelled, terminated, or otherwise ceases to be in effect, the Customer/Lessee will have no 
continuing authority to use the leased spectrum and will be required to terminate its operations no later than the date on which the Licensee ceases 
to have any authority to operate under the license, unless otherwise authorized by the Commission. 

Yes 

6) The Customer/Lessee agrees the Lease shall not be assigned to any entity that is not eligible or qualified to enter into a spectrum leasing
arrangement under the Commission’s Rules and Regulations. 

Yes 

7)The Customer/Lessee waives any claim to the use of any particular frequency or of the electromagnetic spectrum as against the regulatory power
of the United States because of the previous use of the same, whether by spectrum lease or otherwise.  

Yes 

8) The Customer/Lessee certifies that it is not in default on any payment for Commission licenses and that it is not delinquent on any non-tax debt
owed to any federal agency.  

Yes 

The Customer/Lessee certifies that all of its statements made in this Application/Notification and in the schedules, exhibits, attachments, or documents incorporated by reference are 

material, are part of this Application/Notification, and are true, complete, correct, and made in good faith.  The Customer/Lessee shall notify Sensus in writing in the event any 

information supplied on this form changes.   

Type or Printed Name of Party Authorized to Sign 

First Name: MI: Last Name: Suffix: 

Title: Customer Name: 

Signature: Date: 

FAILURE TO SIGN THIS APPLICATION MAY RESULT IN DISMISSAL OF THE APPLICATION AND FORFEITURE OF ANY FEES PAID. 

WILLFUL FALSE STATEMENTS MADE ON THIS FORM OR ANY ATTACHMENTS ARE PUNISHABLE BY FINE AND/OR IMPRISONMENT (U.S. Code, Title 18, Section 1001) 
AND/OR REVOCATION OF ANY STATION LICENSE OR CONSTRUCTION PERMIT (U.S. Code, Title 47, Section 312(a)(1)) AND/OR FORFEITURE (U.S. Code Title 47, 
Section 503). 

x

x
x

x

x
x

x

x

x

x
x
x

Joseph E. Kilsheimer

Mayor City of Apopka

Page 89



CONFIDENTIAL │ Page 4 of 16 

Part 2:  AMI Agreement

1. Equipment. 

A.  Purchase of Equipment.  

i. Equipment.  Customer shall purchase all Field Devices, RF Field Equipment, and other goods (collectively, “Equipment”) from Sensus’ authorized 
distributor pursuant to the terms and conditions (including any warranties on such Equipment) agreed to by Customer and Sensus’ authorized distributor. 
This Agreement shall not affect any terms and conditions, including any warranty terms, agreed to by Customer and Sensus' authorized distributor.
Customer shall purchase from Sensus the quantities and types of transceiver repair kits (the “Transceivers”) set forth in Exhibit C at the prices set forth 
in Exhibit C. 

ii. Delivery.  Customer shall pay for delivery of the Transceivers from Sensus’ or Sensus’ contracted manufacturers’ factory to Customer’s warehouse. 
The Transceivers will be shipped Ex Works shipping point, prepay freight and add.  Title to, and property in, the Transceivers shall pass to Customer 
upon shipment.  Risk of loss of the Transceivers shall also pass to Customer upon shipment. 

iii. Project Number.  Customer shall include the Sensus project number on all Purchase Orders.  Orders submitted to Sensus may not be canceled or 
amended, or deliveries deferred, by Customer except with Sensus’ prior written consent. 

iv. Warranty.  The Transceivers purchased directly from Sensus is warranted as set forth in this subsection (iv).

(a) Sensus warrants goods, software, and services, except for the water metering equipment and gas SmartPoint Modules, according to the terms 
and conditions (including all limitations and exclusions) in the Sensus Limited Warranty, available at: http://sensus.com/TC/TermsConditions.pdf 
(click on the “General Warranty” link), or 1-800-METER-IT (“General Limited Warranty”).  To the extent the terms of the General Limited Warranty 
conflict with the terms in this Agreement, the terms of this Agreement shall control. 

B. Limitations and Exclusions. THE WARRANTIES IN THIS SECTION 1 AND THE GENERAL LIMITED WARRANTY ARE THE ONLY WARRANTIES 
GIVEN WITH RESPECT TO THE GOODS, SOFTWARE LICENSES, AND SERVICES SOLD OR OTHERWISE PROVIDED BY SENSUS.  SENSUS 
EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ANY AND ALL OTHER REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND/OR CONDITIONS, EXPRESSED, IMPLIED, STATUTORY 
OR OTHERWISE, REGARDING ANY MATTER IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, WARRANTIES AS TO 
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, MERCHANTABILITY, NON-INFRINGEMENT AND TITLE. 

C. Ongoing Maintenance of Equipment.  

i. Field Devices.  Customer shall be responsible for the ongoing maintenance of the Field Devices. Customer shall provide the field services labor to visit 
a problem Field Device and perform diagnostics and repair or replacement. 

ii. RF Field Equipment.  Customer shall be responsible for the ongoing maintenance of the RF Field Equipment. Customer shall be responsible for the 
ongoing monthly operations and expenses related to the RF Field Equipment, including any leasing costs, construction costs, taxes and costs of WAN 
Backhaul. Customer shall pay for electric power to the RF Field Equipment.

2. Services. 

A. Installation of Equipment. 

i. Field Devices.  Customer shall install the Field Devices at its End Users’ premises, or other location as applicable. 

ii. RF Field Equipment. For the prices set forth in Exhibit C, Sensus, or its subcontractor, shall install the Transceivers on Customer’s existing RF Field 
Equipment. 

B. IT Systems Integration Services.  Integration of the Software into Customer’s new or existing internal IT systems is not included in this Agreement. Any 
integration work shall be subject to a separate agreement which describes the scope and pricing for such work. 

C. Technical Support.  Sensus shall provide Customer the technical support set forth in Exhibit B.   

D. Project Management. Sensus shall provide Customer project management as set forth on Exhibit C. 

E. Training.  Sensus shall provide Customer with training as set forth on Exhibit C. 

3. Software. 

A. Software as a Service (SaaS). For the prices and conditions set forth in Exhibit C, Sensus shall provide Customer with Software as a Service, as defined in 
Exhibit A, only so long as Customer is current in its payments for such services. 

B. UCITA. To the maximum extent permitted by law, the Parties agree that the Uniform Computer Information Transaction Act as enacted by any state shall not 
apply, in whole or in part, to this Agreement. 

4. Spectrum 

A.  Definitions in this Section 4.  In this Section 4 only, “Sensus” shall mean Sensus USA Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiary, Sensus Spectrum LLC. 

B. Spectrum Lease.  Sensus hereby grants to Customer, and Customer accepts, a spectrum manager lease (“Spectrum Lease”) over the frequencies of certain 
FCC license(s) (“FCC License”) solely within Customer’s Service Territory.  (The frequencies of the FCC License within Customer’s geographic Service 
Territory are called the “Leased Spectrum”).  Customer shall pay the Ongoing Fees for use of the Leased Spectrum. 

C. FCC Forms.  At the Federal Communications Commission (FCC), Sensus will; (1) obtain an FCC Registration Number (FRN) for Customer; (2) submit on 
behalf of Customer the FCC Form 602 Ownership Disclosure Information if Customer has not already done so; and (3) file a FCC Form 608, 
notification/application for long-term spectrum manager lease. This Lease becomes effective when the FCC accepts the FCC Form 608.     

D. Lease Application.  In order to complete the FCC lease application, Customer will promptly:  

i. Complete and sign the representations in Part 1 of this Agreement such that Customer demonstrates it qualifies for a spectrum lease under FCC rules. 
Customer’s signature will indicate that Customer authorizes Sensus to; (1) obtain an FRN on behalf of Customer; (2) submit the FCC Form 602 
Ownership Disclosure Information on behalf of Customer if Customer has not already done so; and (3) file the spectrum manager lease notification on
FCC Form 608 with the Customer as spectrum lessee. 

ii. Give Sensus the coordinates of the boundaries of Customer’s Service Territory or, alternatively, approve Sensus’ estimation of the same.

iii. If Customer has not already done so; Customer hereby authorizes Sensus to apply on Customer’s behalf and obtain for Customer a Federal Registration 
Number (FRN, the FCC’s unique identifier for each licensee) and shall supply Sensus with Customer’s Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN). 

iv. Provide any other information or other cooperation reasonably necessary for the Parties to perform as set forth herein.

E. Permitted Use of Spectrum Lease.  Customer may transmit or receive over the Leased Spectrum only in the Service Territory and only using FlexNet 
equipment manufactured by Sensus and used in accordance with Sensus’ specifications.  Customer may use the Leased Spectrum only to read and direct 
meters in support of Customer’s primary utility business or any other operation approved by Sensus in writing.  Without limiting the foregoing, Customer is 
prohibited from reselling, subleasing or sublicensing the Leased Spectrum or from transmitting voice communications over the Leased Spectrum.  For each 

Page 90



CONFIDENTIAL │ Page 5 of 16 

piece of RF Field Equipment used by Customer, Customer shall affix a Sensus-supplied label to the exterior of the RF Field Equipment cabinet or other 
appropriate visible place to indicate that RF operation is conducted under authority of FCC License(s) issued to Sensus. 

F. Term of Spectrum Lease. Unless terminated earlier (because, for example, Customer stops using the FlexNet equipment or because this Agreement 
terminates or expires for any reason), this Spectrum Lease will have the same term as the FCC license.  If Customer is operating in compliance with this 
Agreement and is current on any payments owed to Sensus, when the FCC License renews, the Parties will apply to the FCC to renew this Spectrum Lease. 

G. Termination of Spectrum Lease.  The Spectrum Lease will terminate: (a) two months after Customer stops transmitting with FlexNet equipment 
manufactured by Sensus; (b) upon termination, revocation or expiration of the FCC License; (c) upon Customer’s breach of this Agreement; or (d) upon 
termination or expiration of this Agreement for any reason. 

H. FCC Compliance.  The following FCC requirements apply  

i. Pursuant to 47 CFR 1.9040(a); 

(a) Customer must comply at all times with applicable FCC rules.  This Agreement may be revoked by Sensus or the FCC if Customer fails to so 
comply; 

(b) If the FCC License is terminated, Customer has no continuing right to use the Leased Spectrum unless otherwise authorized by the FCC; 

(c) This Agreement is not an assignment, sale or other transfer of the FCC License; 

(d) This Agreement may not be assigned except upon written consent of Sensus, which consent may be withheld in its discretion; and 

(e) In any event, Sensus will not consent to an assignment that does not satisfy FCC rules. 

ii. Referencing 47 CFR 1.9010, Sensus retains de jure and de facto control over the applicable radio facilities, including that, 

(a) Sensus will be responsible for Customer’s compliance with FCC policies and rules.  Sensus represents and warrants that it has engineered the 
FlexNet equipment and accompanying software and other programs to comply with FCC rules. Customer will operate the FlexNet equipment 
subject to Sensus’ supervision and control and solely in accordance with Sensus’ specifications.  Sensus retains the right to inspect Customer’s 
radio operations hereunder and to terminate this Agreement or take any other necessary steps to resolve a violation of FCC rules, including to 
order Customer to cease transmission.  Sensus will act as spectrum manager in assigning spectrum under the FCC License so as to avoid any 
harmful interference or other violation of FCC rules.  Sensus will be responsible for resolving any interference complaints or other FCC rule 
violations that may arise; and 

(b) Sensus will file any necessary FCC forms or applications and Customer agrees to reasonably assist Sensus with such filing by providing any 
necessary information or other cooperation.  Sensus will otherwise interact with the FCC with respect to this Agreement, the FCC License or 
FlexNet equipment. 

I. Interference.  Customer agrees to report to Sensus promptly, and in no event later than 72 hours afterward, any incident related to the Leased Spectrum, 
including where Customer experiences harmful interference, receives a complaint or other notice of having caused harmful interference, or receives any type 
of communication from the FCC or other government agency regarding radio transmission. 

5. General Terms and Conditions. 

A. Payment.  All payment and pricing is subject to the terms in Exhibit C.  

B. Limitation of Liability.  

i. Sensus’ aggregate liability in any and all causes of action arising under, out of or in relation to this Agreement, its negotiation, performance, breach or 
termination (collectively “Causes of Action”) shall not exceed the greater of; (a) the total amount paid by Customer directly to Sensus under this 
Agreement; or (b) ten thousand US dollars (USD 10,000.00).  This is so whether the Causes of Action are in tort, including, without limitation, negligence 
or strict liability, in contract, under statute or otherwise.  As separate and independent limitations on liability, Sensus’ liability shall be limited to direct 
damages.  Sensus shall not be liable for; (i) any indirect, incidental, special or consequential damages; nor (ii) any revenue or profits lost by Customer or 
its Affiliates from any End User(s), irrespective whether such lost revenue or profits is categorized as direct damages or otherwise; nor (iii) any In/Out 
Costs; nor (iv) manual meter read costs and expenses; nor (v) claims made by a third party; nor (vi) damages arising from maincase or bottom plate 
breakage caused by freezing temperatures, water hammer conditions, or excessive water pressure. The limitations on liability set forth in this Agreement 
are fundamental inducements to Sensus entering into this Agreement.  They apply unconditionally and in all respects.  They are to be interpreted 
broadly so as to give Sensus the maximum protection permitted under law. 

ii. To the maximum extent permitted by law, no Cause of Action may be instituted by Customer against Sensus more than TWELVE (12) MONTHS after 
the Cause of Action first arose.  In the calculation of any damages in any Cause of Action, no damages incurred more than TWELVE (12) MONTHS prior 
to the filing of the Cause of Action shall be recoverable. 

C. Termination.  Either party may terminate this Agreement earlier if the other party commits a material breach of this Agreement and such material breach is not 
cured within forty-five (45) days of written notice by the other party. Upon any expiration or termination of this Agreement, Sensus’ and Customer’s obligations 
hereunder shall cease and the software as a service and Spectrum Lease shall immediately cease. 

D. Force Majeure.  If either party becomes unable, either wholly or in part, by an event of Force Majeure, to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement, the 
obligations affected by the event of Force Majeure will be suspended during the continuance of that inability.  The party affected by the force majeure will take 
reasonable steps to mitigate the Force Majeure.   

E. Intellectual Property.  No Intellectual Property is assigned to Customer hereunder. Sensus shall own or continue to own all Intellectual Property used, 
created, and/or derived in the course of performing this Agreement.  To the extent, if any, that any ownership interest in and to such Intellectual Property does 
not automatically vest in Sensus by virtue of this Agreement or otherwise, and instead vests in Customer, Customer agrees to grant and assign and hereby 
does grant and assign to Sensus all right, title, and interest that Customer may have in and to such Intellectual Property. Customer agrees not to reverse 
engineer any Equipment purchased or provided hereunder.  

F. Confidentiality.   

i. Both parties shall (and shall cause their employees and contractors to) keep all Confidential Information strictly confidential and shall not disclose it to 
any third party, except to the extent reasonably required to perform and enforce this Agreement or as required under applicable law, court order or 
regulation.  The Confidential Information may be transmitted orally, in writing, electronically or otherwise observed by either party.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, “Confidential Information” shall not include; (i) any information that is in the public domain other than due to Recipient’s breach of this 
Agreement; (ii) any information in the possession of the Recipient without restriction prior to disclosure by the Discloser; or (iii) any information 
independently developed by the Recipient without reliance on the information disclosed hereunder by the Discloser. “Discloser” means either party that 
discloses Confidential Information, and “Recipient” means either party that receives it. 

ii. Sensus acknowledges that Customer is a public entity and subject to Florida Public Records Law.  Notwithstanding the terms stated herein, Customer 
will comply with all requirements of Florida Law regarding maintenance, retention, and provision of public records and shall only have the duty to keep 
information confidential that is exempt from disclosure per Florida Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and any other applicable law 
regarding public records. 

Page 91



CONFIDENTIAL │ Page 6 of 16 

G. Compliance with Laws.  Customer shall comply with all applicable country, federal, state, and local laws and regulations, as set forth at the time of 
acceptance and as may be amended, changed, or supplemented.  Customer shall not take any action, or permit the taking of any action by a third party, which 
may render Sensus liable for a violation of applicable laws. 

i. Export Control Laws.  Customer shall; (i) comply with all applicable U.S. and local laws and regulations governing the use, export, import, re-export, 
and transfer of products, technology, and services; and (ii) obtain all required authorizations, permits, and licenses. Customer shall immediately notify 
Sensus, and immediately cease all activities with regards to the applicable transaction, if the Customer knows or has a reasonable suspicion that the 
equipment, software, or services provided hereunder may be directed to countries in violation of any export control laws. By ordering equipment, 
software or services, Customer certifies that it is not on any U.S. government export exclusion list. 

ii. Anti-Corruption Laws. Customer shall comply with the United States Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (FCPA), 15 U.S.C. §§ 78dd-1, et seq.; laws and 
regulations implementing the OECD’s Convention on Combating Bribery of Foreign Public Officials in International Business Transactions; the U.N. 
Convention Against Corruption; the Inter-American Convention Against Corruption; and any other applicable laws and regulations relating to anti-
corruption in the Customer’s county or any country where performance of this Agreement, or delivery or use of equipment, software or services will 
occur. 

H. Non-Waiver of Rights.  A waiver by either party of any breach of this Agreement or the failure or delay of either party to enforce any of the articles or other 
provisions of this Agreement will not in any way affect, limit or waive that party’s right to enforce and compel strict compliance with the same or other articles or 
provisions. 

I. Assignment and Sub-contracting.  Either party may assign, transfer or delegate this Agreement without requiring the other party’s consent; (i) to an Affiliate; 
(ii) as part of a merger; or (iii) to a purchaser of all or substantially all of its assets.  Apart from the foregoing, neither party may assign, transfer or delegate this 
Agreement without the prior written consent of the other, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.  Furthermore, Customer acknowledges Sensus 
may use subcontractors to perform RF Field Equipment installation, the systems integration work (if applicable), or project management (if applicable), without 
requiring Customer’s consent.    

J. Amendments.  No alteration, amendment, or other modification shall be binding unless in writing and signed by both Customer and by a vice president (or 
higher) of Sensus.   

K. Governing Law and Dispute Resolution.  This Agreement shall be governed by, construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida.  
Any and all disputes arising under, out of, or in relation to this Agreement, its negotiation, performance or termination (“Disputes’) shall first be resolved by the 
Parties attempting mediation in Florida. If the Dispute is not resolved within sixty (60) days of the commencement of the mediation, it shall be litigated in the 
state or federal courts located in Orange County, Florida.  TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, THE PARTIES AGREE TO A BENCH TRIAL 
AND THAT THERE SHALL BE NO JURY IN ANY DISPUTES.  

L. Restriction on Discovery.  The Parties acknowledge the abundance of documents, data, and other information stored in an electronic manner and the time 
and costs associated with retrieving relevant electronic data from the Parties during the Discovery portion of a claim.  Accordingly, the Parties shall utilize only 
printed or hard-copy documents, data, and other information in Discovery and shall not use or request electronic or e-Discovery methods for any claim, 
demand, arbitration or litigation subject to this Agreement.  All relevant and unprivileged printed or hard-copy materials shall be subject to Discovery, but 
neither Party has an obligation to maintain printed or hard-copy files in anticipation of a claim, demand, litigation, or arbitration proceeding. 

M. Survival.  The provisions of this Agreement that are applicable to circumstances arising after its termination or expiration shall survive such termination or 
expiration. 

N. Severability.  In the event any provision of this Agreement is held to be void, unlawful or otherwise unenforceable, that provision will be severed from the 
remainder of the Agreement and replaced automatically by a provision containing terms as nearly like the void, unlawful, or unenforceable provision as 
possible; and the Agreement, as so modified, will continue to be in full force and effect. 

O. Four Corners.  This written Agreement, including all of its exhibits, represents the entire understanding between and obligations of the parties and supersedes 
all prior understandings, agreements, negotiations, and proposals, whether written or oral, formal or informal between the parties.  Any additional writings shall 
not modify any limitations or remedies provided in the Agreement.  There are no other terms or conditions, oral, written, electronic or otherwise.  There are no 
implied obligations.  All obligations are specifically set forth in this Agreement.  Further, there are no representations that induced this Agreement that are not 
included in it.  The ONLY operative provisions are set forth in writing in this Agreement.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, no purchase order 
placed by or on behalf of Customer shall alter any of the terms of this Agreement.  The parties agree that such documents are for administrative purposes 
only, even if they have terms and conditions printed on them and even if and when they are accepted and/or processed by Sensus.  Any goods, software or 
services delivered or provided in anticipation of this Agreement (for e.g., as part of a pilot or because this Agreement has not yet been signed but the parties 
have begun the deployment) under purchase orders placed prior to the execution of this Agreement are governed by this Agreement upon its execution and it 
replaces and supersedes any such purchase orders. 

P. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall 
constitute one and the same instrument.  Additionally, this Agreement may be executed by facsimile or electronic copies, all of which shall be considered an 
original for all purposes. 

6. Definitions.  As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings:
A. “Affiliate” of a party means any other entity controlling, controlled by, or under common control with such party, where “control” of an entity means the ownership, 

directly or indirectly, of 50% or more of either; (i) the shares or other equity in such entity; or (ii) the voting rights in such entity.  
B.  “AMI System” identifies the Sensus FlexNet Advanced Meter Infrastructure System comprised of the SmartPoint Modules, RF Field Equipment, Server Hardware, 

software licenses, FCC licenses, and other equipment provided to Customer hereunder.  The AMI System only includes the foregoing, as provided by Sensus.  The AMI 
System does not include goods, equipment, software, licenses or rights provided by a third party or parties to this Agreement. 

C. “Available Meter" means an installed Sensus FlexNet meter (with a SmartPoint Module installed) or a Sensus SmartPoint Module which has been installed on a third 
party meter, and which, in either case, is not an Unavailable Meter (or on an Unavailable Meter in the case of SmartPoint Modules on third party meters)  and which 
satisfies all of the following criteria: (i) it functions properly, and is not a damaged or failed meter; (ii) Intentionally Omitted (iii) it is serviced by RF Field Equipment that 
has not been subjected to a power failure greater than eight (8) total hours; (iv) neither it nor the RF Field Equipment that serves that meter has been affected by a Force 
Majeure event; (v) jamming of the radio spectrum is not preventing or interfering with radio communication to or from the meter; (vi) it is installed in the Service Territory; 
(vii) it has not been reported to Customer under Sensus' or Customer’s preventative maintenance; (viii) its functioning or performance has not been adversely affected by 
a failure of Customer to perform its obligations or tasks for which it is responsible under this Agreement, (ix) its functioning or performance has not been adversely 
affected by a failure or insufficiency of the back haul telecommunications network of Customer for communications among the components of the Sensus AMI System; 
and (x)  it has been installed in compliance with the procedures and specifications approved by Customer and Sensus. 

D.  “Billing Window” for a meter means the four day period commencing one day prior to the relevant billing day for such meter and ending two days after such billing day. 
The Billing Window for testing purposes shall be agreed by Customer and Sensus. 

E. “Confidential Information” means any and all non-public information of either party, including the terms of this agreement, all technical information about either party’s 
products or services, pricing information, marketing and marketing plans, Customer’s End Users’ data, AMI System performance, AMI System architecture and design, 
AMI System software, other business and financial information of either party, and all trade secrets of either party. 

F. “Echo Transceiver” identifies the Sensus standalone, mounted relay device that takes the radio frequency readings from the SmartPoint Modules and relays them by 

Page 92



 

 

 

 
CONFIDENTIAL │ Page 7 of 16 

radio frequency to the relevant FlexNet Base Station.    
G. “End User” means any end user of electricity, water, and/or gas (as applicable) that pays Customer for the consumption of electricity, water, and/or gas, as applicable. 
H. “Escalator(s)” means the following: 

i. For services: three percent (3%).  
ii.  For Water Meters: 

(a) For bronze and low lead water metering products: the percentage change, for the relevant period, of the average of; (a) the United States Bureau of 
Labor Statistics Producer Price Index, Commodities, Group: Metals and metal products, Item: Copper and copper-base alloy castings (excl. die-castings), 
series ID: WPU102807013, not seasonally adjusted; and (b) the United States Bureau of Labor Statistics Producer Price Index, Industry Data, Industry and 
Product: Plastics material and resins mfg., series ID: PCU 325211325211, not seasonally adjusted.# 

(b) For plastic main case meters: the percentage change, for the relevant period, of the United States Bureau of Labor Statistics Producer Price Index, 
Industry Data, Industry and Product: Plastics material and resins mfg., series ID: PCU 325211325211, not seasonally adjusted. 

(c) For Omni meters: the percentage change, for the relevant period, of the United States Bureau of Labor Statistics Producer Price Index, Commodities, 
Group: Metals and metal products, item: other gray and ductile iron castings, other, series ID: WPU101504, not seasonally adjusted. 

iii. For all other goods and services: the percentage change, for the relevant period, of the United States Bureau of Labor Statistics Consumer Price Index for All 
Urban Consumers (CPI-U) “All Items Less Food and Energy” for the U.S. City Average for All Items, 1982-84 = 100, not seasonally adjusted, or substantially 
similar succeeding index.   

iv. Any Escalator increases called forth in this Agreement shall be calculated to the third decimal point (e.g. 2.576%) 
I. “Field Devices” means the meters and SmartPoint Modules. 
J. “FlexNet Base Station” identifies the Sensus manufactured device consisting of one transceiver, to be located on a tower that receives readings from the SmartPoint 

Modules (either directly or via an Echo Transceiver) by radio frequency and passes those readings to the RNI by TCP/IP backhaul communication. For clarity, FlexNet 
Base Stations include Metro Base Stations.  

K.  “Force Majeure” means an event beyond a party’s reasonable control, including, without limitation, acts of God, hurricane, flood, volcano, tsunami, tornado, storm, 
tempest, mudslide, vandalism, illegal or unauthorized radio frequency interference, strikes, lockouts, or other industrial disturbances, unavailability of component parts of 
any goods provided hereunder, acts of public enemies, wars, blockades, insurrections, riots, epidemics, earthquakes, fires, restraints or prohibitions by any court, board, 
department, commission or agency of the United States or any States, any arrests and restraints, civil disturbances and explosion. 

L. “Hosted Software” means those items listed as an Application in Exhibit A. 
M.  “In/Out Costs” means any costs and expenses incurred by Customer in transporting goods between its warehouse and its End User’s premises and any costs and 

expenses incurred by Customer in installing, uninstalling and removing goods. 
N. “Intellectual Property” means patents and patent applications, inventions (whether patentable or not), trademarks, service marks, trade dress, copyrights, trade secrets, 

know-how, data rights, specifications, drawings, designs, maskwork rights, moral rights, author’s rights, and other intellectual property rights, including any derivations 
and/or derivative works, as may exist now or hereafter come into existence, and all renewals and extensions thereof, regardless of whether any of such rights arise under 
the laws of the United States or of any other state, country or jurisdiction, any registrations or applications thereof, and all goodwill pertinent thereto. 

O. “Ongoing Fee” means the annual or monthly fees, as applicable, to be paid by Customer during the Term of this Agreement. 
P. “Patches” means patches or other maintenance releases of the Software that correct processing errors and other faults and defects found previous versions of the 

Software.  For clarity, Patches are not Updates or Upgrades. 
Q. “Permitted Use” means only for reading and analyzing data from Customer’s Field Devices in the Service Territory.  The Permitted Use does not include reading third 

party meters or reading meters outside the Service Territory. 
R. “Release” means both Updates and Upgrades. 
S. “Remote Transceiver” identifies the Sensus standalone, mounted relay device that takes the radio frequency readings from the SmartPoint Modules and relays them 

directly to the RNI by TCP/IP backhaul communication.   
T. “RF Field Equipment” means, collectively, FlexNet Base Stations, Echo Transceivers and Remote Transceivers. 
U. "RNI" identifies the regional network interfaces consisting of hardware and software used to gather, store, and report data collected by the FlexNet Base Stations from 

the SmartPoint Modules.  The RNI hardware specifications will be provided by Sensus upon written request from Customer. 
V. “RNI Software” identifies the Sensus proprietary software used in the RNI and any Patches, Updates, and Upgrades that are provided to Customer pursuant to the terms 

of this Agreement.   
W. “Service Territory” identifies the geographic area where Customer provides electricity, water, and/or gas (as applicable) services to End Users as of the Effective Date.  

This area will be described on the propagation study in the parties’ Spectrum Lease filing with the FCC. 
X. “Server Hardware” means the RNI hardware. 
Y. “SmartPoint™ Modules” identifies the Sensus transmission devices installed on devices such as meters, distribution automation equipment and demand/response 

devices located at Customer’s End Users’ premises that take the readings of the meters and transmit those readings by radio frequency to the relevant FlexNet Base  
Station, Remote Transceiver or Echo Transceiver.   

Z. “Software” means all the Sensus proprietary software provided pursuant to this Agreement, and any Patches, Updates, and Upgrades that are provided to Customer 
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. The Software does not include any third party software.  

AA. “TouchCoupler Unit” identifies an inductive coupler connection from a water register to the SmartPoint Module.  
BB. “Unavailable Meters” include meters with sockets with power cut at the pole, meters that are booted on the line side, sockets that are not provided power due to a 

power delivery system failure, meters with tamper, theft or other human induced failures that render the meter or SmartPoint Module incapable of providing a read, a 
Force Majeure event induced failures of the power delivery system, socket or meter, and/or any system or meter maintenance issue that precludes the meter from 
transmitting its message to the network.  Examples of Unavailable Meters include: (i)Intentionally Omitted; (ii)Intentionally Omitted; (iii)Intentionally Omitted; 
(iv)Intentionally Omitted; (v) Broken TouchCoupler unit: the TouchCoupler unit is damaged by intentional or unintentional acts; (vi) Broken Clip:  the c lip that holds the 
TouchCoupler unit into the radio package housing is broken and the unit cannot complete the inductive electrical connection; (vii) Improper installation of the 
TouchCoupler unit: the TouchCoupler unit is not pushed all the way into the housing clip causing the unit to not be able to complete the inductive electrical connection; 
(viii) Unit not installed through the pit lid: the unit is not installed with the antenna positioned through the pit lid and properly secured with the retaining nut. The radio unit 
must also be securely attached to the antenna section; (ix) Radio unit not securely attached to the Antenna unit: The water-proof SmartPoint Module housing is not 
properly installed and secured to the antenna unit; (x) Damaged antenna: the unit’s antenna is damaged by intentional or unin tentional acts; (xi) Damaged radio package: 
the unit’s water-proof radio package is damaged by intentional or unintentional acts; (xii) Data Base errors: the unit is removed from the system but not updated in the 
database. Still shown as in the system when in fact has been removed; (xiii) Phantom Units: the unit is removed from the system but is still transmitting and being heard 
by the system; and (xiv) Other Installation Defect: the unit is otherwise installed improperly so that it does not communicate with the FlexNet Base Station. 

CC. “Updates” means releases of the Software that constitute a minor improvement in functionality. 
DD. “Upgrades” means releases of the Software which constitute a significant improvement in functionality or architecture of the Software. 
EE.  “WAN Backhaul” means the communication link between FlexNet Base Stations and Remote Transceivers and RNI. 

 

Page 93



 

 

 

 
CONFIDENTIAL │ Page 8 of 16 

Exhibit A 

Software 
 
 
Software as a Service 

I. Description of Services 
This exhibit contains the details of the Software as a Service that Sensus shall provide to Customer if both; (i) pricing for the application of Software as a Service has 
been provided to the Customer; and (ii) the Customer is current in its payments for such application of Software as a Service.  
A. Software as a Service Generally.  

Software as a Service is a managed service in which Sensus will be responsible for the day-to-day monitoring, maintenance, management, and supporting of 
Customer’s software applications. In a Software as a Service solution, Sensus owns all components of the solution (server hardware, storage, network 
equipment, Sensus software, and all third-party software) required to run and operate the application. These software applications consist of the following (each 
an “Application”):  

 Regional Network Interface (RNI) Software 

  Sensus Analytics 
o  Enhanced Package 

The managed application systems consist of the hardware, Sensus Software, and other third-party software that is required to operate the software applications. 
Each Application will have a production, and Disaster Recovery (as described below) environment.   Test environments are not provided unless otherwise 
specifically agreed by Sensus in writing. Sensus will manage the Applications by providing 24 x 7 x 365 monitoring of the availability and performance of the 
Applications.  

B. Usage License.  Subject to all the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Sensus hereby gives Customer a license under Sensus’ intellectual property rights to 
use the Sensus Applications for the Permitted Use for so long as Customer is current in its payments for the Applications (“Usage License”).  This Usage 
License shall commence on the Effective Date and shall terminate upon the earlier of; (i) the expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason; (ii) if 
Customer uses the Applications provided hereunder other than for the Permitted Use; and (iii) the Application is terminated as set forth below.   

C. Termination of Software as a Service.  Customer shall have the option at any time after full deployment but before the end of the Term to terminate any 
Application by giving Sensus one hundred twenty (120) days prior written notice.  Such notice, once delivered to Sensus, is irrevocable.  Should Customer elect 
to terminate any Application, Customer acknowledges that; (a) Customer shall pay all applicable fees, including any unpaid Software as a Service fees; and (b) 
Software as a Service for such Application shall immediately cease. If Customer elects to terminate the RNI Application in the Software as a Service environment 
but does not terminate the Agreement generally, then upon delivery of the notice to Sensus, Customer shall purchase the necessary (a) RNI hardware and (b) 
RNI software license, each at Sensus' then-current pricing.  No portion of the Software as a Service fees shall be applied to the purchase of the RNI hardware or 
software license.   

D. “Software as a Service” means only the following services:  
i. Sensus will provide the use of required hardware, located at Sensus’ or a third-party’s data center facility (as determined by Sensus), that is necessary 

to operate the Application.  
ii. Sensus will provide production and disaster recovery environments for Application. 
iii. Sensus will provide patches, updates, and upgrades to latest Sensus Hosted Software release. 
iv. Sensus will configure and manage the equipment (server hardware, routers, switches, firewalls, etc.) in the data centers: 

a. Network addresses and virtual private networks (VPN) 
b. Standard time source (NTP or GPS) 
c. Security access points 
d. Respond to relevant alarms and notifications 

v. Capacity and performance management.  Sensus will: 
a. Monitor capacity and performance of the Application server and software applications 24x7 using KPI metrics, thresholds, and alerts to 

proactively identify any potential issues related to system capacity and/or performance (i.e. database, backspool, logs, message broker 
storage, etc.) 

b. If an issue is identified to have a potential impact to the system, Sensus will open an incident ticket and manage the ticket through resolution 
per Exhibit B, Technical Support. 

c. Manage and maintain the performance of the server and perform any change or configuration to the server, in accordance to standard 
configuration and change management policies and procedures. 

d. Manage and maintain the server storage capacity and performance of the Storage Area Network (SAN), in accordance to standard 
configuration and change management policies and procedures. 

e. Exceptions may occur to the system that require Sensus to take immediate action to maintain the system capacity and performance levels, 
and Sensus has authority to make changes without Customer approval as needed, in accordance to standard configuration and change 
management policies and procedures. 

vi. Database management.  Sensus will: 
a. Define data retention plan and policy. 
b. Monitor space and capacity requirements. 
c. Respond to database alarms and notifications. 
d. Install database software upgrades and patches.  
e. Perform routine database maintenance and cleanup of database to improve capacity and performance, such as rebuilding indexes, updating 

indexes, consistency checks, run SQL query/agent jobs, etc. 
vii. Incident and Problem Management.  Sensus will: 

a. Proactively monitor managed systems (24x7x365) for key events and thresholds to proactively detect and identify incidents. 
b. Respond to incidents and problems that may occur to the Application(s). 
c. Maintain policies and procedures for responding to incidents and performing root cause analysis for ongoing problems.  
d. Correlate incidents and problems where applicable. 
e. Sensus personnel will use the Salesforce Self Service Portal to document and track incidents.  
f. In the event that a Sensus personnel is unable to resolve an issue, the issue will be escalated to the appropriate Subject Matter Expert 

(SME).   
g. Maintain responsibility for managing incident and problems through resolution and will coordinate with Customer’s personnel and/or any 

required third-party vendor to resolve the issue. 

Page 94



 

 

 

 
CONFIDENTIAL │ Page 9 of 16 

h. Provide telephone support consistent with Exhibit B, Technical Support in the case of undetected events. 
viii. Security Management.  Sensus will: 

a. Monitor the physical and cyber security of the server and Application(s) 24x7 to ensure system is highly secure in accordance with NIST 
Security Standards. 

b. Perform active intrusion prevention and detection of the data center network and firewalls, and monitor logs and alerts. 
c. Conduct period penetration testing of the network and data center facilities. 
d. Conduct monthly vulnerability scanning by both internal staff and external vendors. 
e. Perform Anti-Virus and Malware patch management on all systems. 
f. Install updates to virus protection software and related files (including Virus signature files and similar files) on all servers from the update 

being generally available from the anti-virus software provider. 
g. Respond to any potential threat found on the system and work to eliminate Virus or Malware found. 
h. Sensus adheres to and submits certification to NERC/CIP Cyber Security standards. 
i. Sensus actively participates/monitors industry regulation/standards regarding security – NERC, FERC, NIST, OpenSG, etc. through the 

dedicated Sensus Security team. 
j. Provide secure web portal access (SSL) to the Application(s). 

ix. Backup and Disaster Recovery Management.  Sensus will: 
a. Perform daily backups of data providing one (1) year of history for auditing and restoration purposes. 
b. Back-up and store data (on tapes or other storage media as appropriate) off-site to provide protection against disasters and to meet file 

recovery needs. 
c. Conduct incremental and full back-ups to capture data, and changes to data, on the Application(s). 
d. Sensus will replicate the Application(s) environments to a geographically separated data center location to provide a full disaster recovery 

environment for the Application production system. 
e. Provide disaster recovery environment and perform fail-over to DR environment within forty-eight (48) hours of declared event. 
f. Generate a report following each and any disaster measuring performance against the disaster recovery plan and identification of problem 

areas and plans for resolution. 
g. Maintain a disaster recovery plan.  In the event of a disaster, Sensus shall provide the services in accordance with the disaster recovery plan. 
h. In the case of a disaster and loss of access to or use of the Application, Sensus would use commercially reasonable efforts per the Recovery 

Time Objectives and Recovery Point Objectives specified herein to restore operations at the same location or at a backup location within 
forty-eight (48) hours.  

i. The Application shall have a Recovery Time Objective (RTO) of forty-eight (48) hours.   
j. The Recovery Point Objective (RPO) shall be a full recovery of the Application(s), with an RPO of one (1) hours, using no more than a twenty-

four (24) hour old backup.  All meter-related data shall be pushed from each Base Station/TGB restoring the database to real-time minus 
external interfaced systems from the day prior.   

k. Data from external interfaced systems shall be recreated within a forty-eight (48) hour period with the assistance of Customer personnel and 
staff, as needed. 

E. Customer Responsibilities:  
i. Coordinate and schedule any changes submitted by Sensus to the system in accordance with standard configuration and change management 

procedures. 
ii. Participate in all required configuration and change management procedures. 
iii. Customer will log incidents related to the managed Application with Sensus personnel via email, web portal ticket entry, or phone call. 
iv. Responsible for periodic processing of accounts or readings (i.e. billing files) for Customer’s billing system for billing or other analysis purposes. 
v. Responsible for any field labor to troubleshoot any SmartPoint modules or smart meters in the field in populations that have been previously deployed 

and accepted. 
vi. First response labor to troubleshoot FlexNet Base Station, Echo Transceivers, Remote Transceivers or other field network equipment. 
vii. Responsible for local area network configuration, management, and support. 
viii. Identify and research problems with meter reads and meter read performance. 
ix. Create and manage user accounts. 
x. Customize application configurations. 
xi. Support application users. 
xii. Investigate application operational issues (e.g. meter reads, reports, alarms, etc.). 
xiii. Respond to alarms and notifications. 
xiv. Perform firmware upgrades over-the-air, or delegate and monitor field personnel for on-site upgrades. 

 
F. “Software as a Service” does not include any of the following services:  

i. Parts or labor required to repair damage to any field network equipment that is the result of a Force Majeure event. 
ii. Any integration between applications, such as Harris MeterSense, would require a Professional Services contract agreement to be scoped, submitted, 

and agreed in a signed writing between Sensus and all the applicable parties.   
 

 If an item is not listed in subparagraphs in item (D) above, such item is excluded from the Software as a Service and is subject to additional pricing. 
 

II. Further Agreements  
A. System Uptime Rate  

i. Sensus (or its contractor) shall manage and maintain the Application(s) on computers owned or controlled by Sensus (or its contractors) and shall 
provide Customer access to the managed Application(s) via internet or point to point connection (i.e., Managed-Access use), according to the terms 
below. Sensus endeavors to maintain an average System Uptime Rate equal to ninety-nine (99.0) per Month (as defined below).  The System Uptime 
Rate, cumulative across all Applications, shall be calculated as follows: 

System Uptime Rate =  100  x    (TMO – Total Non-Scheduled Downtime minutes in the Month)                

                                   TMO 

i. Calculations 
a. “Targeted Minutes of Operation” or “TMO” means total minutes cumulative across all Applications in the applicable month (“Month”) 

minus the Scheduled Downtime in the Month.  

Page 95



 

 

 

 
CONFIDENTIAL │ Page 10 of 16 

b. “Scheduled Downtime” means the number of minutes during the Month, as measured by Sensus, in which access to any Application is 
scheduled to be unavailable for use by Customer due to planned system maintenance.  Sensus shall provide Customer notice (via email or 
otherwise) at least seven (7) days in advance of commencement of the Scheduled Downtime.   

c. “Non-Scheduled Downtime” means the number of minutes during the Month, as measured by Sensus, in which access to any Application is 
unavailable for use by Customer due to reasons other than Scheduled Downtime or the Exceptions, as defined below (e.g., due to a need for 
unplanned maintenance or repair).   

ii. Exceptions. “Exceptions” mean the following events: 
a. Force Majeure; 
b. Emergency Work, as defined below; and 
c. Lack of Internet Availability, as described below.   

i. Emergency Work.  In the event that Force Majeure, emergencies, dangerous conditions or other exceptional circumstances arise or continue during 
TMO, Sensus shall be entitled to take any actions that Sensus, in good faith, determines is necessary or advisable to prevent, remedy, mitigate, or 
otherwise address actual or potential harm, interruption, loss, threat, security or like concern to any of the Application(s) (“Emergency Work”).   Such 
Emergency Work may include, but is not limited to: analysis, testing, repair, maintenance, re-setting and other servicing of the hardware, cabling, 
networks, software and other devices, materials and systems through which access to and/or use of the Application(s) by the Customer is made 
available (the “Managed Systems”). Sensus shall endeavor to provide advance notice of such Emergency Work to Customer when practicable and 
possible.  

ii. Lack of Internet Availability. Sensus shall not be responsible for any deterioration of performance attributable to latencies in the public internet or 
point-to-point network connection operated by a third party. Customer expressly acknowledges and agrees that Sensus does not and cannot control the 
flow of data to or from Sensus’ networks and other portions of the Internet, and that such flow depends in part on the performance of Internet services 
provided or controlled by third parties, and that at times, actions or inactions of such third parties can impair or disrupt data transmitted through, and/or 
Customer’s connections to, the Internet or point-to-point data connection (or portions thereof). Although Sensus will use commercially reasonable 
efforts to take actions Sensus may deem appropriate to mitigate the effects of any such events, Sensus cannot guarantee that such events will not 
occur. Accordingly, Sensus disclaims any and all liability resulting from or relating to such events. 

B. Data Center Site-Security.  Although Sensus may modify such security arrangements without consent or notice to Customer, Customer acknowledges the 
following are the current arrangements regarding physical access to and support of the primary hardware components of the Managed Systems:  

i. The computer room(s) in which the hardware is installed is accessible only to authorized individuals. 
ii. Power infrastructure includes one or more uninterruptible power supply (UPS) devices and diesel generators or other alternative power for back-up 

electrical power.  
iii. Air-conditioning facilities (for humidity and temperature controls) are provided in or for such computer room(s) and can be monitored and adjusted for 

humidity and temperature settings and control. Such air systems are supported by redundant, back-up and/or switch-over environmental units.  
iv. Such electrical and A/C systems are monitored on an ongoing basis and personnel are available to respond to system emergencies (if any) in real time. 
v. Dry pipe pre-action fire detection and suppression systems are provided. 
vi. Data circuits are available via multiple providers and diverse paths, giving access redundancy. 

C. Responsibilities of Customer  
i. Customer shall promptly pay all Software as a Service fees.   
ii. Customer may not (i) carelessly, knowingly, intentionally or maliciously threaten, disrupt, harm, abuse or interfere with the Application(s), Managed 

Systems or any of their functionality, performance, security or integrity, nor attempt to do so; (ii) impersonate any person or entity, including, but not 
limited to, Sensus, a Sensus employee or another user; or (iii) forge, falsify, disguise or otherwise manipulate any identification information associated 
with Customer’s access to or use of the Application(s).  

iii. The provisioning, compatibility, operation, security, support, and maintenance of Customer’s hardware and software (“Customer’s Systems”) is 
exclusively the responsibility of Customer. Customer is also responsible, in particular, for correctly configuring and maintaining (i) the desktop 
environment used by Customer to access the Application(s) managed by Sensus; and (ii) Customer’s network router and firewall, if applicable, to allow 
data to flow between the Customer’s Systems and Sensus’ Managed Systems in a secure manner via the public Internet.  

iv. Upon receiving the system administrator account from Sensus, Customer shall create username and passwords for each of Customer’s authorized 
users and complete the applicable Sensus registration process (“Authorized Users”). Such usernames and passwords will allow Authorized Users to 
access the Application(s). Customer shall be solely responsible for maintaining the security and confidentiality of each user ID and password pair 
associated with Customer’s account, and Sensus will not be liable for any loss, damage or liability arising from Customer’s account or any user ID and 
password pairs associated with Customer. Customer is fully responsible for all acts and omissions that occur through the use of Customer’s account 
and any user ID and password pairs. Customer agrees (i) not to allow anyone other than the Authorized Users to have any access to, or use of 
Customer’s account or any user ID and password pairs at any time; (ii) to notify Sensus immediately of any actual or suspected unauthorized use of 
Customer’s account or any of such user ID and password pairs, or any other breach or suspected breach of security, restricted use or confidentiality; 
and (iii) to take the Sensus-recommended steps to log out from and otherwise exit the Application(s) and Managed Systems at the end of each session. 
Customer agrees that Sensus shall be entitled to rely, without inquiry, on the validity of the user accessing the Application(s) application through 
Customer’s account, account ID, usernames or passwords.  

v. Customer shall be responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Application(s) and AMI System.  This includes, without limitation, (i) researching 
problems with meter reads and system performance, (ii) creating and managing user accounts, (iii) customizing application configurations, (iv) 
supporting application users, (v) investigating application operational issues, (vi) responding to alarms and notifications, and (vii) performing over-the-air 
commands (such as firmware updates or configuration changes). 

 

III. Sensus Analytics  
A. Essential Package.  The Essential Package of the Sensus Analytics Application shall consist of the following modules: 

i. Device Access 
a. Allows search for meter details by using data imported from the Billing system or the Sensus Device ID or AMI ID. 
b. Allows a view of the meter interval or register reads. 
c. Meter data is available to be copied, printed, or saved to certain user programs or file formats, specifically CSV, PDF, and Spreadsheet. 
d. Allows the current and historical data to be viewed. 
e. Allows the current usage to be compared to historical distribution averages. 
f. Allows the user to see the meter location on a map view. 
g. Allows notifications for an event on a single meter to be forwarded to a Customer employee. 
h. Allows details to be viewed about a meter – (dependent on the data integrated from other systems). 

ii. Meter Insight (provides the following) 

Page 96



 

 

 

 
CONFIDENTIAL │ Page 11 of 16 

a. # of active meters. 
b. # of orphaned meters with drill down to the list of meters. 
c. # of  inactive meters with drill down to the list of meters. 
d. # of stale meters with drill down to the list of meters. 
e. # of almost stale meters with drill down to the list of meters. 
f. # of meters where no read is available with drill down to the list of meters. 
g. # of meters with high threshold exceptions with drill down to the list of meters. 
h. # of unknown radios with drill down to the list of meters. 

iii. Report Access 
a. Allows the user to see meter alarms and choose a report from a list of standard reports. 
b. Master Route Register Reads:  Shows the latest reads for all meters within specified time window. 
c. Meter Route Intervals Reads:  Allows users to inspect intervals of a single meter over a period of time. 
d. Master Route No Readings:  List all meters that are active in the system, but have not been sending reads within the specified time window. 
e. Consumption Report:  List meters’ consumption based on meter readings within the specified time window. 
f. Zero Consumption for Period:  List meters whose readings do not change over a period of time. 
g. Negative Consumption:  Shows the number of occurrences and readings of negative consumption for the last 24hr, 48hr and 72hr from the 

entered roll up date. 
h. High Low Exception Report:  Displays meters whose reads exceed minimum or/and maximum threshold, within a time range. 
i. Consumption vs Previous Reported Read:  Compares latest reading (from RNI) with last known read received from CIS. 
j. Consumption Exception 24 hour Report:  This report shows meters that satisfy these two conditions: (1) The daily average consumptions 

exceed entered “daily consumption threshold;” (2) The number of days when daily thresholds are exceeded are greater than the entered “
exception per day threshold.” 

k. Endpoint Details:  Shows the current state of meters that are created within the specified time range. 
l. Orphaned Meters:  List meters that are marked as ‘orphaned’, which are created as of entered “Created as of” parameter.  
m. Billing Request Mismatch:  Displays meters in a billing request that have different AMR id with the ones sent by RNI. It also shows AMR id in 

billing request that have different meter Id in the RNI. 
n. Users need to enter which billing request file prior to running the report. 
o. Alarms Report:  List all alarms occurred during a time window. Users can select which alarm to show. 

iv. Billing Access 
a. Initiate the creation of billing export files formatted to the import needs of the billing system. 
b. Receive billing request files from the billing system to identify what meters to include in the billing export file in the case where billing request 

file option is used.  
c. Provides a repository of past billing files that were either used for billing preparation or actually send to the billing system. 
d. Will store created billing files for a period of three years unless otherwise denoted. 
e. The system will allow creation of test files before export to the billing system. 

v. Billing Adaptor 
a. The underlying configurator and tools mapping the extraction of billing data to enable integration to the utility’s billing system. 

vi. Data Store 
a. Allows storage of meter reading data including Intervals, Registers, and Alarms to be stored. 
b. Stored data is available online for reports and analysis. 
c. Data will be retained for 3 years. Additional duration can be purchased. 

B. Enhanced Package.  The Enhanced Package shall consist of the modules listed above in the Essential Package, as well as the following additional modules:  
i. Alarm Dashboard 

a. Allows the user to summarize and filter alarms by a date range. 
b. Allows the user to review all alarm types on a single screen. 
c. The user can filter out the alarms not wanted on the screen. 
d. Alarm totals can be visualized. 
e. Adds a view of trending alarms over time. 
f. Click to drill down on an alarm to gain more information on specific events. 
g. Click to analyze a specific event on a particular device. 

ii. Alarm Console 
a. Follow real time monitors of the alarms coming from Customer’s meters. 
b. Provides a single view for all alarms across the entire network. 
c. Allows the user to view trending of each alarm over time. 

iii. Alert Manager  
a. Allows creation of alert groups who will be notified when an alarm occurs. 
b. Users can manage alert groups by adding and removing group members. 
c. Allows selection of notification method for how end users in the group will be notified; email or SMS (text message). 
d. Allows creation of an alert from the available system events from smart points and assign to a group. 
e. Monitors the systems meters for events.  When an event is triggered, all users in the group will be notified. 

D. Integration of Sensus Analytics.  Sensus shall provide integration support services to Customer only to the extent specifically provided below:  
i. Sensus shall provide Customer with a simple flat file specification known as VFlex for the integration of the Customer’s back office system to the 

Sensus Analytics modules. This flat file may be delimited or fixed width. This specification allows Customer to transmit each day or as needed: the 
devices and end users in the system, end user status, end user account information, end user name, and other end user details.  When sent to the 
Sensus FTP servers, this file exchange will enable the system to become operational with the Customer’s systems.  Customer shall produce this file 
and transmit it to the FTP location designated by Sensus. Sensus will provide reasonable support to explain to Customer the required vs. optional fields 
that are in the specification, testing and validation of the file format and content. 

a. In scope of the included integration efforts is the mapping the Customer’s fields to the VFlex specification. 
b. Out of scope and subject to additional charges will be the transformation of data where business logic including code must be written to 

modify the field content or format of the data to meet the VFlex specification.  
ii. Sensus’ integration services consists of four (4) hours of assistance (remote or on-site, as determined by Sensus).  If additional time is needed to 

complete the integration efforts, Sensus shall invoice Customer for additional fees on an actual time and materials basis.   

Page 97



 

 

 

 
CONFIDENTIAL │ Page 12 of 16 

iii. If an item is not listed in subparagraphs (i) or (ii) above, such item is excluded from the integration of Sensus Analytics Support and is 
subject to additional pricing. 

E. Data Import.  The Sensus Analytics Application contains adapters for the import of data from; (a) Customer’s FlexNet AMI System; and/or (b) AutoRead 
application for handheld and drive by systems, as applicable.   

F. Customer Acknowledgements. 
i. Customer acknowledges that the Sensus Analytics Application provides up to fifty (50) user logins for Customer’s use. 
ii. Customer acknowledges and agrees the Sensus Analytics Application is based upon the actual number of End Users within Customer’s Service 

Territory.  Pricing may increase if Customer’s Service Territory or actual number of End Users expands.       
iii. Customer acknowledges that all data related to the Sensus Analytics Applications is geographically hosted within the United States of America. 

Customer accepts the geographic location of such hosting, and indemnifies Sensus for any claims resulting therefrom.  
iv. Customer acknowledges and agrees that the Intellectual Property provisions of this Agreement apply in all respects to Customer’s access to and use of 

the Sensus Analytics Applications.   
v. Customer is responsible for validating the data analyzed by the Sensus Analytics Applications.  Sensus makes no promises of improving Customer’s 

operations or saving Customer money, nor is Sensus liable for any damages resulting from decisions made by Customer related to Customer’s use of 
Sensus Analytics.  

 

IV. Third Party Software. 
A.  RedHat Linux.  If Sensus is providing Customer with a license to use RedHat Linux Software, Customer agrees to the following: 

By entering into this Agreement, Customer agrees to abide by and to be legally bound by the terms and conditions of the Red Hat End User License 
Agreements identified below, each of which are incorporated into this Agreement by reference and are available at the websites identified below.  Please 
read the Red Hat End User License Agreements and incorporated references carefully. 

Subscription:                                          End User License Agreement: 
Red Hat Enterprise Linux                       http://www.redhat.com/licenses/rhel_rha_eula.html 
JBoss Enterprise Middleware                 http://www.redhat.com/licenses/jboss_eula.html 

 
 
 
 

Page 98



 

 

 

 
CONFIDENTIAL │ Page 13 of 16 

Exhibit B 

Technical Support 

1. Introduction 

Sensus Technical Services provides utility customers with a single point of contact for Tier 1 support of technical issues as well as any coordination of additional 
resources required to resolve the issue. Requests that require specialized skills are to be forwarded to a senior support engineer or Technical Advisor within the 
team for further analysis. If Technical Services has exhausted all troubleshooting efforts for the product type, the issue will escalate to the Engineering Support 
Team. Occasionally, on-site troubleshooting/analysis may be required. The preferred order of on-site support is: 

a) The Customer (for assistance with the easiest and lowest time-consuming activities such as power on/power off). 

b) The local distributor. 

c) Sensus employees or contracted personnel, if required to fulfill a contract commitment. 

2. Support Categories 

2.1. General questions regarding functionality, use of product, how-to, and requests for assistance on Sensus AMR, AMI, RF Network Equipment, Metering 
Products and Sensus Lighting Control. 

2.2. Proactive reporting and resolution of problems. 

2.3. Reactive reporting to isolate, document, and solve reported hardware/software defects. 

2.4. Responding to service requests and product changes. 

2.5. Addressing customer inquiries with printed or electronic documentation, examples, or additional explanation/clarification. 

3. Support Hours 

3.1. Standard Support Hours: Toll-free telephone support (1-800-638-3748 option #2) is available Monday thru Friday from 8:00AM EST to 8:00PM EST. After-
hours, holiday and weekend support for Severity 1 and Severity 2 issues is available by calling 1-800-638-3748, option #8.  

4. Support Procedures 

4.1. Customer identifies an issue or potential problem and calls Technical Services at 1-800-638-3748 Option #2. The Customer Service Associate or Technical 
Support Engineer will submit a Support ticket. 

4.2. The Customer Service Associate or Technical Support Engineer will identify the caller name and utility by the assigned software serial number, city, and state 
in which the call originated. The nature of the problem and severity levels will be agreed upon by both parties (either at the time the issue is entered or prior to 
upgrading or downgrading an existing issue) using the severity definitions below as a guideline. The severity level is then captured into a support ticket for 
creation and resolution processing. Any time during the processing of this ticket, if the severity level is changed by Sensus, the customer will be updated. 

Severity Levels Description: 

Sev1 Customer’s production system is down. The system is unusable resulting in total disruption of work. No workaround is available and requires 
immediate attention. 

Example: Network mass outage, all reading collection devices inoperable, inoperable head end software (e.g., RNI Software, Sensus MDM). 

Sev2 Major system feature/function failure. Operations are severely restricted; there is a major disruption of work, no acceptable work-around is 
available, and failure requires immediate attention.  

Examples: Network equipment failure (e.g., FlexNet Echo, FlexNet Remote, Base Station transceiver, or VGB); inoperable reading devices (e.g., 
AR5500, VXU, VGB, or CommandLink); head end software application has important functionality not working and cannot create export file for billing 
system operations. 

Sev3  The system is usable and the issue doesn’t affect critical overall operation. 

Example: Minor network equipment failure (e.g., Echo/Remote false alarms or Base Station transceiver false alarms); head end software application 
operable but reports are not running properly, modification of view or some non-critical function of the software is not running. 

Sev4 Minor system issues, questions, new features, or enhancement requests to be corrected in future versions. 

Examples: Minor system issues, general questions, and “How-To” questions.  

4.3. The Customer Service Associate or Technical Support Engineer identifies whether or not the customer is on support. If the customer is not on support, the 
customer is advised of the service options as well as any applicable charges that may be billed. 

4.4.  Calls are placed in a queue from which they are accessible to Technical Support Engineers on a first-come-first-serve basis. A first level Customer Service 
Associate may assist the customer, depending on the difficulty of the call and the representative’s technical knowledge. Technical Support Engineers (Tier 1 
support) typically respond/resolve the majority of calls based on their product knowledge and experience. A call history for the particular account is researched 
to note any existing pattern or if the call is a new report. This research provides the representative a basis and understanding of the account as well as any 
associated problems and/or resolutions that have been communicated. 

a. Technical Services confirms that there is an issue or problem that needs further analysis to determine its cause. The following information must be 
collected: a detailed description of the issue’s symptoms, details on the software/hardware product and version, a description of the environment in 
which the issue arises, and a list of any corrective action already taken. 

b. Technical Services will check the internal database and product defect tracking system, to see if reports of a similar problem exist, and if any working 
solutions were provided. If an existing resolution is found that will address the reported issue, it shall be communicated to the customer. Once it is 
confirmed that the issue has been resolved, the ticket is closed. 

c. If there is no known defect or support that defines the behavior, Technical Services will work with the customer to reproduce the issue. If the issue can 
be reproduced, either at the customer site or within support center test lab, Technical Services will escalate the ticket for further investigation / resolution. 

If the issue involves units that are considered to be defective with no known reason, the representative will open a Special Investigation RMA through the 
Support system. If it is determined that a sample is required for further analysis, the customer will be provided with instructions that detail where to send the 
product sample(s) for a root cause analysis. Once it is determined that the issue cannot be resolved by Tier 1 resources, the ticket will be escalated to Tier 2 
support for confirmation/workarounds to resolve immediate issue. Technical Services will immediately contact the customer to advise of the escalation. The 
response and escalation times are listed in Section 5. At this time, screen shots, log files, configuration files, and database backups will be created and 
attached to the ticket. 

Page 99



 

 

 

 
CONFIDENTIAL │ Page 14 of 16 

5. Response and Resolution Targets. 

Sensus Technical Support will make every reasonable effort to meet the following response and resolution targets: 

Severity 
Standard Target 

Response 
Standard Target Resolution Resolution (one or more of the following) 

1 30 Minutes 

Immediately assign trained and qualified 
Services Staff to correct the error on an 
expedited basis. Provide ongoing 
communication on the status of a 
correction. 

 Satisfactory workaround is provided. 

 Program patch is provided. 

 Fix incorporated into future release. 

 Fix or workaround incorporated into the Support 
Knowledge Base. 

2 4 hours 
Assign trained and qualified Services 
Staff to correct the error. Provide 
communication as updates occur. 

 Satisfactory workaround is provided. 

 Program patch is provided. 

 Fix incorporated into future release. 

 Fix or workaround incorporated into the Support 
Knowledge Base. 

3 1 Business Day 90 business days 

 Answer to question is provided. 

 Satisfactory workaround is provided. 

 Fix or workaround incorporated into the Support 
Knowledge Base. 

 Fix incorporated into future release. 

4 2 Business Days 12 months 

 Answer to question is provided. 

 Fix or workaround incorporated into the Support 
Knowledge Base. 

6. Problem Escalation Process. 

6.1. If the normal support process does not produce the desired results, or if the severity has changed, the issue may be escalated as follows to a higher level of 
authority. 

6.1.1. Severity 1 issues are escalated by Sales or Technical Services to a Supervisor if not resolved within 2 hours; to the Manager level if not 
resolved within 4 hours; to the Director level if not resolved within the same business day; and to the VP level if not resolved within 24 hours. 

6.1.2. A customer may escalate an issue by calling 1-800-638-3748, Option 2. Please specify the Support ticket number and the reason why the 
issue is being escalated. 

6.1.3. In the event that a customer is not satisfied with the level of support or continual problem with their products, they may escalate a given 
Support ticket to Manager of Technical Services (1-800-638-3748, Option 2). 

7. General Support Provisions and Exclusions. 

7.1. Sensus provides online documentation for Sensus products through the Sensus User Forum (http://myflexnetsystem.com/Module/User/Login). All Sensus 
customers are provided access to this online database, which includes operation, configuration and technical manuals. Sensus also hosts periodic user group 
teleconferences to facilitate the interchange of product ideas, product enhancements, and overall customer experiences. The customer shall provide names 
and email accounts to Sensus so Sensus may provide access to the Portal. 

7.2. Specialized support from Sensus is available on a fee basis to address support issues outside the scope of this support plan or if not covered under another 
specific maintenance contract. For example, specialized systems integration services or out of warranty network equipment repair that is not covered under a 
separate maintenance contract. 

Page 100



 

 

 

 
CONFIDENTIAL │ Page 15 of 16 

 Exhibit C 

Pricing 
 

Assumptions: 
1. Assume Agreement is signed prior to June 30, 2016, otherwise Sensus reserves right to adjust pricing. 
2. Phase 1 – System Availability is later of May 1, 2016 or Agreement Effective Date.   
3. Annual Services will be invoiced on January 1st of each year. The first year’s annual fees will be prorated to the months left from Effective Date to 

end of current calendar year. Payment for 2017 annual fees will be due on Jan 1st 2017. 
4. All annual Fees are subject to a 3% annual increase over prior year 
5. Pricing valid up to 28,000 Field Devices;pricing subject to change if Customer exceeds 28,000 Field Devices.   

 

 

Sensus Analytics Pricing 

Description  Price 

1. Sensus Analytics suite Enhanced - Annual Fee (up to 28K endpoints)  
Includes: Device Access, Meter Insight, Report Access, Billing Access, Billing 
Adapter, Alarm Dashboard, Alert Manager, Water Insight and Data Store. 

 

$8,321.25 
(Prorated May 1st  –  

Dec 31st 2016, subject to change based on 
Effective Date) 

 

2. Sensus Analytics Enhanced suite Platform Setup 
  $4,000.00 

3. System setup of Sensus Analytics suite with utility back office for standard configuration. 
$0.00 

4. 1 day of Education and Training Services.  Access to all online education material for 
self-paced training.   

$1,500.00 

5. Block of 6,000 text messages. 
$600.00 

Total Price (Year 1) $14,421.25 

  

Ongoing Support & Maintenance Fees (Begin January 1, 2017) 

Description  Price 

1. Sensus Analytics suite Enhanced - Annual Fee (up to 28K endpoints)  
Includes: Device Access, Meter Insight, Report Access, Billing Access, Billing 
Adapter, Alarm Dashboard, Alert Manager, Water Insight and Data Store 

 

$14,692.95 

2. Annual Block of 6k Text messages 
$600.00 

Annual / Ongoing Fees $15,292.95 

 

Sensus Regional Network Interface (RNI) Upgrade Pricing 

Description  Price 

1. Sensus RNI Annual Service (28K Endpoints) 
Includes: Software as a Service (SaaS)  

$10,371.67 
(Prorated May 1st 2016 – Dec 31st 2015) 

 

2. Sensus RNI SaaS Setup Fee 
$4,500.00 

3. RNI 1.x upgrade to 3.x training (2 day class onsite) 
$4,000.00 

 
 

Total Price (Year 1) $18,871.67 

  

Ongoing Support & Maintenance Fees (begin January 1, 2017) 

Description Price 

1. Sensus RNI Annual Service (28K Endpoints) 
Includes: Software as a Service (SaaS) All annual Fees are subject to a 3% annual 
increase over prior year (This amount due Jan. 1st, 2017) 

$18,313.40 

 

Page 101



 

 

 

 
CONFIDENTIAL │ Page 16 of 16 

Base Station Upgrade Requirements Pricing 

Description  Price 

1. Two Transceiver PCS 50 kHz Repair kits 
 

 

$7,000.00 

2. Project Management Services 
$1,500.00 

 Pricing includes standard installation of GPS on the base station, which requires a 360 degree view of the horizon with no overhead 
obstructions.  

 Any additional cable runs for GPS installation outside of the standard installation are not included and require a special quote.  

 One project management fee is required for each utility location and includes up to two transceiver installations per utility.  

 Field replaced transceivers must go through Sensus’ Returned Material Authorization (RMA) process and returned to Sensus. All 
transceivers must be received no later than 45 days after base station certification is complete. The customer will be invoiced the full list 
price of the new transceiver if it is not received within the 45-day timeline.  

 The customer is responsible for RMA transceiver freight.  

 Discounts take effect September 1, 2015 and will remain in effect through June 30, 2016. All orders must be received by June 30, 2016.  
 

Total Price  $8,500.00 
 
 

Payment Terms 

Escalation.  Customer shall pay for all goods and services rendered by Sensus hereunder at the prices set forth in this Exhibit C (or in the Quote if one is referenced on the first 
page. If there is a Quote referenced on the first page, such Quote is incorporated into this Exhibit C by reference).  The pricing in Exhibit C shall remain firm until the Trigger Date 
(as defined on the first page of the Agreement). Starting on the Trigger Date, and on each anniversary of the Trigger Date thereafter, the pricing in Exhibit C shall automatically 
adjust to equal the summation of (i) the amount charged for such pricing component during the immediately preceding year ( “Base Amount”); plus (ii) the product of the Base 
Amount multiplied by the percentage rate of increase in the Escalator(s) during the immediately preceding year (which product shall not be less than zero, such that the pricing in 
Exhibit C cannot decrease under this section).  The Escalator(s) will be calculated utilizing the Escalator(s) published the month prior to the anniversary of the Trigger Date 
compared to the equivalent month from one year earlier to determine the escalation.  For example, if the Trigger Date occurs in January 2015, the Escalator(s) will be calculated by 
comparing December 2013 and December 2014 figures.  

Equipment.  Invoices for all Field Devices, RF Field Equipment, Server Hardware and any other goods sold by Sensus hereunder shall be delivered along with the relevant goods.  

Third Party Devices.  In cases where Customer requests or requires Sensus to deliver SmartPoint Modules to a third party meter manufacturer (or any other third party), payment 
for such modules is due within thirty (30) days of the invoice date to such manufacturer or other third party, irrespective of how long it takes such third party to deliver the 
SmartPoint Modules to Customer. 

Services.  Invoices for Ongoing Fees and services shall be delivered annually or monthly, as applicable, in advance.  Invoices for other services shall be delivered upon completion 
of the applicable service.   

Invoices and Payment.  Customer shall pay all invoices within thirty (30) days of the invoice date.  Sensus reserves the right to establish credit limits for Customer and may require 
full or partial payment prior to shipment of any goods or commencement of any services provided hereunder.  All payments shal l be made via electronic payment to the account(s) 
indicated by Sensus from time to time, unless Sensus requests a change in payment methods in writing. 

Late Payments.  Any invoices not disputed in good faith by Customer which Customer does not pay within the time provided in this Agreement shall bear interest at the lower of (i) 
one and a half percent (1.5%) per month up to a maximum of eighteen percent (18%) per year; or (ii) the highest rate permitted by applicable law (collectively, “Interest Rate”). 

Disputed Invoices.  If Customer disputes an invoice, it shall give written notice of the dispute to Sensus within 30 days of the invoice date.  I f it does not do so, the entire invoice 
shall be deemed payable without reduction, set off, or claim.  If Customer gives written notice of the dispute within the required thirty (30) days, it shall, at such time as the notice is 
given, pay the undisputed amount of the invoice and the disputed portion shall be resolved by the parties or, if necessary, under the dispute resolution provisions of this Agreement.  
If it is ultimately determined that some or all of the disputed amount was payable, that amount shall bear interest from the original due date until Customer pays it at the Interest 
Rate 

Withholding.  Customer may withhold payment on an invoice for defective goods and services.  Payment by Customer of an invoice shall deem Sensus to have fully complied with 
this Agreement for all goods and services represented in the invoice and with all other terms and conditions of this Agreement prior to the date of such payment 

Taxes.  All prices quoted are exclusive of federal, state and municipal taxes. Customer shall be liable for all sales, use and other taxes (whether local, state or federal) imposed on 
this Agreement or the goods, services, licenses, and/or other rights provided to Customer hereunder.   

Delivery and Packaging.  Customer shall pay for delivery of the Equipment from Sensus’ or Sensus’ contracted manufacturers’ factory to  Customer’s warehouse.  Sensus 
reserves the right to select the manner in which Equipment is packaged. Quoted prices include regular packing.  Special requirements for packing will be subject to extra charges.  
Shipping and completion dates quoted by Sensus are made in good faith but are not guaranteed.  

Address for Purchase Orders.  All purchase orders shall be sent to the address listed below.  Sensus may change this address at any time, upon written notice to the Customer 
(such notice may be provided via email). 

Sensus USA Inc. 
PO Box 487 
Uniontown, PA 15401 
Attn  Customer Service 
Fax: 800-888-2403 
Email: icon.support@sensus.com 

 

 

Page 102



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

7. Approve the final extensions of the contracts for Geotechnical and Environmental Engineering Services. 
  

Page 103



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: May 18, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:             Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       

       OTHER 
  

 

SUBJECT: GEOTECHNICAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 
  

REQUEST: APPROVE THE FINAL EXTENSION OF THE CONTRACT FOR GEOTECHNICAL 

AND ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING SERVICES WITH ARDAMAN AND 

ASSOCIATES, INC. AND UNIVERSAL ENGINEERING SCIENCES FOR A PERIOD 

OF ONE YEAR 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

On April 16, 2014, the City Council awarded Geotechnical and Environmental Engineering Services 

Contract to Ardaman and Associates, Inc., and one to Universal Engineering Sciences.  The consulting 

services contracts were effective for one year (beginning June 1, 2014) and are subject to renewal for two 

one-year extensions.  The services are performed on an as needed basis.  This is the second and final 

extension request for each contract. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

On an as needed basis.    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve the final extension of the contracts for the consulting services for Geotechnical and 

Environmental Engineering Services with Ardaman and Associates, Inc. and Universal Engineering 

Sciences, for one year, at the same unit rate. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director   

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

 

Page 104



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

8. Award the perimeter boundary clearing of the Golden Gem property to The Collage Companies. 
  

Page 105



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: May 18, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       SJRWMD MOA 

       OTHER: 
  

 

SUBJECT: GOLDEN GEM PROPERTY SITE PERIMETER CLEARING FOR THE 

ERECTION OF A PERIMETER BOUNDARY FENCE. 

 

REQUEST: APPROVE THE COLLAGE COMPANIES TO PERFORM THE GOLDEN GEM 

PROPERTY SITE PERIMETER CLEARING FOR THE ERECTION OF A 

PERIMETER FENCE IN THE AMOUNT OF $17,200. 
  
SUMMARY: 

On September 9, 2015, the City Council approved the bid from The Collage Companies for the excavation 

and purchase of surplus dirt from the Golden Gem property for the purpose of building a reclaimed water 

storage pond.  As a condition of the land purchase from the St. Johns River Water Management District in 

the Memorandum of Agreement, the City is to erect a perimeter fence on the property boundaries.  Staff 

has obtained a proposal from The Collage Companies to perform the perimeter site clearing of the property.  

Staff requests approval to award the property boundary perimeter site clearing to The Collage Companies 

in the amount of $17,200. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Fund 403 Reclaimed Water Impact Fees in the amount of $17,200, this is not in the budget, will require a 

budget amendment.    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve the award of the perimeter boundary clearing of the Golden Gem property to The Collage 

Companies in the amount of $17,200. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

9. Award a contract to Dell Financial Services for the lease of Police Department laptops. 
  

Page 117



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

   X    CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: May 18, 2016 
___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:  Information Technology       
       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:    Lease Agreement 
      OTHER:   

  
 

SUBJECT: LEASE AGREEMENT WITH DELL FINANCIAL SERVICES FOR NEW LAPTOPS. 
 
REQUEST: AUTHORIZE THE LEASE AGREEMENT WITH DELL FOR THE REPLACEMENT OF 

40 LAPTOPS FOR THE POLICE DEPARTMENT. 
  
SUMMARY: 
The Information Technology Department maintains a fleet of over 100 laptops and tablets for the Police 
Department of which 70% were purchased between April of 2010 and January of 2011.  The laptops are 
subjected to extreme duty on a daily basis and are well out of their warranty coverage.  The majority of the 
repairs including hardware failures require the main boards to be replaced at a minimum cost of $250.00 
per incident.   
 
By leasing the laptops we can predict our laptop budget requests year after year and ensure the technology 
is updated on a three year basis.  The laptops will have a full warranty throughout the lease to include 
accidental damage.  In FY14/15 we were able to replace 20 of the old laptops with newer technology.  With 
approval of this lease agreement we will replace 40 laptops this fiscal year and will request an additional 
three year lease agreement in FY16/17 for the remaining 40 laptops.  Lastly, we would request to enter into 
a third lease agreement in FY17/18 to replace the 20 machines obtained in FY14/15.  In the future, this will 
put us in a manageable position of replacing approximately 33% of the laptop fleet each year with new 
technology.  The annual laptop budget for the Police Department can be maintained for under $35,000.00 
per year once the three lease agreements are in place. 
 
The Information Technology Department is striving to implement an IT Asset Lifecycle Management Plan.  
In the past, there has been little effort to analyze the business impacts that technology changes have on the 
quality, reliability and efficiency of the organization.  Meeting that challenge systematically through 
Lifecycle Management can lead to improvements in efficiency, performance and cost management. 

      
FUNDING SOURCE: 

Included in the 2015/2016 FY Information Technology budget.    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
Authorize the 3 year lease agreement with Dell Financial Services for 40 laptops with an annual cost of 
$13,105.59, ($39,316.77 three year cost) for the Police Department. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

10. Award a contract for CMAR Preconstruction Services to Garney Construction Company. 
  

Page 124



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: May 18, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:      Agreement 

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: CONSTRUCTION MANAGER-AT-RISK (CMAR) PRECONSTRUCTION 

SERVICES CONTRACT WITH GARNEY CONSTRUCTION COMPANY FOR 

THE WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY EXPANSION 

 

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO SIGN THE CONTRACT FOR 

CMAR PRECONSTRUCTION SERVICES WITH GARNEY CONSTRUCTION 

COMPANY FOR THE WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY EXPANSION IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $422,000. 

  
SUMMARY: 

On April 7, 2016, the City received qualifications, data, and expressions of interest for Construction 

Manager at Risk Services (CMAR) for the water reclamation facility expansion project.  CMAR is a project-

specific delivery method that is suited for medium to large capital or renovation projects.  CMAR project 

delivery method allows the City to hire a construction manager during the design process to provide 

constructability input.  The CMAR is generally selected on the basis of qualifications, past experience or a 

best-value basis.  During the design phase, the CMAR provides input regarding scheduling, pricing, 

phasing, and other input that helps the City design a more constructible project.  At approximately 60% to 

90% design completion, the City and the CMAR negotiate a Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) for the 

construction of the project based on the defined scope and schedule.  If this price is acceptable to both 

parties, they execute a contract for construction services, and the construction manager becomes the general 

contractor.  If prices are not acceptable, the contract is put out for bid when the design is completed. 

 

On April 20, 2016, the City Council approved the ranking of the top three firms to provide Construction 

Manager-at-Risk (CMAR) Services for the water reclamation facility expansion.  City staff has obtained, 

reviewed, and negotiated a proposal for $422,000 for CMAR Preconstruction Services with Garney 

Construction Company, the top ranked firm.  When this process is complete, the City will negotiate a 

contract with Garney for a Guaranteed Maximum Construction Price (GMP).  If staff successfully 

negotiates a GMP with Garney, they would construct the plant.  Should this exercise fail, the City would 

proceed with normal bidding procedures.  A contingency amount of 10% is added to the GMP.  When the 

construction of this project is completed, the City will have an 8 MG (million gallons per day) treatment 

capacity, over its current 4.5 MGD.   

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Capital Improvement Plan Fund 403/Sewer Impact Fee Fund.  Project funding will be reimbursed through 

the FDEP State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loan Program.                
Page 125



RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the City Administrator to sign the contract for CMAR Preconstruction Services with Garney 

Construction Company in the amount of $422,000. 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director 

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

Page 126



CONTRACT 

CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK 

 

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered by and between the City of Apopka, a Florida municipal 

corporation, hereinafter designated the “City” and Garney Construction Company hereinafter designated 

the “Construction Manager at Risk” or “CMAR.” 

 

RECITALS 

 

A. This Contract has been procured pursuant to the applicable requirements of the City of 

Apopka Code and State law. 

 

B. The City intends to construct a Water Reclamation Facility Expansion Project as more fully 

described in Exhibit A attached, hereafter referred to as the “Project.” 

 

C. To undertake the design of said Project the City has entered into a contract with Tetra 

Tech Inc., hereafter referred to as the “Design Professional.” 

 
D. The CMAR has represented to the City the ability to provide pre-construction phase services 

and, if approved by the City, to enter into a contract or amendment to construct the Project. 
 

E. Based on this representation, the City intends to enter into a contract with the CMAR for 
the pre-construction phase services identified in this contract. At the end of the design phase, 
at the City’s discretion, the City may enter into a separate construction contract or amendment 
to this Agreement with the CMAR for construction phase services. 

 

 
NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and considerations hereinafter 
contained, it is agreed by and between the City and the CMAR as follows: 

 

 

ARTICLE 1 DEFINITIONS 

 

Addenda - Written or graphic instruments issued prior to the submittal of the GMP Proposal(s), 

which clarify, correct or change the GMP Proposal(s) requirements. 

 

Agreement (Contract) – This written document signed by the City and CMAR covering the pre-

construction phase of the Project, and including other documents itemized and referenced in or 

attached to and made part of this Contract. 

Alternate Systems Evaluations – Alternatives for design, means and methods or other scope 

considerations that are evaluated using value engineering principles and have the potential to 

reduce construction costs while still delivering a quality and functional Project that meets City 

requirements. 

 

Change Order (Amendment) - A written instrument issued after execution of the Contract Documents 

signed by the City and CMAR, stating their agreement upon all of the following: the addition, 

deletion or revision in the scope of services or Deliverables; the amount of the adjustment to 

the Contract Amount; the extent of the adjustment to the Contract Time; or modifications of other 

contract terms. 

Page 127



 

City (Owner) - The City of Apopka, a Florida municipal corporation, with whom CMAR has entered 

into this Contract and for whom the services is to be provided pursuant to said Contract. 

 

Construction Contract Time(s) - The number of days or the dates related to the construction phase that 

as stated in Construction Documents applies to achievement of Substantial Completion of the Work. 

 

Construction Documents – The plans, specifications and drawings prepared by the Design 

Professional after correcting for permit review requirements. 

 

Construction Fee – The CMAR’s administrative costs, home office overhead, and profit, whether at 

the CMAR’s principal or branch offices. 

 

Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR) - The firm, corporation, or other approved legal entity with 

whom the City has entered into this Contract to provide services as detailed in this Contract. 

 

Contingency, CMAR’s - A fund to cover cost growth during the Project used at the discretion of the 

CMAR usually for costs that result from Project circumstances. The amount of the CMAR’s 

Contingency will be negotiated as a separate line item in each GMP package. Use and management 

of the CMAR’s Contingency is described in Article 2. 

 

Contingency, Owner’s – A fund to cover cost growth during the Project used at the discretion of the 

City usually for costs that result from City directed changes or unforeseen site conditions. The amount 

of the Owner’s Contingency will be set by the City and will be in addition to the project costs 

included in the CMAR’s GMP packages. Use and management of the Owner’s Contingency is 

described in Article 2. 

 

Contract Amount - The cost for services for this Contract as identified in Article 4. 

 

Contract Documents - means the following items and documents in descending order of precedence 

executed by the City and the CMAR: (i) all written modifications, amendments and Change Orders; 

(ii) this Agreement, including all exhibits and attachments; (iii) Construction Documents; (iv) GMP 

Plans and Specifications. 

Cost of the Work - The direct costs necessarily incurred by the CMAR in the proper performance of 

the Work. The Cost of the Work shall include direct labor costs, subcontract costs, costs of materials 

and equipment incorporated in the completed construction, costs of other materials and equipment, 

temporary facilities, building permit fees (if not paid for by City), materials testing, and related 

items. The Cost of the Work shall not include the CMAR’s Construction Fee, General Conditions 

Cost, or taxes. 

 

Critical Path Schedule - The sequence of activities from the start of the Work to the Substantial 

Completion of the Project. Any delay in the completion of these activities will extend the Substantial 

Completion date. 

 

Day - Calendar day unless otherwise specifically noted in the Contract Documents. 

 

Deliverables – The work products prepared by the CMAR in performing the scope of work 

described in this Contract. Some of the major deliverables to be prepared and provided by the 

CMAR during the pre-construction phase may include but are not limited to: Construction 

Management Plan, Project Schedule, Schedule of Values, alternative system evaluations, procurement 

Page 128



strategies and plans, cost estimates, construction market surveys, cash flow projections, GMP 

Proposals, Subcontractor procurement plan, Subcontractor agreements, Subcontractor bid packages, 

Supplier agreements, and others as indicated in this Contract or required by the Project Team. 

 

Design Professional - The qualified, licensed person, firm or corporation who furnishes design and 

construction administration services required for the Project. 

 

Drawings (Plans) – Documents, which visually represent the scope, extent and character of the 

Work to be furnished and performed by the CMAR during the construction phase and which have 

been prepared or approved by the Design Professional and the City. Includes Drawings that have 

reached a sufficient stage of completion and released by the Design Professional solely for the 

purposes of review and/or use in performing constructability or bidability reviews and in preparing 

cost estimates (e.g. detailed design Drawings at 60%, 90% or 100%, construction documents), but 

“not for construction”. Shop Drawings are not Drawings as so defined. 

 

Float - The number of Days by which an activity can be delayed without lengthening the Critical 

Path and extending the Substantial Completion date. 

 

General Conditions Costs – Includes, but is not limited to the following types of costs for the 

CMAR during the construction phase: job office personnel, job officer and temporary facilities and 

office materials, supplies and equipment, including payroll costs for project manager or construction 

manager for Work conducted for the project; payroll costs for the superintendent and full-time general 

foremen for work conducted at the site; payroll costs for other management personnel resident 

and working on the site; workers not included as direct labor costs engaged in support (e.g. 

loading/unloading, clean-up, etc.); costs of offices and temporary facilities including office materials, 

office supplies, office equipment utilized at the site; utilities, fuel, sanitary facilities and telephone 

services at the site; costs of liability insurance premiums not included in labor burdens for direct 

labor costs; costs of bond premiums; costs of consultants not in the direct employ of the CMAR or 

Subcontractors; and fees for licenses. 

 

Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) – The sum of the maximum Cost of the Work including the 

CMAR’s Construction Fee, General Conditions Costs, sales tax, and CMAR Contingency. 

 

GMP Plans and Specifications – The three sets of plans and specifications provided pursuant to 

Article 2 upon which the Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal is based. 

 

Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) Proposal - The offer or proposal of the CMAR submitted on the 

prescribed form setting forth the GMP prices for the entire Work or portions of the Work to be 

performed during the construction phase. The GMP Proposal(s) are to be developed pursuant to Article 

2 of this Contract. 

 

Laws and Regulations; Laws or Regulations - Any and all applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

ordinances, codes and orders of any and all governmental bodies, agencies, authorities and courts 

having jurisdiction. 

 

Notice to Proceed (NTP) - A written notice given by City to the CMAR fixing the date on which 

the CMAR will start to perform the CMAR’s obligations under this Contract. 

 

Payment Request - The form that is accepted by the City and used by the CMAR in requesting progress 

payments or final payment and which will include such supporting documentation as is required by 

the Contract Documents and or the City. 

Page 129



 

Project - The works to be completed in the execution of this Contract as described in the Recital 

above and Exhibit “A” attached. 

 

Project Team – Pre-construction phase services team consisting of the Design Professional, CMAR, 

Project Manager, City’s representatives and other stakeholders who are responsible for making 

decisions regarding the Project. 

 

Schedule of Values (SOV) – Document specified in the construction phase Contract, which divides the 

Contract Price into pay items, such that the sum of all pay items equals the Contract Price for the 

construction phase Work, or for any portion of the Work having a separate specified Contract Price. 

The SOV may or may not be output from the Progress Schedule depending on if the Progress 

Schedule is cost-loaded or not. 

 

Shop Drawings - All drawings, diagrams, schedules and other data specifically prepared for the 

Work by the CMAR or a Subcontractor, Sub-subcontractor, manufacturer, supplier or distributor 

to illustrate some portion of the Work. 

 

Site – The land or premises on which the Project is located 748 E Cleveland St. Apopka, FL 32703. 

 

Specifications - The part(s) of the Contract Documents for the construction phase consisting of 

written technical descriptions of materials, equipment, construction systems, standards and 

workmanship as applied to the Work and certain administrative details applicable thereto. 

 

Subconsultant - A person, firm or corporation having a contract with the CMAR to furnish services 

required as its independent professional associate or consultant with respect to the Project. 

 

Subcontractor - An individual or firm having a direct contract with the CMAR or any other 

individual or firm having a contract with the aforesaid contractors at any tier, who undertakes to 

perform a part of the pre-construction phase services or construction phase Work at the site for which 

the CMAR is responsible. Subcontractors will be selected through the Subcontractor Selection 

process described in Article 2 of this Contract. 

 

Substantial Completion - When the Work, or an agreed upon portion of the Work, is sufficiently 

complete so that City can occupy and use the Project or a portion thereof for its intended purposes. This 

may include, but is not limited to: (i) approval by City Fire Chief and local authorities (Certificate 

of Occupancy); (ii) Elevator Permit; (iii) all systems in place, functional, and displayed to the City or 

its representative; (iv) all materials and equipment installed; (v) all systems reviewed and accepted by 

the City; (vi) draft O&M manuals and record documents reviewed and accepted by the City; (vii) City 

operation and maintenance training complete; (viii) HVAC test and balance completed (Provide 

minimum 30 days prior to projected substantial completion); (ix) landscaping and site work; and (x) 

final cleaning. The conditions of Substantial Completion that do not apply to a specific GMP will be 

listed in the Notice to Proceed Letter pursuant to the Construction Phase contract. 

 

Supplier - A manufacturer, fabricator, supplier, distributor, materialman or vendor having a direct 

contract with CMAR or with any Subcontractor to furnish materials or equipment to be incorporated 

in the construction phase Work by CMAR or any Subcontractor. 

 

Work - The entire completed construction or the various separately identifiable parts thereof, 

required to be furnished during the construction phase. Work includes and is the result of performing 

Page 130



or furnishing labor and furnishing and incorporating materials, resources and equipment into the 

construction, and performing or furnishing services and documents as required by the Contract 

Documents for the construction phase. 

 

ARTICLE 2 

BASIC PRE-CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 

 

GENERAL 

 

A. The CMAR, to further the interests of the City, will perform the services required by, and in 

accordance with this Contract, to the satisfaction of the City, exercising the degree of care, skill 

and judgment a professional construction manager performing similar services in Apopka, Florida 

would exercise at such time, under similar conditions. The CMAR will, at all times, perform the 

required services consistent with sound and generally accepted construction management and 

construction contracting practice. The services being provided under this Contract will not alter any 

real property owned by the City. 

 

B. Program Evaluation: As a participating member of the Project Team, the CMAR will provide 

to the City and Design Professional a written evaluation of the City’s Project Program and Project 

Budget, and site design plan each in terms of the other, with recommendations as to the appropriateness 

of each. 

 

C. Project Meetings: The CMAR will attend Project Team meetings which may include, but are not 

limited to, regular Project management meetings, Project workshops, special Project meetings, 

construction document rolling reviews and partnering sessions. 

 

D. The CMAR will provide pre-construction phase services described herein, in a proactive manner 

and consistent with the intent of the most current Drawings and Specifications. The CMAR will 

promptly notify the City in writing whenever the CMAR determines that any Drawings or 

Specifications are inappropriate for the Project and/or cause changes in the scope of Work requiring 

an adjustment in the cost estimate, Project Schedule, GMP Proposals and/or in the Contract 

Time for the Work, to the extent such are established. 

 

E. The CMAR, when requested by the City, will attend, make presentations and participate as may 

be appropriate in public agency and/or community meetings, germane to the Project. The CMAR 

will provide drawings, schedule diagrams, budget charts and other materials describing the Project, 

when their use is required or apropos in any such public agency meetings. 

 

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT PLAN 

 

A. If requested by the City, the CMAR will prepare a Construction Management Plan (CMP), which 

may include the CMAR’s professional opinions concerning: (a) Project milestone dates and the 

Project Schedule, including the broad sequencing of the design and construction of the Project, (b) 

investigations, if any, to be undertaken to ascertain subsurface conditions and physical conditions of 

existing surface and subsurface facilities and underground utilities, (c) alternate strategies for 

fast-tracking and/or phasing the construction, (d) the number of separate subagreements to be 

awarded to Subcontractors and Suppliers for the Project construction, (e) permitting  strategy,  (f)  

safety  and  training  programs,  (g)  construction  quality  control,  (h)  a commissioning program, (i) 

the cost estimate and basis of the model, and (j) a matrix summarizing each Project Team member’s 

Page 131



responsibilities and roles. 

 

B. The CMAR may add detail to its previous version of the CMP to keep it current throughout the 

pre-construction phase, so that the CMP is ready for implementation at the start of the construction 

phase.  The update/revisions may take into account (a) revisions in Drawings and Specifications; 

(b) the results of any additional investigatory reports of subsurface conditions, drawings of physical 

conditions of existing surface and subsurface facilities and documents depicting underground 

utilities placement and physical condition, whether obtained by the City, Design Professional or 

the CMAR, (c) unresolved permitting issues, and significant issues, if any, pertaining to the 

acquisition of land and right of way, (d) the fast-tracking if any of the construction, or other chosen 

construction delivery methods, (e) the requisite number of separate bidding documents to be 

advertised, (f) the status of the procurement of long-lead time equipment (if any) and/or materials, and 

(g) funding issues identified by the City. 

 

PROJECT SCHEDULE 

 

A. The fundamental purpose of the “Project Schedule” is to identify, coordinate and record the 

tasks and activities to be performed by all of the Project Team members and then for the Project 

Team to utilize that Deliverable as a basis for managing and monitoring all member’s compliance with 

the schedule requirements of the Project. Each Project Team member is responsible for its compliance 

with the Project Schedule requirements. The CMAR will, however, develop and maintain the “Project 

Schedule” on behalf of and to be used by the Project Team based on input from the other Project 

Team members. The Project Schedule will be consistent with the most recent revised/updated 

CMP. The Project Schedule will use the Critical Path Method (CPM) technique, unless required 

otherwise in writing by the City. The CMAR will use scheduling software to develop the Project 

Schedule that is acceptable to the City. The Project Schedule shall be presented in graphical and 

tabular reports as agreed upon by the Project Team. If Project phasing as described below is 

required, the Project Schedule will indicate milestone dates for the phases once determined. 

 

B. The Project Schedule shall include a Critical Path Method (CPM) diagram schedule that shall 

show the sequence of activities, the interdependence of each activity and indicate the Critical Path. 

 

C. The CPM diagram schedule shall be in Days and indicate duration, earliest and latest start and 

finish dates for all activities, and total Float times for all activities except critical activities. The 

CMP diagram shall be presented in a time scaled graphical format for the Project as a whole. 

 

D. The CPM diagram schedule shall indicate all relationships between activities. 

 

E. The activities making up the schedule shall be sufficient detail to assure that adequate planning has 

been done for proper execution of the Work and such that it provides an appropriate basis for 

monitoring and evaluating the progress of the Work. 

F. The CPM diagram schedule shall be based upon activities, which would coincide with the 

schedule of values. 

 

G. The CPM diagram schedule shall show all submittals associated with each work activity and the 

review time for each submittal. 

 

H. The schedule shall show milestones, including milestones for Owner-furnished information, and 

shall include activities for Owner-furnished equipment and furniture when those activities are 

interrelated with the CMAR activities. 

Page 132



 

I. The schedule shall include a critical path activity that reflects anticipated rain delay during the 

performance of the contract. The duration shall reflect the average climatic range and usual 

industrial conditions prevailing in the locality of the site. Weather data shall be based on information 

provided by the National Weather Services or other approved source. 

 

J. Float time shall be as prescribed below: 

 

1. The total Float within the overall schedule, is not for the exclusive use of either the City or 

the CMAR, but is jointly owned by both and is a resource available to and shared by both parties as 

needed to meet contract milestones and the Project completion date. 

 

2. The CMAR shall not sequester shared Float through such strategies as extending activity 

duration estimates to consume available Float, using preferential logic, or using extensive 

crew/resource sequencing, etc. Since Float time within the schedule is jointly owned, no time 

extensions will be granted nor delay damages paid until a delay occurs which extends the Work 

beyond the Substantial Completion date. 

 

3. Since Float time within the schedule is jointly owned, it is acknowledged that City- 

caused delays on the Project may be offset by City-caused time savings (i.e., critical path submittals 

returned in less time than allowed by the contract, approval of substitution requests and credit changes 

which result in savings of time to the CMAR, etc.). In such an event, the CMAR shall not be 

entitled to receive a time extension or delay damages until all City-caused time savings are exceeded, 

and the Substantial Completion date is also exceeded. 

 

K. The Project Schedule will be updated and maintained by the CMAR throughout the pre-

construction phase such that it will not require major changes at the start of the construction phase to 

incorporate the CMAR’s plan for the performance of the construction phase Work. The CMAR 

will provide updates and/or revisions to the Project Schedule for use by the Project Team, whenever 

required, but no less often than at the monthly Project Team meetings. The CMAR will include 

with such submittals a narrative describing its analysis of the progress achieved to-date vs. that 

planned, any concerns regarding delays or potential delays, and any recommendations regarding 

mitigating actions. 

L. Project Phasing: If phased construction is deemed appropriate and the City and Design 

Professional approve, the CMAR will review the design and make recommendations regarding the 

phased issuance of Construction Documents to facilitate phased construction of the Work, with the 

objective of reducing the Project Schedule and/or Cost of the Work. The CMAR will take into 

consideration such factors as natural and practical lines of work severability, sequencing 

effectiveness, access and availability constraints, total time for completion, construction market 

conditions, labor and materials availability, and any other factors pertinent to saving time and cost. 

 

DESIGN DOCUMENT REVIEWS 

 

A. The CMAR will evaluate periodically the availability of labor, materials/equipment, building 

systems, cost-sensitive aspects of the design; and other factors that may impact the cost estimate, 

GMP Proposals and/or the Project Schedule. 

 

B. The CMAR will recommend, in conjunction with the Project Team, those additional surface and 

subsurface investigations that, in its professional opinion, are required to provide the necessary 

information for the CMAR to construct the Project. Before initiating construction operations, the 

Page 133



CMAR may request additional investigations in their GMP Proposal to improve the adequacy and 

completeness of the site condition information and data made available with the Construction 

Documents. 

 

C. The CMAR will meet with the Project Team as required to review designs during their 

development. The CMAR will familiarize itself with the evolving documents through the various 

design phases. The CMAR will proactively advise the Project Team and make recommendations on 

factors related to construction costs, and concerns pertaining to the feasibility and practicality of any 

proposed means and methods, selected materials, equipment and building systems, and, labor and 

material availability. The CMAR will furthermore advise the Project Team on proposed site 

improvements, excavation and foundation considerations, as well as, concerns that exist with respect 

to coordination of the Drawings and Specifications. The CMAR will recommend cost effective 

alternatives. 

 

D. The CMAR will routinely conduct constructability and bidability reviews of the Drawings and 

Specifications as necessary to satisfy the needs of the Project Team. The reviews will attempt to 

identify all discrepancies and inconsistencies in the Construction Documents especially those related 

to clarity, consistency, and coordination of Work of Subcontractors and Suppliers. 

 

1. Constructability Reviews:  The CMAR will evaluate whether (a) the Drawings and 

Specifications are configured to enable efficient construction, (b) design elements are standardized, 

(c) construction efficiency is properly considered in the Drawings and Specifications, (d) 

module/preassembly design are prepared to facilitate fabrication, transport and installation, (e) the 

design promotes accessibility of personnel, material and equipment and facilitates construction 

under adverse weather conditions, (f) sequences of Work required by or inferable from the Drawings 

and Specifications are practicable, and (g) the design has taken into consideration, efficiency 

issues concerning; access and entrance to the site, laydown and storage of materials, staging of site 

facilities, construction parking, and other similar pertinent issues. 

 

2. Bidability Reviews: The CMAR will check cross-references and complementary 

Drawings and sections within the Specifications, and in general evaluate whether (a) the Drawings and 

Specifications are sufficiently clear and detailed to minimize ambiguity and to reduce scope 

interpretation discrepancies, (b) named materials and equipment are commercially available and are 

performing well or otherwise, in similar installations, (c) Specifications include alternatives in the 

event a requirement cannot be met in the field, and (d) in its professional opinion, the Project is likely 

to be subject to differing site conditions. 

 

3. The results of the reviews will be provided to the City in formal, written reports clearly 

identifying all discovered discrepancies and inconsistencies in the Drawings and Specifications 

with notations and recommendations made on the Drawings, Specifications and other documents. If 

requested by the City, the CMAR will meet with the City and Design Professional to discuss any 

findings and review reports. 

 

4. The CMAR’s reviews will be from a contractor’s perspective, and though it will serve 

to reduce the number of Requests for Information (RFIs) and changes during the construction 

phase, responsibility for the Drawings and Specifications will remain with the Design Professional and 

not the CMAR. 

 

E. Notification of Variance or Deficiency: It is the CMAR’s responsibility to assist the Design 

Professional in ascertaining that, in the CMAR’s professional opinion, the Construction Documents 

Page 134



are in accordance with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, building codes, rules and regulations. If 

the CMAR recognizes that portions of the Construction Documents are at variance with applicable 

laws, statutes, ordinances, building codes, rules and regulations, it will promptly notify the Design 

Professional and City in writing, describing the apparent variance or deficiency. However, the Design 

Professional is ultimately responsible for the compliance with those laws, statutes, ordinances, 

building codes, rules and regulations. 

 

F. Alternate Systems Evaluations: The Project Team will routinely identify and evaluate using value 

engineering principles any alternate systems, approaches, design changes that have the potential 

to reduce Project costs while still delivering a quality and functional product. If the Project Team 

agrees, the CMAR in cooperation with the Design Professional will perform a cost/benefit analysis 

of the alternatives and submit such in writing to the Project Team. The Project Team will decide 

which alternatives will be incorporated into the Project. The Design Professional will have full 

responsibility for the incorporation of the alternatives into the Drawings and Specifications. The 

CMAR will include the cost of the alternatives into the cost estimate and any GMP Proposals. 

 

COST ESTIMATES 

 

A. Unless otherwise agreed by both parties, within 14 days after receipt of the documents for the 

various phases of design, the CMAR shall provide a complete and detailed cost estimate and a written 

review of the documents. The cost estimate should include all cost categories included in the GMP 

Summary identified in Exhibit “B” attached. The Design Professional and CMAR shall reconcile 

any disagreements on the estimate to arrive at an agreed cost. If no consensus is reached, the City 

will make the final determination. 

 

B. If any estimate submitted to the City exceeds previously accepted estimates or the City’s Project 

budget, the CMAR shall make appropriate recommendations on methods and materials to the City 

and Design Professional that he believes will bring the project back into the Project budget. 

 

C. In between these milestone estimates, the CMAR shall periodically provide a tracking report which 

identifies the upward or downward movements of costs due to value engineering or scope changes. 

It shall be the responsibility of the CMAR to keep the City and Design Professional informed as to 

the major trend changes in costs relative to the City’s budget. 

 

D. If requested by the City, the CMAR shall prepare a preliminary “cash flow” projection based 

upon historical records of similar type projects to assist the City in the financing process. 

 

GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE (GMP) PROPOSALS 

 

A. The proposed GMP for the entire Work (or portions thereof) will be presented in a format 

acceptable to the City (see Exhibit “B” attached). Due to the potential for the City to update 

procedures without notice, CMAR must verify with the City the current Exhibit “B” requirements 

and procedures when entering into these services. 

 

B. The City may request a GMP Proposal for all or any portion of the Project and at any time 

during the pre-construction phase. Any GMP Proposals submitted by the CMAR will be based on 

and consistent with the current update/revised cost estimate at the time of the request, the associated 

estimates for construction costs and include any clarifications or assumptions upon which the GMP 

Proposal(s) are based. 

 

Page 135



C. Guaranteed Maximum Price is comprised of the following not-to-exceed cost reimbursable or 

lump sum amounts defined below. 

 

1. The Cost of the Work is actual costs and is a not-to-exceed, reimbursable amount. 

 

2. The General Conditions Costs are a firm fixed lump sum amount which will include 

bonds and insurance premiums based on the full contract price for construction. 

 

3. The Construction Fee is a firm fixed lump sum. 

 

4. CMAR’s Contingency is an amount the CMAR may use under the following conditions: 

(1) at its discretion for increases in the Cost of the Work, or (2) with written approval of the City for 

increases in General Condition Costs. CMAR’s Contingency is assumed to be a direct project cost so 

will receive all markups at the time of GMP submission. 

 

5. Taxes are deemed to include all sales, use, consumer and other taxes which are legally 

enacted when negotiations of the GMP were concluded, whether or not yet effective or merely 

scheduled to go into effect. Taxes are actual costs and are a not-to-exceed reimbursable amount. 

 

D. Owner’s Contingency are funds to be used at the discretion of the Owner to cover any increases in 

Project costs that result from Owner directed changes or unforeseen site conditions. Owner’s 

Contingency will be added to the GMP amount provided by the CMAR, the sum of which will be the 

full contract price for construction. Markups for Construction Fee and taxes will be applied by the 

CMAR at the time that Owner’s Contingency is used. 

 

E. GMPs are cumulative except for CMAR Contingency. The amount of CMAR Contingency for 

each GMP amendment will be negotiated separately and shall reflect the CMAR’s risk from that 

point in the project forward. CMAR Contingency may not be moved from one GMP to another 

without written approval of the City. 

 

F. The CMAR, in preparing any GMP Proposal, will obtain from the Design Professional, three sets of 

signed, sealed, and dated plans and specifications (including all addenda). The CMAR will prepare 

its GMP in accordance with the City’s request for GMP Proposal requirements based on the most 

current completed plans and specifications at that time. The CMAR will mark the face of each 

document of each set upon which its proposed GMP is based. These documents will be identified as 

the GMP Plans and Specifications. The CMAR will send one set of those documents to the City’s 

Project Manager, keep one set and return the third set to the Design Professional. 

 

G. An updated/revised Project Schedule will be included with any GMP Proposal(s) that reflects the 

GMP Plans and Specifications. Any such Project Schedule updates/revisions will continue to comply 

with the requirements of Article 2. 

 

H. GMP savings resulting from a lower actual project cost than anticipated by the CMAR 

remaining at the end of the project will revert to City. 

 

GMP PROPOSAL(S) REVIEW AND APPROVAL 

 

A. The CMAR will meet with the City and Design Professional to review the GMP Proposal(s) and 

the written statement of its basis. As part of the statement of basis, the CMAR shall identify and 

justify any costs that are significantly different than the latest cost estimate provided by the CMAR. 

Page 136



In the event the City or Design Professional discovers inconsistencies or inaccuracies in the 

information presented, the CMAR will make adjustments as necessary to the GMP Proposal, its basis 

or both. 

 

B. The City upon receipt of any GMP proposal from the CMAR, will have 14 calendar days to either 

accept or reject the GMP, or enter into negotiations with the CMAR on the GMP. The City will 

notify the CMAR in writing whether it accepts or rejects the GMP Proposal. 

 

C. If during the review and negotiation of GMP Proposals design changes are required, the City 

will authorize and cause the Design Professional to revise the Construction Documents to the 

extent necessary to reflect the agreed-upon assumptions and clarifications contained in the final 

approved GMP Proposal. Such revised Construction Documents will be furnished to the CMAR. 

The CMAR will promptly notify the Design Professional and City in writing if any such revised 

Construction Documents are inconsistent with the agreed-upon assumptions and clarifications. 

 

SUBCONTRACTOR AND SUPPLIER SELECTIONS 

 

A. The selection of Subcontractors and Suppliers may occur prior to submission of a GMP 

Proposal. Subcontractors shall be selected based o n  a combination of qualifications and price, in 

accordance with the Subcontractor Selection Plan submitted by the CMAR. Except as noted below, 

the selection of Subcontractors/Suppliers is the responsibility of the CMAR. In any case, the 

CMAR is solely responsible for the performance of the selected Subcontractors/Suppliers. All 

Subcontractor/Supplier Selections must comply with the Selection Plan, the City Code and State law. 

 

B. The CMAR shall apply the approved Subcontractor Selection Plan in the evaluation of the 

qualifications of a Subcontractor(s) or Supplier(s) and provide the City with its review and 

recommendation. The CMAR must receive City approval of the selected 

Subcontractor(s)/Supplier(s). 

 

C. The CMAR will negotiate costs for services/supplies from each Subcontractor/Supplier selected 

under this method. 

 

D. The CMAR may self-perform portions of the Work, subject to the approval of the City, and if not in 

conflict with the Subcontractor Selection Plan. The CMAR will be required to prepare two different 

reports on the subcontracting process. 

 

1. Within fifteen Days after each Subcontractor/Supplier selection, the CMAR will prepare a report 

for the City’s review and approval identifying the recommended Subcontractors/Supplier for each category 

of Work. The report will provide (a) the name and qualifications of the recommended 

Subcontractor/Supplier and the amount of the Subcontractor/Supplier bid for each subagreement, (b) the sum 

of all recommended Subcontractor/Supplier bids received, (c) a copy of the bids received from each 

subcontractor, and (d) trade work and its cost that the CMAR intends to self-perform, if any. 

 

2. Upon completion of the Subcontractor/Supplier selection process, the CMAR shall submit a 

summary report to the City of the entire Subcontractor/Supplier selection process. The report will indicate, 

by bid process, all Subcontractors/Suppliers contacted to determine interest, the Subcontractors/Suppliers 

solicited, the bids received and costs negotiated, and the recommended Subcontractors/Suppliers for each 

category of Work. 

E. The approved Subcontractors/Suppliers will provide a Schedule of Values that reflects their final 

accepted bid proposal, which will be used to create the overall Project Schedule of Values. 

Page 137



 

F. Promptly after receipt of the Notice of Intent to Award from CMAR, the City will conduct a pre- award 

conference with the CMAR and other Project Team members. At the pre-award conference, the CMAR 

will (a) review the nominated slate of Subcontractors and Suppliers and discuss any concerns with or 

objections that the City has to any nominated Subcontractor or Supplier; (b) discuss City concerns relating 

to any proposed self-performed Work; (c) review the CMAR’s proposed Contract Price for the Work 

during the construction phase; (d) discuss the conditions, if any, under which the City will agree to 

leave any portion of the remaining CMAR Contingency within the Contract Price for the construction 

phase Work; (e) resolve possible time frames for the Date of Commencement of the Contract time for 

the construction phase Work; (f) schedule the pre-construction conference; and (g) discuss other matters of 

importance. 

 

 

ARTICLE 3 PERIOD OF SERVICES 

 

A. The pre-construction phase services described in this Contract will be performed by CMAR 

in accordance with the most current update/revised Project Schedule. Failure on the part of the 

CMAR to adhere to the Project Schedule requirements for activities for which it is responsible will be 

sufficient grounds for termination of this Contract by the City. 

 

B. Upon failure to adhere to the approved schedule, City may provide written notice to CMAR that it 

intends to terminate the Agreement unless the problem cited is cured, or commenced to be cured, 

within three days of CMAR’s receipt of such notice. 

 

 

ARTICLE 4 

CONTRACT AMOUNT AND PAYMENTS CONTRACT AMOUNT 

 

A. Based on the pre-construction phase services fee proposal submitted by the CMAR and accepted 

by the City (which by reference is made a part of this Contract); the City will pay the CMAR a fee not 

to exceed $422,000.00. 

 

PAYMENTS 

 

A. Requests for monthly payments by the CMAR for pre-construction phase services will be 

submitted on the City’s “Contract Payment Request” form and will be accompanied by a progress 

report, detailed invoices and receipts, if applicable. Any requests for payment will include, as a 

minimum, a narrative description of the tasks accomplished during the billing period, a listing of any 

Deliverables submitted, and copies of any Subconsultants’ requests for payment, plus similar narrative 

and listings of Deliverables associated with their Work.  Payment for services negotiated as a lump 

sum shall be made in accordance with the percentage of work completed during the preceding 

month. Services negotiated as a not-to-exceed fee will be paid in accordance with the work effort 

expended on that service during the preceding month. 

 

B. The CMAR will pay all sums due Subconsultants for services and reimbursable expenses within 

14 calendar days after the CMAR has received payment for those services from the City. In no event 

will the City pay more than 90 percent of the Contract Amount until final acceptance of the all pre-

construction phase services, and award of the final approved GMP for the entire Project by City 

Council. In the event that the City rejects the GMP, City shall pay to the CMAR the remaining 

amounts due under this Contract within 30 days of the final rejection of the GMP. 

Page 138



 

C. The CMAR agrees that no charges or claims for costs or damages of any type will be made by it 

for any delays or hindrances beyond the reasonable control of the City during the progress of any 

portion of the services specified in this Contract. Such delays or hindrances, if any, will be solely 

compensated for by an extension of time for such reasonable period as may be mutually agreed 

between the parties. It is understood and agreed, however, that permitting the CMAR to proceed to 

complete any services, in whole or in part after the date to which the time of completion may have been 

extended, will in no way act as a waiver on the part of the City of any of its legal rights herein. 

 

D. If any service(s) executed by the CMAR is abandoned or suspended in whole or in part, for a 

period of more than 180 days through no fault of the CMAR, the CMAR is to be paid for the services 

performed prior to the abandonment or suspension. 

 

 

ARTICLE 5 

CITY’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

A. The City, at no cost to the CMAR, will furnish the following information: 

 

1. One copy of data the City determines pertinent to the work. However, the CMAR will 

be responsible for searching the records and requesting information it deems reasonably required 

for the Project. 

 

2. All available data and information pertaining to relevant policies, standards, criteria, 

studies, etc. 

 

3. The name of the City employee or City’s representative who will serve as the Project 

Manager during the term of this Contract. The Contracts Manager has the authority to administer this 

Contract. The Project Manager has the authority to monitor the CMAR’s compliance with all terms 

and conditions stated herein. All requests for information from or decisions by the City on any aspect 

of the work or Deliverables will be directed to the Project Manager. 

 

4. The City additionally will Contract separately with one or more design professionals to 

provide architectural and/or engineering design services for the Project. The scope of services for the 

Design Professional will be provided to the CMAR for its information. The CMAR will have no 

right to limit or restrict any changes of such services that are otherwise mutually acceptable to the City 

and Design Professional. 

 

5. Supply, without charge, all necessary copies of programs, reports, drawings, and 

specifications reasonably required by the CMAR except for those copies whose cost has been 

reimbursed by the City. 

 

6. Provide the CMAR with adequate information in its possession or control regarding the 

City’s requirements for the Project. 

 

7. Give prompt written notice to the CMAR when the City becomes aware of any default 

or defect in the Project or non-conformance with the Drawings and Specifications, or any of the 

services required hereunder. Upon notice of failure to perform, the City may provide written notice 

to CMAR that it intends to terminate the Agreement unless the problem cited is cured, or commenced 

to be cured, within three days of CMAR’s receipt of such notice. 

Page 139



 

8. Notify the CMAR of changes affecting the budget allocations or schedule. 

 

B. The City’s Project Manager will have authority to approve the Project Schedule, and render 

decisions and furnish information the Project Manager deems appropriate to the CMAR. 

 

 

ARTICLE 6 CONTRACT CONDITIONS 

 

PROJECT DOCUMENTS AND COPYRIGHTS 

 

A. City Ownership of Project Documents: All work products (electronically or manually generated) 

including but not limited to: cost estimates, studies, design analyses, Computer Aided Drafting and 

Design (CADD) file, and other related documents which are prepared specifically in the performance 

of this Contract (collectively referred to as Project Documents), including all intellectual property 

rights thereto, are to be and remain the property of the City and all Project Documents are to be 

delivered to the Project Manager before the final payment is made to the CMAR. Nonetheless, 

in the event these Projects Documents are altered, modified or adapted, the City agrees that any 

CMAR warranties or responsibilities, if any, with regard to the Project Documents and their use for 

other projects are void and that the CMAR is not responsible for such use. 

 

B. Documents to Bear Seal: When applicable and required by State law, the CMAR and its 

Subconsultants will endorse by a Florida professional seal all plans, works, and Deliverables 

prepared by them for this Contract. 

 

COMPLETENESS AND ACCURACY OF CMAR’S WORK 

 

The CMAR will be responsible for the completeness and accuracy of its reviews, reports, 

supporting data, and other design phase Deliverables prepared or compiled pursuant to its obligations 

under this Contract and will at its sole own expense correct its work or Deliverables. Any damage 

incurred by the City as a result of additional construction cost caused by such willful or negligent 

errors, omissions or acts shall be chargeable to the CMAR to the extent that such willful or negligent 

errors, omissions and acts fall below the standard of care and skill that a professional CMAR in 

Apopka, Florida would exercise under similar conditions. The fact that the City has accepted or 

approved the CMAR’s work or Deliverables will in no way relieve the CMAR of any of its 

responsibilities under the Contract, nor does this requirement to correct the work or Deliverable 

constitute a waiver of any claims or damages otherwise available by law or Contract to the City. 

Correction of errors, omissions and acts discovered on architectural or engineering plans and 

specifications shall be the responsibility of the Design Professional. 

 

 

ALTERATION IN CHARACTER OF WORK 

 

In the event an alteration or modification in the character of work or Deliverable results in a 

substantial change in this Contract, thereby materially increasing or decreasing the scope of services, 

cost of performance, or Project Schedule, the work or Deliverable will nonetheless be performed 

as directed by the City. However, before any altered or modified work begins, a Change Order 

or Amendment will be approved and executed by the City and the CMAR. Such Change Order or 

Amendment will not be effective until approved by the City. 

 

Page 140



Additions to, modifications, or deletions from the Project provided herein may be made, and the 

compensation to be paid to the CMAR may accordingly be adjusted by mutual agreement of the 

contracting parties. 

 

No claim for extra work done or materials furnished by the CMAR will be allowed by the City except 

as provided herein, nor will the CMAR do any work or furnish any material(s) not covered by 

this Contract unless such work or material is first authorized in writing. Work or material(s) 

furnished by the CMAR without such prior written authorization will be the CMAR’s sole jeopardy, 

cost, and expense, and the CMAR hereby agrees that without prior written authorization no claim for 

compensation for such work or materials furnished will be made. 

 

DATA CONFIDENTIALITY 

 

A. As used in the Contract, data means all information, whether written or verbal, including plans, 

photographs, studies, investigations, audits, analyses, samples, reports, calculations, internal memos, 

meeting minutes, data field notes, work product, proposals, correspondence and any other similar 

documents or information prepared by or obtained by the CMAR in the performance of this Contract. 

 

B. The parties agree that all data, including originals, images, and reproductions, prepared by, 

obtained by, or transmitted to the CMAR in connection with the CMAR’s performance of this 

Contract is confidential and proprietary information belonging to the City, subject to the 

requirements of Florida law. 

 

C. The CMAR will not divulge data to any third party without prior written consent of the City. The 

CMAR will not use the data for any purposes except to perform the services required under this 

Contract.  These prohibitions will not apply to the following data: 

 

1. Data which was known to the CMAR prior to its performance under this Contract unless 

such data was acquired in connection with work performed for the City; 

 

2. Data which was acquired by the CMAR in its performance under this Contract and which 

was disclosed to the CMAR by a third party, who to the best of the CMAR’s knowledge and 

belief, had the legal right to make such disclosure and the CMAR is not otherwise required to 

hold such data in confidence; or court. 

 

3. Data, which is required to be disclosed by the CMAR by virtue of law, regulation, or 

 

4. In the event the CMAR is required or requested to disclose data to a third party, or any 

other information to which the CMAR became privy as a result of any other contract with the City, 

the CMAR will first notify the City as set forth in this Article of the request or demand for the 

data. The CMAR will timely give the City sufficient facts, such that the City can have a meaningful 

opportunity to either first give its consent or take such action that the City may deem appropriate to 

protect such data or other information from disclosure. 

 

D. The CMAR, unless prohibited by law, within ten calendar days after completion of services for a 

third party on real or personal property owned or leased by the City, will promptly deliver, as set forth 

in this section, a copy of all data to the City. All data will continue to be subject to the confidentiality 

agreements of this Contract. 

 

Page 141



E. The CMAR assumes all liability for maintaining the confidentiality of the data in its possession 

and agrees to compensate the City if any of the provisions of this section are violated by the CMAR, 

its employees, agents or Subconsultants. Solely for the purposes of seeking injunctive relief, it is 

agreed that a breach of this section will be deemed to cause irreparable harm that justifies injunctive 

relief in court. 

 

e-VERIFY REQUIREMENTS 

 

To the extent applicable under Florida Statutes, the Consultant and its subcontractors shall warrant 

compliance with all federal immigration laws and regulations and the Immigration Reform and 

Control Act of 1986 (State of Florida Executive Order 11-116) that relate to their employees and 

compliance with the E-verify requirements under Florida Statutes. Consultant’s or its subcontractor’s 

failure to comply with such warranty shall be deemed a material breach of this Agreement and may 

result in the termination of this Agreement by the City. 

 

APPROPRIATION CONTINGENCY 

 

The CMAR acknowledges that the continuation of the Contract beyond the existing City fiscal year 

is contingent upon the City appropriating funds necessary to provide the funds to pay the City’s 

obligations herein. This Contract shall continue without action by either party from the beginning 

of the next fiscal year until completion, unless terminated prior to the end of the current fiscal year. 

Should the City fail to appropriate the necessary funds to continue this Contract, the City will notify 

the CMAR of the lack of funds, and this Contract shall terminate on the date of said notification. Upon 

such termination, the CMAR shall be paid for all services provided the City to the date of termination, 

subject to review and approval of the City, and subject to the availability of funds. 

 

PROJECT STAFFING 

 

A. Prior to the start of any work or Deliverable under this Contract, the CMAR will submit to the 

City, an organization chart for the CMAR staff and Subconsultants and detailed resumes of key 

personnel listed in its response to the City’s Request for Qualifications or subsequent fee proposals 

(or revisions thereto), that will be involved in performing the services prescribed in the Contract. 

Unless, otherwise informed, the City hereby acknowledges its acceptance of such personnel to 

perform such services under this Contract. In the event the CMAR desires to change such key 

personnel from performing such services under this Contract, the CMAR will submit the qualifications 

of the proposed substituted personnel to the City for prior approval. Key personnel will include, but 

are not limited to, principal-in-charge, project manager, superintendent, project director or those 

persons specifically identified to perform services of cost estimating, scheduling, value engineering, 

and procurement planning. 

 

B. The CMAR will maintain an adequate number of competent and qualified persons, as 

determined by the City, to ensure acceptable and timely completion of the scope of services 

described in this Contract throughout the period of those services. If the City objects, with 

reasonable cause, to any of the CMAR’s staff, the CMAR will take prompt corrective action acceptable 

to the City and, if required, remove such personnel from the Project and replace with new personnel 

acceptable to the City. 

 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 

The CMAR is and will be an independent contractor and whatever measure of control the City 

Formatted: Not Highlight

Page 142



exercises over the work or Deliverable pursuant to the Contract will be as to the results of the work 

only. No provision in this Contract will give or be construed to give the City the right to direct the 

CMAR as to the details of accomplishing the work or Deliverable. These results will comply with 

all applicable laws and ordinances. 

 

TERMINATION 

 

A. The City and the CMAR hereby agree to the full performance of the covenants contained herein, 

except that the City reserves the right, at its discretion and without cause, to terminate or abandon 

any or all services provided for in this Contract, or abandon any portion of the Project for which 

services have been performed by the CMAR. 

 

B. In the event the City terminates or abandons any or all of the services or any part of the services as 

herein provided, the City will so notify the CMAR in writing, and the CMAR will immediately 

after receiving such notice is to discontinue advancing the Work specified under this Contract and 

mitigate the expenditure, if any, of costs resulting from such abandonment or termination. 

 

C. The CMAR, upon such termination or abandonment, will promptly deliver to the City all reports, 

estimates and other work or Deliverable entirely or partially completed, together with all unused 

materials supplied by the City. 

 

D. The CMAR will appraise the work completed and submit an appraisal to the City for 

evaluation. The City will have the right to inspect the CMAR’s work or Deliverable to appraise 

the work completed. 

 

E. The CMAR will receive compensation in full for services satisfactorily performed to the date 

of such termination and the reasonable costs and expenses attributable to such termination. The fee 

will be paid in accordance with Article 4 of this Contract, and will be an amount mutually agreed upon 

by the CMAR and the City. If there is no mutual agreement, the final determination will be made in 

accordance with Article 6, “Disputes”. However, in no event will the fee exceed that set forth in 

Article 4 or as amended. The City will make the final payment within thirty days after the CMAR 

has delivered the last of the partially or otherwise completed work items and the final fee has been 

agreed upon. 

 

DISPUTES 

 

In any unresolved dispute arising out of an interpretation of this Contract or the duties required 

therein, the final determination at the administrative level will be made by the Director of Public 

Works. Any claims made under this Contract shall be resolved by the City Manager, pursuant to the 

applicable provisions of the City procurement code and state law. 

 

WITHHOLDING PAYMENT 

 

The City reserves the right to withhold funds from the City’s progress payments up to the amount 

equal to the claims the City may have against the CMAR, until such time that a settlement on those 

claims has been reached. 

 

RECORDS/AUDIT 

 

A. Records of the CMAR’s direct personnel payroll, reimbursable expenses pertaining to this Project 

Page 143



and records of accounts between the City and CMAR will be kept on a generally recognized 

accounting basis and shall be available for up to five years following final completion of the Project. 

The City, its authorized representative, and/or the appropriate federal agency, reserve the right to 

audit the CMAR’s records to verify the accuracy and appropriateness of all pricing data, including 

data used to negotiate this Contract and any Change Orders. The City reserves the right to decrease 

Contract Amount and/or payments made on this Contract if, upon audit of the CMAR’s records, the 

audit discloses the CMAR has provided false, misleading, or inaccurate cost and pricing data. 

 

B. The CMAR will include a provision similar to that found in Article 6 “Records/Audits” in all of 

its agreements, except lump sum contracts, with Subconsultants, Subcontractors, and Suppliers 

providing services under this Contract to ensure the City, its authorized representative, and/or the 

appropriate federal agency, has access to the Subconsultants’, Subcontractors’, and Suppliers’ 

records to verify the accuracy of cost and pricing data. The City reserves the right to decrease 

Contract Amount and/or payments made on this Contract if the above provision is not included in 

Subconsultant, Subcontractor, and Supplier contracts, and one or more of those parties do not allow 

the City to audit their records to verify the accuracy and appropriateness of pricing data. 

 

INDEMNIFICATION 

 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the CMAR agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the 

City of Apopka, its officers, agents and employees, and any jurisdiction or agency issuing permits 

for any work included in the Project, their officers, agents and employees, hereinafter individually 

and collectively referred to as “Indemnitees”, for, from and against all suits and claims, including 

attorney’s fees and cost of litigation, actions, losses, damage, expenses, costs or claims of any character 

or any nature arising out of the work or Deliverable done in fulfilling the terms of this Contract, or on 

account of any act, claim or amount arising out of or recovered under Workmen’s Compensation Law, 

or arising out of the failure of the CMAR to conform to any statutes, ordinances, regulation, law 

or court decree. It is agreed that the CMAR will be responsible for primary loss investigation, defense 

and judgment costs where this Contract of indemnity applies. 

 

NOTICES 

 

Unless otherwise provided, any notice, request, instruction, or other document to be given under this 

Agreement by any party to any other party shall be in writing and shall be delivered in person or by 

courier or facsimile transmission or mailed by certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested 

and shall be deemed given upon (a) confirmation of receipt of a facsimile transmission, 

(b) confirmed delivery by hand or standard overnight mail, or (c) upon the expiration of three (3) 

business days after the day mailed by certified mail, as follows: 

 

 

To City: 

 

Public Services Director 

Name 

 

R. Jay Davoll, P.E 

City of Apopka 

748 E Cleveland St 

Apopka, FL 32703 

Page 144



With Copy to: 

 

City Project Manager 

 

Kevin Burgess 

City of Apopka 

748 E Cleveland St 

Apopka, FL 32703 

To CMAR:  

Copy to: 

Design Professional 

 

Mr. Jon Fox 

Tetra Tech 

201 E Pine St 

Orlando, FL 32801 

 

 

Or to other such place and with such other copies as either Party may designate as to itself by 

written notice to the other Party. Rejection, any refusal to accept, or the inability to deliver 

because of changed address of which no notice was given shall be deemed to be receipt of the 

notice as of the date of such rejection, refusal, or inability to deliver. 

 

COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL LAWS 

 

The CMAR understands and acknowledges the applicability of the Americans with Disabilities Act, 

the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 and the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1989 to it. 

The CMAR agrees to comply with these and all laws in performing this Contract and to permit the 

City to verify such compliance. 

 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 

A. To evaluate and avoid potential conflicts of interest, the CMAR will provide written notice to the 
City, as set forth in this section, of any work or services performed by the CMAR for third parties 

that may involve or be associated with any real property or personal property owned or leased by the 

City. Such notice will be given seven business days prior to commencement of the Project by the 

CMAR for a third party, or seven business days prior to an adverse action as defined below.  Written 

notice and disclosure will be sent to: 

 

Kevin Burgess 

Asst. Public Services Director 

City of Apopka 

748 E. Cleveland St 

Apopka, FL 32703 

 

B. Actions considered to be adverse to the City under this Contract include but are not limited to: 

 

1. Using data as defined in the Contract, acquired in connection with this Contract to assist a 

Page 145



third party in pursuing administrative or judicial action against the City; 

 

2. Testifying or providing evidence on behalf of any person in connection with an 

administrative or judicial action against the City; and 

 

3. Using data to produce income for the CMAR or its employees independently of 

performing the services under this Contract, without the prior written consent of the City. 

 

C. The CMAR represents that except for those persons, entities and projects previously identified in 

writing to the City, the services to be performed by the CMAR under this Contract are not expected to 

create an interest with any person, entity, or third party project that is or may be adverse to the interests 

of the City. 

 

D. The CMAR’s failure to provide a written notice and disclosure of the information as set forth 

in this section will constitute a material breach of this Contract. 

 

CONTRACTOR’S LICENSE 

 

The CMAR must provide to the Contracts Manager CMAR’s Contractor’s License Classification 

and number and its Federal Tax I.D. number. 

 

SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

 

The City and the CMAR will each bind itself, and their partners, successors, assigns, and legal 

representatives to the other party to this Contract and to the partners, successors, assigns, and legal 

representatives of such other party in respect to all covenants of this Contract. The CMAR may not 

assign, sublet, or transfer its interest in this Contract without the written consent of the City. In no event 

will any contractual relation be created or be construed to be created as between any third party and 

the City. 

 

FORCE MAJEURE 

 

If either party is delayed or prevented from the performance of any service, in whole or part, 

required under this Contract by reason of acts of God or other cause beyond the control and 

without fault of that party (financial inability excepted), performance of that act will be excused, but 

only for the period of the delay. The time for performance of the act will be extended for a period 

equivalent to the period of delay or as reasonably agreed to by both parties. 

 

COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES 

 

The CMAR warrants that no person has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this Contract 

upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, and 

that no member of the City Council, or any employee of the City of Apopka has any interest, 

financially, or otherwise, in the firm. The City of Apopka will in the event of the breach or violation of 

this warranty, have the right to annul this Contract without liability, or at its discretion to deduct from 

the Contract Amount or consideration, the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, 

or contingent fee. 

 

NON-WAIVER PROVISION 

 

Page 146



The failure of either party to enforce any of the provisions of this Contract or to require performance 

by the other party of any of the provisions hereof will not be construed to be a waiver of such provisions, 

nor will it affect the validity of this Contract or any part thereof, or the right of either party to thereafter 

enforce each and every provision. 

 

JURISDICTION 

 

This Contract will be deemed to be made under, and will be construed in accordance with and 

governed by the laws of the State of Florida, without regard to the conflicts or choice of law 

provisions thereof. An action to enforce any provision of this Contract or to obtain any remedy with 

respect hereto will be brought in the Superior Court, Orange County, Florida, and for this purpose, 

each party hereby expressly and irrevocably consents to the jurisdiction and venue of such Court. 

 

SURVIVAL 

 

All warranties, representations and indemnifications by the CMAR will survive the completion or 

termination of this Contract. 

 

MODIFICATION 

 

No supplement, modification, or amendment of any term of this Contract will be deemed binding or 

effective unless in writing and signed by the parties hereto and in conformation with provisions of this 

Contract, except as expressly provided herein to the contrary. 

 

SEVERABILITY 

 

If any provision of this Contract or the application thereof to any person or circumstance will be 

invalid, illegal or unenforceable to any extent, the remainder of this Contract and the application 

thereof will not be affected and will be enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

 

INTEGRATION 

 

This Contract contains the full agreement of the parties hereto. Any prior or contemporaneous 

written or oral agreement between the parties regarding the subject matter hereof is merged and 

superseded hereby. 

 

TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE 

 

Time of each of the terms, covenants, and conditions of this Contract is hereby expressly made of the 

essence. 

 

THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY 

 

This Contract will not be construed to give any rights or benefits in the Contract to anyone other 

than the City and the CMAR. All duties and responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this Contract 

will be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the City and the CMAR and not for the benefit of any 

other party. 

 

COOPERATION AND FURTHER DOCUMENTATION 

 

Page 147



The CMAR agrees to provide the City such other duly executed documents as may be reasonably 

requested by the City to implement the intent of this Contract. 

 

CONFLICT IN LANGUAGE 

 

All work or Deliverables performed will conform to all applicable City codes, ordinances and 

requirements as outlined in this Contract. If there is a conflict in interpretation between provisions 

in this Contract and any Exhibits, the provisions in this Contract will prevail. 

 

CITY’S RIGHT OF CANCELLATION 

 

All parties hereto acknowledge that this Contract is subject to cancellation by the City pursuant to the 

provisions of Florida Statutes. 

 

 

ARTICLE 7 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 

The CMAR and subconsultants shall procure and maintain until all of their obligations have been 

discharged, including any warranty periods under this Contract are satisfied, insurance against claims 

for injury to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in connection with the 

performance of the work hereunder by the CMAR, its agents, representatives, employees, or 

subconsultants. 

 

The insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements for this Contract and in no way 

limit the indemnity covenants contained in this Contract. 

 

The City in no way warrants that the minimum limits contained herein are sufficient to protect the 

CMAR from liabilities that might arise out of the performance of the work under this Contract by the 

CMAR, his agents, representative, employees, or subconsultants. CMAR is free to purchase such 

additional insurance as may be determined necessary. 

 

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMITS OF INSURANCE 

 

A.  CMAR will provide coverage at least as broad and with limits of liability not less than those 

stated below. 

1. Commercial General Liability-Occurrence Form 

 

Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage, broad form contractual liability and XCU 

coverage. 

 

General Aggregate $2,000,000 

Products-Completed Operations Aggregate $1,000,000 

Personal & Advertising Injury $1,000,000 

Each Occurrence $1,000,000 

 

a. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: “The 

Formatted: Not Highlight

Page 148



City of Apopka shall be named as an additional insured with respect to liability arising out of 

the activities performed by, or on behalf of the CMAR”. 

 

b. Policy shall contain waiver of subrogation against the City of Apopka. 

 

2. Automobile Liability 

 

Bodily injury and property damage for any owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles used in the 

performance of this Contract. 

 

Combined Single Limit (CSL) $1,000,000 

 

a. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: “The 

City of Apopka shall be named as an additional insured with respect to liability arising out of 

the activities performed by, or on behalf of the CMAR”, including automobiles owned, 

leased or hired or borrowed by the CMAR”. 

 

b. Policy shall contain waiver of subrogation against the City of Apopka. 

 

3. Workers Compensation and Employers Liability 

 

Workers Compensation Statutory 

Employers Liability  

Each Accident $  100,000 

Disease – Each Employee $  100,000 

Disease – Policy Limit $  500,000 

 

a. Policy shall contain waiver of subrogation against the City of Apopka. 

 

4. Excess or Umbrella Liability Insurance 

a. Excess of the primary coverage required, in paragraphs (1), (2), and (3) above: 

Each Occurrence     $5,000,000 

General Aggregate     $5,000,000 

 

ADDITIONAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 

A. The policies shall include, or be endorsed to include the following provisions 

 

B. On insurance policies where the City of Apopka is named as additional insured, the City of 

Apopka shall be an additional insured to the full limits of liability purchased by the CMAR even if 

those limits of liability are in excess of those required by this Contract. 

 

C. CMAR’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance and non-contributory with respect to all 

other available sources. 

 

Page 149



D. Coverage provided by the CMAR shall not be limited to the liability assumed under the 

indemnification provisions of this Contract. 

 

SUBCONTRACTORS INSURANCE 

 

CMAR’s certificate(s) shall include all subcontractors as additional insureds under its policies or 

subcontractors shall maintain separate insurance as determined by the CMAR, however, 

subcontractors insurance limits of liability shall not be less than $1,000,000 per 

occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. 

 

POLLUTION LIABILITY INSURANCE 

 
Pollution Legal/Environmental Legal Liability Insurance for pollution losses arising from all services 

performed to comply with this contract. Coverage shall apply to sudden and gradual pollution 

conditions including the discharge, dispersal, release or escape of smoke, vapors, soot, fumes, acids, 

alkalis, toxic chemicals, liquids or gases, waste materials or other irritants, contaminants or pollutants 

into or upon land, the atmosphere or any watercourse or body of water, which results in Bodily Injury 

or Property Damage.  If policy is written on a Claims Made form, a retroactive date is required, and 

coverage must be maintained for 3 years after completion of contract or “tail” coverage must be 

purchased. Coverage should include and be for the at least the minimum limits listed below: 

 

1. Bodily injury, sickness, disease, mental anguish or shock sustained by any person, including 

death; property damage including physical injury to or destruction of tangible property 

including the resulting loss of use thereof, cleanup costs, and the loss of use of tangible 

property that has not been physically injured or destroyed; 

 

2. Defense including costs, charges and expenses incurred in the investigation, adjustment or 

defense of claims for such compensation damages. 

 

3. Cost of Cleanup/Remediation. 

Limits 

Per Claim or Occurrence    $ 2,000,000 

General Aggregate     $ 2,000,000 

 

For acceptance of Pollution Legal/Environmental Legal Liability coverage included within another 

policy coverage required herein, a statement notifying the certificate holder must be included on the 

certificate of insurance and the total amount of said coverage per occurrence must be greater than or 

equal to the amount of Pollution Legal/Environmental Legal Liability and other coverage combined. 

For herbicide and pesticide spraying operations only, an endorsement to the Commercial General 

Liability policy that provides Pollution Liability coverage for herbicide and pesticide spraying is 

acceptable. 

 

 

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION 

 

Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this Contract will provide the 

required coverage and not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or endorsed to 

lower limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to the City.  Such 

notice shall be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested and sent directly to the City’s named 

Project Manager at: 

Page 150



 

Kevin Burgess 

Asst. Public Services Director 

748 E. Cleveland St 

Apopka, FL 

32703 

 

ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS 

 

Insurance is to be placed with insurers duly licensed or approved unlicensed companies in the State of 

Florida, and with an “A.M. Best” rating of not less than B+ VI. The City in no way warrants that 

the above required minimum insurer rating is sufficient to protect the CMAR from potential insurer 

insolvency. 

 

VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE 

 

A. The CMAR will furnish the City, Certificates of Insurance (ACORD form or equivalent 

approved by the City) as required by this Contract. The certificates for each insurance policy are to be 

signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. 

 

B. All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the City before work 

commences. Each insurance policy required by this Contract must be in effect at or prior to the 

earlier of commencement of work under this Contract and remain in effect for the duration of the 

Project. Failure to maintain the insurance policies as required by this Contract or to provide 

evidence of renewal is a material breach of contract. 

 

C. All certificates required by this Contract will be sent directly to the City Engineer for this 

Project. The City project/contract number and project description shall be noted on the certificates of 

insurance. The City reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all insurance policies 

required by this Contract, at any time. DO NOT SEND CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE TO 

THE CITY’S RISK MANAGEMENT DIVISION. 

 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 

 

 

  

Page 151



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Apopka by its City Administrator and City Clerk have 

hereunto subscribed their names this day of , 2016. 

 

 

CITY OF APOPKA 

 

 

 

Glenn A. Irby 

City Administator 

ATTEST: 

 

  
Linda F. Goff 

City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

 

  
Cliff Shephard 

City Attorney 
 

 

 

------------(CONTRACTOR)---------- 

 

 

 

By:    

 

Its: 

  

(Title)

Page 152



EXHIBIT A 

CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK AGREEMENT 

ALL REQUIREMENTS FOR THE GMP SUBMITTAL 

 

Table of Contents: 

 

1. Scope of Work 

2. Summary of the GMP 

3. Schedule of Values - summary spreadsheet and backup documents 

4. List of Plans and Specifications used for GMP Proposal 

5. List of clarification and assumptions 

6. Project Schedule 

 

 

1. Scope of work will consist of a brief description of the work to be performed by 

CMAR and major points that the CMAR and the City must be aware of pertaining 

to the scope.  

 

2. A summary of the GMP with a total for each of the components of the GMP as 

listed in its definition in Article 1 as shown in the table below: The general conditions 

fee includes bond and insurance cost. All costs should be listed individually for future 

use. 

 

PROJECT #:    DATE:     

PROJECT NAME:    

 

 

GMP SUMMARY AMOUNT 

A. Cost of the Work (Labor, Materials, Equipment, Warranty) $ 

B. CMAR's Contingency  $ 

INDIRECT COSTS RATE  

C. Construction Fee % $ 

D. General Conditions %  

 D1 Payment and Performance 

Bond 
$ %  

 D2 Insurance $ %  

E. Sales Taxes % $ 

 F. TOTAL GMP $ 

G. Owner’s 
Contingency 

$ 

Page 153



 

Formulas: 

Total GMP: A+B+C+D+E = F 

 

Rates (Percentages) are calculated by dividing each amount by F, such as B/F, D/F, and D1/F 

 

3. Schedule of Values - spread sheet with the estimated bid or cost organized by 

subcontract categories, allowances, bid contingency, general conditions costs, taxes, bonds, 

insurances, and the CMAR's construction phase fee. The supporting document for the 

spreadsheet must be provided in an organized manner that correlates with the schedule of 

values. The backup information shall consist of the request for bids, bids received, and 

clarification assumptions used for the particular bid item listed on the schedule of values, if 

applicable. 

 

4. A list of the Plans and Specifications with latest issuance date including all addenda used in 

preparation of the GMP proposal. The plans used for the GMP must be date stamped and 

signed by CMAR, Design Professional, and Project Manager using the format below. 

 

Plans Used For Preparation of GMP No. 

  

CMAR Date 

  

Design Professional Date 

  

Project Manager Date 

 

 

5. A list of the clarifications and assumptions made by the CMAR in the preparation of the 

GMP proposal, to supplement the information contained in the documents. 

 

6. A Critical Path Method (CPM) diagram construction schedule. 

 

NOTE: The submittal package must be kept as simple as possible all on 8½ x 11 sheets. Color or 

shading must be kept to a minimum. If used, make sure the color or shading will not affect the 

reproduction of the submittal in black and white. 

 

Page 154



Final GMP submittal will consist of the following: 

 

1. 8 Copies of the GMP (perforated as requested by the City) Velo or 3-hole punched. 

 

2. One copy of the plans and technical specifications used to arrive at the GMP 

(signed by Design Professional, CMAR and Project Manager). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 155



Page 1 of 6 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Apopka WRF Expansion (Project) 

Preconstruction Services  

Prepared for: 

City of Apopka, Florida (City) 

  

Prepared by: 

Garney Construction Company (Garney) 

 

April 26, 2016 

 

General 
The City of Apopka (City) has selected to upgrade and expansion of the City of Apopka’s WRF 
using the Construction Manager @ Risk (CMAR) delivery method for performing the work.  
Garney will work in partnership with the City and Tetra Tech (the design engineer) to complete 
a design of a WRF Expansion project that meets the City’s long term wastewater needs. 
 

Garney’s Scope of Services 

This scope of services includes attendance and participation in progress meetings, design 
reviews, value engineering and constructability input, scheduling, bidding and Guaranteed 
Maximum Price (GMP) preparation.  These services are separated into various task necessary 
to complete the overall scope of services.  

 

Task #1 – Initial (PDR) Design Task 

a. Project Review Meeting:  Participate in a team meeting at the plant site to review the 
status of the consent decree, design, funding and City’s desired outcome of the project. 
One week prior to the meeting, City provide latest set of design documents for review. 

b. Construction Management Plan (CMP):  Garney will review existing facility drawings, as 
well as, visit the site to evaluate the condition of the existing facility and how best to 
incorporate the proposed upgrade / expansion.  Evaluate the existing electrical service 
to determine needs and capabilities.  Garney will assist with working with permitting and 
funding agencies to ensure their requirements are being met and are incorporated into 
the overall project plan. 

c. Buried Debris Investigation:  We will perform potholing in the areas of the buried debris 
to understand the extent and makeup of the issue.  We will prepare a detailed report, 

Page 156



Apopka WRF Expansion – Preconstruction Scope of Services (Cont’d) 
 
 
 

  Page 2 of 6  

with locations, soil content make up and anticipated quantities of removal.  We will 
investigate and determine the most economical disposal application. 

d. Survey:  Garney will perform the following survey activities at the existing plant, 
proposed area of new facility and offsite site area for new stormwater pond.  This 
survey will include:  

1. Locate the new Ground Storage Tank (GST) and perform a visual check of the 
site to compare the existing survey map with the current conditions. Update 
survey with any new additions. 

2. Locate and document underground utilities as uncovered by Garney test pitting. 

3. Provide two (2) Horizontal and Vertical Control Benchmarks 

4. Perform a test profile of existing Topography of East Plant to confirm survey is 
still valid. 

5. Perform a test profile of existing Topography of future pond on north side of 
Cleveland Street. 

6. Establish Vertical and Horizontal control for the site and confirm 1929 or 1988 
Datum was used for existing survey 

e. Project Schedule:  Garney will prepare a detailed schedule to reflect all the activities 
necessary to complete the design of the project.  The schedule will include permitting, 
all major material purchases, submittal activities, and address the consent decree 
dates.   

f. Design Review:  Garney will perform a detailed review of the design, along with doing a 
constructability and bidability review.  A report with our observations, issues and 
recommendations will be provided. We will participate in meetings to review the design 
and discuss issues, changes and actions items to be include in the design.  We will 
prepare meeting minutes that will be distributed to all attendees documenting all 
comments and design changes.  Garney will perform a value engineering to look for 
potential savings be incorporating various value engineering and constructability ideas.  
A report will prepared listing ideas and potential saving and a meeting held with the City 
to select items to incorporate. 

g. Cost Estimate:  Garney will prepare a budget estimate based on the design documents 
provided.  Past estimates will be used and updated to reflect present market conditions 
for labor, material, etc.  A summary by process will be provided, to understand the 
project overall cost structure.   

 

 

Page 157



Apopka WRF Expansion – Preconstruction Scope of Services (Cont’d) 
 
 
 

  Page 3 of 6  

 Task #2 – 60% Design Task 

a. Buried Asset Locating:  We will perform locating / potholing for all major process lines 
and electrical to determine exact location, elevation and confirm material type and pipe 
diameter.  We will prepare a detailed report which will inventory each item and include 
all information obtained. 

b. Project Schedule:  Garney will update the schedule to reflect the 60% design 
documents, along with incorporating all progress made to date.  Milestones will be 
established for the project and incorporated within the schedule to ensure the project 
stays on track. The schedule will focus on the critical path, any long lead time 
equipment / materials and activities that could be early to fast track the schedule. 

c. Design Review:  Garney will perform a detailed review of the design, along with doing a 
constructability and bidability review.  A report with our observations, issues and 
recommendations will be provided. We will participate in meetings to review the design 
and discuss issues, changes and actions items to be include in the design.  We will 
prepare meeting minutes that will be distributed to all attendees documenting all 
comments and design changes.  Garney will perform a value engineering to look for 
potential savings be incorporating various value engineering and constructability ideas.  
A report will prepared listing ideas and potential saving and a meeting held with the City 
to select items to incorporate. 

d. Cost Estimates:  Garney will prepare a detailed cost estimates based on the 60% 
design.  Detailed backup will be provided and presented in an “open book” format for 
the City to review.  An anticipated cash flow projection will be provided for budgeting the 
finance needs for the project. 

e. GMP:  Garney will develop an early GMP that will include the early solicitation and 
purchase of key equipment, materials and activities, which will allow assist with meeting 
the project and consent decree dates. 

1. Garney will select the long lead items that could impact the schedule. For those 
items identified, Garney will develop a detailed scope of supply, solicit vendors 
for pricing, review proposals and provide a detailed analysis for selection.  We 
will negotiate the terms / conditions, final price and delivery deadlines, along with 
preparing a detailed purchase order. 

2. Garney will prepare a detailed bid packages for early completion activities, solicit 
and pre-qualify companies to submit proposals, hold prebid meetings and site 
visit, receive and analyze proposals.   

3. Prepare GMP #1 that includes the cost of the long lead time equipment / 
materials, early bid package items, CMAR contingency, general conditions, 
bonds, insurance and CMAR fee for City’s review and approval. 

Page 158



Apopka WRF Expansion – Preconstruction Scope of Services (Cont’d) 
 
 
 

  Page 4 of 6  

Task #3 – 90% Design Task 

a. Construction Management Plan (CMP):  Garney will assist with working with permitting 
and funding agencies to ensure their requirements are being met and are incorporated 
into the overall project plan. 

b. Project Schedule:  Garney will update the schedule to reflect the 90% design 
documents, along with incorporating all progress made to date.  The status and 
progress of the long lead item procurement items and GMP #1 packages will be 
incorporated and updated in the schedule.  

c. Design Review:  Garney will perform a detailed review of the design, along with doing a 
constructability and bidability review.  A report with our observations, issues and 
recommendations will be provided. We will participate in meetings to review the design 
and discuss issues, changes and actions items to be include in the design.  We will 
prepare meeting minutes that will be distributed to all attendees documenting all 
comments and design changes.   

d. Cost Estimates:  Garney will provide updated detailed cost estimates based on the 90% 
design.  Detailed backup will be provided and presented in an “open book” format for 
the City to review.  An updated cash flow projection will be provided for budgeting the 
finance needs for the project. 

 

Task #4 – GMP Development 

a. Bid Package Development:  based on the 90% design, Garney will prepare bid 
packages for the various components of the project.  This will include major process 
equipment items, along with the breaking the project into work types (IE: electrical, 
painting, etc.) to receive quotations.   

b. Project Bidding: Garney will solicit, prequalify and issue bid packages to prospective 
bidders. Garney will hold a prebid meeting and site tour in explain the project details, 
expectations and familiarize each bidder with the existing site conditions.     

c. Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP):  Garney will review and evaluate each bid received 
for completeness and adherence to the project requirements.  Garney will prepare a 
GMP based these bids received, along with the CMAR contingency, bonds, insurance, 
general conditions and CMAR fee for review and approval by the City. 

d. Scheduling:  Garney will finalize a detailed schedule based on the input from proposed 
bidders.  The schedule will be resource loaded to reflect the GMP.  A final cash flow 
projection will be provided to match the GMP.   

 

Page 159



Apopka WRF Expansion – Preconstruction Scope of Services (Cont’d) 
 
 
 

  Page 5 of 6  

Services Not Included 

The following services are not included in this Scope of Services: 

 Permitting of the expansion.  We will provide assistance during design for the City & 
Tetra Tech for use in obtaining the permits. 

 Payment of any permit fees. 

Deliverables (Garney) 

Garney will provide City the following deliverables: 

 Design review report 

 Value Engineering report with anticipated savings 

 Buried Debris Investigation Report 

 Buried Asset Report 

 Updated Survey Information 

 Detailed cost estimates 

 Detailed resource loaded schedule 

 Schedule of values 

 Project cash flow projection 

 Subcontractor & supplier bid packages 

 Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) for construction of the WRF Expansion 

Period of Service 

This scope of services are based on the being completed over a 9 month period from May 
2016 through January 2017, commencing upon the execution of the contract.   

Schedule of Cost 

The total cost for this scope of services is $422,000.00, the detailed cost breakdown by task is 
provided below.  All cost will be billed on a monthly basis, based on percent complete for each 
activity.  

Page 160



Apopka WRF Expansion – Preconstruction Scope of Services (Cont’d) 
 
 
 

  Page 6 of 6  

 

Task #1 – Initial (PDR) Design Task  $ 121,500 

Task #2 – 60% Design Task    $ 200,000 

Task #3 – 90% Design Task    $   30,500 

Task #4 – GMP Development    $   70,000 

Page 161



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

11. Award a contract to Florida Community Bank (FCB) for banking services.  
  

Page 162



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X     CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: May 18, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:             Finance Dept 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT:  BANKING SERVICES (RFP 2016-03) 

 

REQUEST: APPROVE THE RANKING OF THE RESPONSES TO THE BANKING SERVICES 

RFP AND DIRECT STAFF TO ENTER INTO A THREE YEAR CONTRACT WITH 

FLORIDA COMMUNITY BANK (FCB) TO PROVIDE BANKING SERVICES FOR 

THE CITY. CONTRACT MAY BE RENEWED FOR ADDITIONAL TWO YEARS 

IF MUTUALLY AGREED UPON.  
  
SUMMARY: 

On February 5, 2016, the Finance Department issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) for Banking Services.  

The RFP (#2016-03) was advertised in the Apopka Chief, posted on the City website, and on DemandStar.  

Four (4) proposals were received and opened publicly on March 7, 2016.  A brief summary of the proposals 

is as follows: 

 

 

Bank Name 

 

BankingFees * 

Compensating 

Balance Required 

Earning Rates   

CompBal / Investment 

IBERIA $  2,542.31 $  5,670,000 50 BPS / 65 BPS 

Wells Fargo     2,966.09     8,754,734 40 BPS / 65 BPS 

FCB     1,310.49     6,000,000 50 BPS / 50 BPS 

J.P. Morgan Chase     2,145.65   10,744,226 30 BPS / 0 BPS 

* Based on services currently utilized by the City  

 

Two banks, IBERIA and FCB, were very comparable, so at the request of the Finance Department each 

was asked to conduct a presentation to promote their banking services and their approach to service the 

City.  The City Administrator, Finance Director and Accounting Manager participated in the presentations. 

 

During the presentations, it was apparent that both banks were excellent banking institutions and could 

provide exceptional services for the City.  FCB’s proposal included additional services and incentives.  FCB 

has agreed to include a $15,000 annual OFOF sponsorship for the next three years and provide a Brinks 

SmartSafe or courier service at no extra cost.  Staff believes these services and incentives make FCB the 

better choice for the City. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A                        
Page 163



  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve the ranking of the banks submitting responses to the Banking Services RFP (#2016-03) and direct 

staff to enter into a three year contract, renewable for two additional years if mutually agreed upon, with 

Florida Community Bank (FCB) to provide banking services for the City. 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

Page 164



Banking Services

RFP #2016-03

RANKING CRITERIA

ORIGINAL RANKING -completed by Finance Director

MaxPoints IBERIA Wells Fargo FCB

JPMorgan 

Chase
Completeness of Response using Provided Forms 5 5 5 5 5

Prior Experience 5 5 5 5 5

User Friendliness of Online System/Remote Capabilities 15 15 15 15 15

Ability to Meet Current & Projected Services 15 15 15 15 15

Aggregate Costs for Banking Services 25 15 10 25 20

Compensated Balance Required 15 15 5 10 0

Earnings Potential/Rate on Investments 20 20 15 15 0

TOTAL 100 90 70 90 60

RANKING AFTER PRESENTATION -combined totals of individual/independent rankings

MaxPoints IBERIA FCB
Completeness of Response using Provided Forms 15 12 15

Prior Experience 15 13 15

User Friendliness of Online System/Remote Capabilities 45 37 45

Ability to Meet Current & Projected Services 45 35 45

Aggregate Costs for Banking Services 75 55 75

Compensated Balance Required 45 45 30

Earnings Potential/Rate on Investments 60 60 48

TOTAL 300 257 273

Page 165



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Ordinance 2498 – First Reading – Change of Zoning - Quasi-Judicial    David Moon 
  

Page 166



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: May 18, 2016 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 

X OTHER: Ordinance   Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Use Map 

    Existing Uses Map 

    Ordinance No.2498 
  

SUBJECT:  ORDINANCE NO. 2498 – CHANGE OF ZONING – JTD LAND AT ROGERS 

ROAD, LLC 

   

REQUEST:  FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2498 – CHANGE OF ZONING – 

JTD LAND AT ROGERS ROAD, LLC, FROM “COUNTY” A-1 (ZIP) TO 

“CITY” R-1 (RESIDENTIAL); (PARCEL I.D. NOS. 29-20-28-0000-00-004 & 

29-20-28-0000-00-026; AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND READING AND 

ADOPTION. 
  
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: JTD Land at Rogers Road LLC 
 
LOCATION: North of Lester Road, east of Rogers Road 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant 
 
PROPOSED  
FLUM DESIGNATION: Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 du/ac) (NOTE: This change of zoning 

application is being processed in conjunction with a large scale FLUM 
amendment requesting Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 du/ac). 

 
CURRENT ZONING: “County” A-1 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Single-family residential development  
 
 
TRACT SIZE:   30.5 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 122 
    PROPOSED: 106 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
N/A  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

Page 167



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 18, 2016 
JTD LAND AT ROGERS ROAD, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Presently, the subject property has not yet been assigned a “City” zoning 

category.  Applicant is requesting the City to assign a zoning classification of R-1 (Residential) to the 

property.  

 

The subject parcels were annexed into the City of Apopka on December 2, 2015, through Ordinances 

2459.  The proposed change of zoning is being requested by the owner/applicant.  A final hearing for the 

large-scale future land use amendment (Ordinance 2485) for the subject property will appear before City 

Council at its June 1, 2016 meeting prior to the final hearing for this rezoning case (Ordinance 2498).   

 

A request to assign a change of zoning to R-1 (Residential) is compatible to the adjacent zoning 

classifications and with the general character of abutting properties and surrounding area.  The property 

owner is requesting the R-1 (Residential) zoning classification to accommodate the use of the property for 

a single-family residential development.  This change of zoning application is being processed in 

conjunction with a large scale future land use amendment for Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 du/ac), 

which will have a final hearing before City Council on June 1, 2016 and before the second hearing for this 

rezoning application scheduled for same Council hearing date.  The proposed use is consistent with the 

existing future land use, proposed zoning district and compatible with the general character of 

surrounding zoning and uses.  The change of zoning application covers approximately 30.5 acres.  

 

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 

adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Zoning Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is 

consistent with the Residential Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) Future Land Use designation and the City’s 

proposed R-1 (Residential) Zoning classification.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed 

by the Future Land Use policies.  

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:   A Capacity Enhancement Agreement or a letter must be obtained 

from Orange County Public Schools prior to scheduling a City Council hearing for a Preliminary 

Development Plan for the residential subdivision associated with this property. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on November 9, 2015. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

May 10, 2016 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

May 18, 2016 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 

June 1, 2016 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

April 22, 2016 – Public Notice and Notification 

May 20, 2016 – Ordinance Heading ¼ Page w/Map Ad 

Page 168



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 18, 2016 
JTD LAND AT ROGERS ROAD, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and recommends approval of the change 

in zoning from “County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” R-1 (Residential) for the property owned by JTD Land at 

Rogers Road LLC. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on May 10, 2016, found the change of zoning to “City” R-1 

(Residential) consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; and recommended 

adoption (7-0); subject to adoption of the Proposed Future Land Use Designation.  

 

Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2498 and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on 

June 1, 2016. 

 

Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be 

incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 

Page 169



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 18, 2016 
JTD LAND AT ROGERS ROAD, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 

 
ZONING REPORT 

 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 du/ac) R-1AAA Vacant 

East (City) Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 du/ac) PUD & R-IAAA Vacant 

South (City) Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 du/ac) R-1 Single-family homes (Lester Ridge) 

West (City and 

County) 

Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 du/ac) & 

“County” Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) 

“City” R-1AA & 

“County” A-1 

Single-family homes and vacant 

 

LAND USE & TRAFFIC 

COMPATIBILITY: The subject property fronts and is accessed by a local roadway (Rogers 

Road).   

 

COMPREHENSIVE  

PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed R-1 (Residential) zoning is consistent with the City’s 

Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 du/ac) Future Land Use designation and 

with the character of the surrounding area and future proposed 

development. The R-1 (Residential) zoning classification is one of the 

acceptable zoning categories allowed within the Industrial Future Land Use 

Designation.   Development Plans shall not exceed the density allowed in 

the adopted Future Land Use Designation. 
R-1 DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:  

Minimum Living Area: 1,500 sq. ft. 

Minimum Site Area: 8,000 sq. ft. 

Minimum Lot Width 75 ft. 

Setbacks: Front: 25 ft. 

 Rear: 20 ft. 

 Side: 10 ft. 

 Corner 25 ft.  
Based on the above zoning standards, the subject parcels comply with 
code requirements for the R-1 (Residential) district. 

 

BUFFERYARD  

REQUIREMENTS: 

1.  Developments shall provide a minimum six-foot high brick, stone or 

decorative block finished wall adjacent to all external roadways, erected 

inside a minimum ten-foot landscaped bufferyard. Landscape materials 

shall be placed adjacent to the right-of-way, on the exterior of the buffer 

wall. The city may allow the developer the option to provide up to 50 

percent of the buffer wall length in a six-foot wrought iron fence between 

solid columns. The columns shall be a minimum of 32 feet off-set and 

shall have a stone, brick or decorative block finish. Where wrought iron 

is used, additional landscape materials and irrigation may be required. 

This will be determined by the city on a case-by-case basis.  
Page 170



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 18, 2016 
JTD LAND AT ROGERS ROAD, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 

 

2. Areas adjacent to agricultural districts or activities shall provide a 

minimum five-foot bufferyard and a minimum six-foot high brick, stone 

or decorative block finished wall unless acceptable alternatives are 

submitted for approval.  

 

ALLOWABLE USES: Single-family dwellings and their customary accessory structures and uses 

in accordance with article VII of this code.  Supporting infrastructure and 

public facilities of less than five acres as defined in this code and in 

accordance with section 2.02.01. 

Page 171



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 18, 2016 
JTD LAND AT ROGERS ROAD, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 

 

 
JTD Land at Rogers Rd, LLC 

Property Owner 
30.5 +/- Acres 

  
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: “County” A-1 (ZIP) 
To: “City R-1 

Parcel ID #s:  29-20-28-0000-00-004 & 29-20-28-0000-00-026 

 
VICINITY MAP 

 

Subject 

Properties 

Page 172



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 18, 2016 
JTD LAND AT ROGERS ROAD, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 

 

 
 
 
 

ADJACENT ZONING 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 173



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 18, 2016 
JTD LAND AT ROGERS ROAD, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 

 

 
 
 
 

ADJACENT USES 

Page 174



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 18, 2016 
JTD LAND AT ROGERS ROAD, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 

 

 
 
 
 

EXISTING USES 
 

 

 

 
 

 
  
 

Page 175



 
ORDINANCE NO. 2498 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING THE 

ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 (ZIP) TO “CITY” R-1 (RESIDENTIAL) FOR 

CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF LESTER 

ROAD, EAST OF ROGERS ROAD, COMPRISING 30.5 ACRES MORE OR LESS, 

AND OWNED BY JTD LAND AT ROGERS ROAD, LLC; PROVIDING FOR 

DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest of the 
public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as identified in 
Section I of this ordinance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed R-1 (Residential) zoning has been found to be consistent with the City 
of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, as 
follows: 
 
 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated in the 
City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby R-1 (Residential), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code. 
 
 Legal Description: 
 

A Portion of The Southwest ¼ of Section 29, Township 20 South, Range 28 East, Orange 

County, Florida, described as follows:  Commence at the Northwest Corner of the Southwest 

¼ of Section 29, Township 20 South, Range 28 East, Orange County, Florida; thence 

N89°54'35"E, along the North Line of the Northwest ¼ of the Southwest ¼ of said Section 

29, a distance of 30.00 Feet to a point on the East Right-Of-Way Line of Rogers Road as 

described in Official Records Book 1803, Page 779, of the Public Records of Orange County, 

Florida and the Point of Beginning; thence continue along said North Line, N89°54'35"E, a 

distance of 1321.79 Feet to the Northeast Corner of the Northwest ¼ of the Southwest ¼ of 

said Section 29; thence S00°L8'12"W, along the East Line of the Northwest ¼ of the 

Southwest 1/4 of said Section 29, a distance Of 1012.64 Feet to a point on the South Line of 

those certain lands described in Official Records Book 3073, Page 249, of aforesaid Public 

Records; said point also lying on the North Line of Lester Ridge, according to the plat 

thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 79, Pages 111-114, said Public Records; thence 

N89°43'26"W, along said South Line, a distance of 675.27 Feet to the midpoint between the 

East Line and the West Line of the North ¾ of the Northwest ¼ of the Southwest ¼ of said 

Section 29; thence continue N89°43'26"W, along said South Line, a distance of 645.27 Feet 

to a point on the East Right-Of-Way Line of aforesaid Rogers Road; thence N00°L3'59"E, 

along said East Line, a distance of 1004.18 Feet to the Point Of Beginning. 

Parcel I.D. Nos.: 29-20-28-0000-00-004 & 29-20-28-0000-00-026 

30.5 +/- Acres 
 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the City of 

Apopka, Florida. 

 
Page 176



ORDINANCE NO. 2498 

PAGE 2 
 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is hereby 

authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, Florida, to 

include said designation.   

 

 Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves to be 

invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force or effect 

of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.   

 

 Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the effective date the Large Scale Future 

Land Use Ordinance No. 2485. 

 

 
 

                       
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: April 22, 2016 

    May 20, 2016 

READ FIRST TIME:  May 18, 2016 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
June 1, 2016 

Page 177



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Preliminary Development Plan/Development Agreement – Copart, Inc.   David Moon 
  

Page 178



    

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

   
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: May 18, 2016 

 ANNEXATION  FROM: Community Development 

 PLAT APPROVAL  EXHIBITS: Vicinity/Aerial Maps 

X OTHER: Preliminary Development Plan   Development Agreement 

    D.A. Exhibits 

PDP Site Plan 

Landscape Plans 

Building Elevations 

 

  

     

     

     

     

     
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

PROJECT:         DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AND PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT 

PLAN (MAJOR SITE PLAN) - COPART 

       
Request: APPROVAL OF THE DEVELOPER’S AGREEMENT AND 

PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR COPART; AND ISSUANCE 
OF THE PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT ORDER. 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY: 

 
OWNER/APPLICANT:  Copart of Connecticut, Inc. 
 
ENGINEER:   Burkett Engineering c/o Rene J. Schneider, P.E.  
 
ARCHITECT: Fugleberg Koch, PLLC c/o Norman W. Nesmith, AIA 
 
LOCATION: 3351 West Orange Blossom Trail 
 
PARCEL ID #:  01-21-27-0000-00-032 
 
LAND USE: Industrial 
 
ZONING: I-1 
 
EXISTING USE: Underutilized Industrial Facility 
 
PROPOSED USE:  Office, warehouse and outdoor damaged vehicle storage site 
 
TRACT SIZE:   57.89 +/- acres 
 
BUILDING SIZE: 24,000 sq. ft. - Industrial Warehouse (16,500 S.F.) w/ Office Space (7,500 S.F.)   
 
__________________________________________________________________________________________  
 Page 179



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 18, 2016 
COPART – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
PAGE 2 

 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director    Public Ser. Director 

Commissioners (4)           HR Director     City Clerk 

City Administrator Irby      IT Director     Fire Chief  

Community Dev. Director        Police Chief    

 
G:\CommDev\PLANNINGZONING\SITEPLANS\2016\Copart\Copart PDP - CC – 5-18-16  

  

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Mixed Use ZIP Used Car Sales / Tire Sales 

North (County) Rural A-1 Single Family Residential 

East (City) Industrial I-1 Industrial Warehouse 

South (City) Institutional PO/I Cemetery 

South (City) Industrial I-1 Vacant Property 

West (City) Industrial I-1 Foliage Nursery 

West (County) Rural R-3 Single Family Residential 

         

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The Copart - Preliminary Development Plan (Major Site Plan) proposes to 

renovate and remodel an existing 24,000 square foot metal building for warehouse and office use.  Copart, Inc. 

provides vehicle suppliers (primarily insurance companies) with a full range of services to process and sell intact 

damaged vehicles, principally to licensed dismantlers, rebuilders and used vehicle dealers. 

 

At the December 2, 2015 city Council Meeting, the issue regarding the specific use of this site in relation to the 

I-1 zoning district was discussed.  In order to mitigate any adverse effects of this property on adjoining properties,  

and to provide assurances that the use will not create incompatibilities with future uses, the applicant has agreed 

to enter into a Developer’s Agreement.  This agreement addresses the following: 

1. Enhanced buffering including an 8 foot masonry wall with substantial landscaping exceeding code 

requirements on all sides visible from public right-of-way; 

2. Limitations on use of the facility to those uses allowed in the I-1 zoning district and Copart as a specific 

use as defined in the agreement; 

3. Limitations on the type and location of vehicles contained on the site with performance standards to 

reduce or eliminate their visibility outside of the property; 

4. Prohibitions on crushing or dismantling of vehicles; and 

5. Limitations on the amount of time vehicles are stores on the site. 

It is the intent that these additional standards will address any concerns specific to the use.  Additionally the 

enhanced development standards and limitations are greater than many uses that are more intense and permitted 

in the district. 

 

PARKING:  A total of 68 parking spaces are provided (63 required by code) of which 3 are reserved as a 

handicapped parking space.   

 

ACCESS:  Access to the site is provided by an existing driveway cut along West Orange Blossom Trail. 

 

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS:  Staff has found the proposed building elevations to be in accordance with the 

City’s Development Design Guidelines. Page 180



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 18, 2016 
COPART – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
PAGE 3 

 

   

STORMWATER:   Stormwater run-off and drainage will be accommodated by an on-site stormwater drainage 

system.  The stormwater management system is designed according to standards set forth in the Land 

Development Code.  

 

BUFFER/ TREE PROGRAM: 
The applicant has provided a detailed landscape and irrigation plan for the property. The planting materials and 
irrigation system design are consistent with the water-efficient landscape standards set forth in Ordinance No. 
2069.  The developer is required to pay tree mitigation fee of $25,485 into the tree bank fund. 
 
The following is a summary of the tree replacement program for this project: 
 
Total inches on-site:                3634 
Total number of specimen trees:     38 
Total inches removed:    3315 
Total inches retained:      322 
Total specimen inches retained:     54 
Total inches required:    3261 
Total inches replaced:      712 
 

   

ENVIRONMENTAL:  Based on the results of the habitat study, the developer must obtain approval from the 

Florida Department of Environmental Protection prior to commencing any site construction activity. 

 

WAIVER REQUESTS:  None.  Any special conditions applicable to the project are addressed within the 

Development Agreement. 

 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
November 24, 2015 - Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 
December 2, 2015 - City Council (1:30 pm) – Tabled 
May 18, 2016 – City Council (7:00pm) 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommended approval of the Copart Preliminary Development Plan at 
the Planning Commission hearing held on November 10, 2015.  The applicant, Copart, has revised the Preliminary 
Development Plan and applied for a Development Agreement.  The Development Review Committee 
recommendations for the May 18 City Council hearing are based on the revised Preliminary Development Plan 
and the Development Agreement.  Changes to the Preliminary Development Plan were considered to be 
insignificant by the staff, not requiring further review by the Planning Commission. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on November 10, 2015, continued this item to the Planning 
Commission meeting on November 24, 2015, due to the applicant not providing necessary documentation in a 
timely manner. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on November 24, 2015, recommended: 
 

1. Recommended denial (6-0) of Waiver Request No. 1 to allow an eight (8) feet high metal wall to screen 
the site from public view. 

2. Recommend approval (6-0) of Waiver Request No. 2 to allow the use of rock in lieu of a hard surface for 
the vehicle storage area. 

Page 181



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 18, 2016 
COPART – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
PAGE 4 

 
3. Recommends approval (6-0) of the Copart – Preliminary Development Plan, subject to the findings of this 

staff report. 
 
City Council, at its meeting December 2, 2015, voted unanimously to table the Copart – Preliminary 
Development Plan.  Following the December 2 meeting, Copart has revised the Preliminary Development Plan 
and submitted a proposed Development Agreement. 
 
City Council will take action on three items at the May 18 hearing in the following order: 
 

1.  Development Agreement (Staff supports the Development Agreement if City Council accepts the Copart 
use, as described in Exhibit “D” and illustrated on the Preliminary Development Plan, as an I-1 
Industrial Permissible Use.) 

 
2.  Copart Preliminary Development Plan for the property owned by Copart, Inc.  (Staff supports if City 

Council accepts the Copart use, as described in Exhibit “D” of the Development Agreement, as an I-1 
Industrial Permissible Use.) 
 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 
and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  

Page 182



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 18, 2016 
COPART – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
PAGE 5 

 
Application:  Preliminary Development Plan 

Owner/Applicant:     Copart of Connecticut, Inc.              

Engineer:  Burkett Engineering c/o Rene J. Schneider, P.E. 
Architect:  Fugleberg Koch, PLLC., c/o Norman W. Nesmith, AIA 
Parcel I.D. No:    01-21-27-0000-00-032 
Location:  3351 West Orange Blossom Trail 
Acres:  57.89 +/-  

 
 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 Page 183



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 18, 2016 
COPART – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
PAGE 6 

 
Application:  Preliminary Development Plan 

Owner/Applicant:     Copart of Connecticut, Inc.              

Engineer:  Burkett Engineering c/o Rene J. Schneider, P.E. 
Architect:  Fugleberg Koch, PLLC., c/o Norman W. Nesmith, AIA 
Parcel I.D. No:    01-21-27-0000-00-032 
Location:  3351 West Orange Blossom Trail 
Acres:  57.89 +/-  

 
  

AERIAL MAP 

 

 

 
 

Page 184



 

O1459987.v3-5/11/16 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DEVELOPER’S AGREEMENT 
FOR DEVELOPMENT OF COPART, INC. APOPKA PROPERTY 

 

 THIS AGREEMENT, made effective as of the date specified in paragraph 3 below, by and 

among the CITY OF APOPKA, a municipal corporation existing and organized under the laws of 

the State of Florida, hereinafter sometimes referred to as “CITY,” and COPART OF CONNECTICUT, 

INC., a Connecticut corporation, hereinafter sometimes referred to as “COPART.” WITNESSETH 

THAT: 

 WHEREAS, COPART warrants that it holds legal title to certain land situated in the City of 

Apopka, Orange County, Florida, as described in Exhibit “A” hereto (the “Property”); and  

WHEREAS, the subject Property is substantially undeveloped at the present time and will 

require site plan approval and the installation of certain capital improvements as it is developed, 

which improvements, hereinafter the “Improvements,” are more specifically described herein; 

and 

 WHEREAS, it is the purpose of this Agreement to set forth clearly the understanding and 

agreement of the parties with respect to the contemplated Improvements. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH: 

1. COPART agrees that it and its successors and assigns will abide by the provisions 

of this Agreement and will install the following Improvements: 

a. COPART will, at its sole expense, install and maintain an eight foot (8’) high 

masonry wall along the north, south and west sides of the Property, as well as 

the northerly +/- 475 LF of the east side of the Property (adjoining to the 

masonry wall at the northeast corner of the Property), except as set forth 

Page 185



 

2 
O1459987.v3-5/11/16 

below.  COPART will, at its sole expense install an eight foot (8’) metal wall 

along the east side of the Property where the masonry wall stops to the 

Property’s southerly property boundary.  Architectural renderings showing the 

design and placement of the masonry and metal walls on the Property are 

attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and Exhibit “C-1 & C-2,” respectively.” 

b. COPART will, at its sole expense, install and maintain a landscape buffer on all 

four sides of the property, as set forth and attached hereto as Exhibits C-1 & 

C-2.  Said buffer is to be maintained by COPART and will be subject to code 

enforcement action and plant replacement at COPART’s expense should 

COPART breach this maintenance obligation. 

c. Use of the Property is limited to COPART’s current proposed use, as well as 

any other use that is or may be permitted under the Property’s current and/or 

future zoning designation. Any expansion of COPART’s operations not 

currently approved under this Agreement or currently permissible under the 

current or future zoning designation will require the approval of the CITY 

Council.    

d. The Property will be subject to code enforcement inspections by the City as 

set forth in Chapter 54, Article II, of the City Code, to insure the Property is 

only used as approved. 

e. No more than twenty percent (20%) of the overall Property may be used to 

store vehicles that exceed a height of fourteen feet (14’) and those exceeding 

fourteen feet (14’) in height must be stored more than eight hundred feet 

(800’) from the front property line along West Orange Blossom Trail as shown 

on Exhibit “E”. 

f. COPART’S ordinary and regular operations, as detailed on Exhibit “D” attached 

hereto, shall not be deemed “on-site sales” and/or “live auctions”, and shall 

Page 186



 

3 
O1459987.v3-5/11/16 

be deemed compliant with this Agreement and the Property zoning 

designation. 

g. All ‘for-sale’ vehicles, product, or equipment must be stored within the 

designated vehicle storage areas indicated on Exhibit “E” attached hereto and 

shall not be stored at any time within paved business parking areas, within 

landscape buffers or parked within travel aisles of the designated storage 

areas as indicated on Exhibit “E”.  Vehicle storage space and driving aisles shall 

be constructed of asphalt tailings and gravel as shown on Exhibit “E”. 

h. All tow trucks or company trucks parked overnight at the Property shall be 

parked within the designated vehicle storage areas indicated on Exhibit “E”. 

i. No vehicle, equipment or product dismantling, crushing or sale of parts shall 

occur on or within the Property. 

j. Construction or utility vehicles, product, or equipment with aerial buckets or 

cranes shall be stored with the crane arm or boom in the down position to the 

greatest extent possible to a height of less than fourteen feet (14’). 

k. No sign appearing on any vehicle or equipment placed in the designated 

vehicle storage areas indicated on  Exhibit “E” shall be visible outside the 

Property boundaries 

l. Vehicles, product, and equipment stored within the designated storage areas 

indicated on the Preliminary Development Plan shall never be stacked upon 

one another. 

m. No more than twenty percent (20%) of the vehicles, products or equipment 

shall be stored on the Property for more than one hundred eighty (180) 

consecutive days. 

n. COPART will possess and keep current any and all licenses required to operate 

its business on the Property which may include: 

1.  Florida VA – Motor Vehicle Auction; 

Page 187



 

4 
O1459987.v3-5/11/16 

2. Florida VI – Motor Vehicle Dealer; 

3. Florida RV – Used Recreational Vehicle Dealer; 

4. Florida VW – Wholesale Dealer. 

o. The CITY acknowledges that the Property is approved for the business 

operations as permitted under each of the licenses listed in Paragraph 1.n 

above with the limitation that the operation falls within the confines of the 

outlined in the Copart Operations as described in Exhibit “D” . 

p. Any violation of this Agreement by COPART may result in code enforcement 

and all remedies and penalties available through that process, as well as all 

remedies available to the CITY through Article 12.07.00 of the CITY Code and 

all other legal means. 

2. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the subject 

Property and be binding upon any person, firm, or corporation who may become the successor 

in interest, directly or indirectly, to the subject Property.  COPART shall pay all costs of recording 

this Agreement.  No site improvements shall occur until this Agreement is recorded.  This 

Agreement is intended to be and become effective as of the date it is executed by the last to sign 

of the CITY or COPART. 
 

[Signature Pages Follow]  

Page 188



 

5 
O1459987.v3-5/11/16 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have entered into this Agreement as of the day 

and year first above written. 
      CITY 
 

The CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
a municipal corporation of the State of Florida 

 
By:  Board of City Council 

 
      By:       
ATTEST: 
 
       
 
Clerk of the Board of City Council 
 
By:       
 
Print Name:      
 
  

Page 189



 

6 
O1459987.v3-5/11/16 

      COPART 
 
WITNESS:     COPART OF CONNECTICUT, INC.,  
       a Connecticut Corporation 
 
 
      By:       
Name:      Name:       
      Title:       
 
       Date:       
Name:      
 
 
 
STATE OF _________________ 
 
COUNTY OF _______________ 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of   
 , 2016, by      , as     of COPART OF 
CONNECTICUT, INC., a Connecticut corporation, on behalf of said corporation.   Said person did 
not take an oath and is  personally known to me,  produced a driver’s license (issued by a 
state of the United States within the last five (5) years) as identification, or  produced other 
identification, to wit: 
_______________________________________________________________________. 
 
 
              
      Print Name:       
      Notary Public – State of      
      Commission No.:      
      My Commission Expires:     
 

Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



G
E

N
E

R
A

L  E
LE

C
T

R
IC

  R
O

A
D W

  O
R

A
N

G
E  B

LO
SSO

M
  TR

A
IL

HERMIT SMITH  ROAD HERMIT SMITH  ROAD

Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



SECTION 01

TOWNSHIP 21

RANGE 27

Page 205



Page 206



“ ”

Page 207



G
E

N
E

R
A

L 
E

LE
C

T
R

IC
 R

O
A

D

W
  O

R
A

N
G

E 
 B

LO
SS

O
M

  T
R

A
IL

HERMIT SMITH ROAD

Page 208



W
  O

R
A

N
G

E 
 B

LO
SS

O
M

  T
R

A
IL

Page 209



W  ORANGE  BLOSSOM  TRAIL

H
E

R
M

IT
 S

M
IT

H
  R

O
A

D

Page 210



Page 211



GENERAL  ELECTRIC  ROAD

H
E

R
M

IT
 S

M
IT

H
  R

O
A

D

Page 212



Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



Page 222



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Council 
a. Lake Apopka Natural Gas District board Appointment Letter  Vice Mayor Dean 

  

Page 223



Page 224



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Appointments to Lake Apopka Natural Gas District Board of Commissioners 
  

Page 225



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

      CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: May 18, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:  Mayor Kilsheimer 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS: Chapter 99-454, Laws 

  X   OTHER: Mayor’s Report       of the State of Florida 
  

 

SUBJECT: APPOINTMENTS TO LAKE APOPKA NATURAL GAS BOARD OF DIRECTORS. 

 

REQUEST: CONFIRM APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR KILSHEIMER AND COMMISSIONER 

VELAZQUEZ TO THE LAKE APOPKA NATURAL GAS DISTRICT BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS. 
  
SUMMARY:  
 

History:  On June 20, 1959, the Lake Apopka Natural Gas District (LANGD) was established to provide 

natural gas service to residents and businesses of its member municipalities: Apopka, Winter Garden, and 

Clermont.  The Board of Directors was designed to represent the ownership interest of the member 

municipalities, with Apopka having two representatives, Winter Garden having two representatives, and 

Clermont having one representative.   
 

On September 2, 1959, the Town Council of Apopka voted unanimously to approve the appointment of 

Mayor John H. Land and Councilman Lester Morgan as members of the inaugural LANGD Board.  

Throughout the 1960s and 1970s, Mayor Land rotated council-member delegates to represent the City on 

the LANGD Board, with himself serving at its inception and then again from July 15, 1987 until April 16, 

2014, when he retired.   
 

Discussion: Currently, the composition of the Board includes a sitting Apopka City Commissioner, Former 

Apopka City Commissioner, Mayor of Winter Garden, Former General Manager of LANGD, and Former 

Clermont City Councilwoman.  With the exception of the past two years, the Board has enjoyed 

representation by the mayors of Apopka and Winter Garden.   
 

Pursuant to Section 10, Chapter 99-454, Laws of the State of Florida, “There shall be two members who 

shall live in the corporate limits of the City of Apopka…”  Additionally, “Each commissioner shall be 

appointed by the governing body of the municipality in which he or she resides and shall serve for a term 

of 2 years or until his or her successor is appointed in like manner and qualified.”  [Emphasis added.]  

Current Apopka representatives on the LANGD Board are Former Commissioner Bill Arrowsmith, who 

was appointed to a two (2) year term on February 15, 2012, and reappointed on April 16, 2014 to fill the 

vacancy created with Mayor Land’s resignation, and Commissioner Billie Dean, who was appointed to a 

two (2) year term on April 16, 2014.  Both two (2) year terms have expired. Mayor Kilsheimer, in 

accordance with the applicable Florida Laws and Charter of the City of Apopka, requests a vote by council 

to confirm himself and Commissioner Diane Velazquez to the LANGD Board of Directors. 
  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A              
Page 226



 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 

Confirm appointment of Mayor Joe Kilsheimer and Commissioner Diane Velazquez to the Lake Apopka 

Natural Gas District Board of Directors for the two-year term ending May 17, 2018. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

Page 227



Page 228



Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



Page 232



Page 233



Page 234



Page 235



Page 236



Page 237



Page 238



Page 239



Page 240



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Thank you letter to the City of Apopka from the GFWC Apopka Woman's Club Inc.  
  

Page 241



Page 242



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Thank you letter to the Police Department from the Kids House Children's Advocacy Center.  
  

Page 243



Page 244



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. Thank you letter to the Community Development Department from Resident.  
  

Page 245



From:   [mailto:zhoupingz78@yahoo.com]  
Sent: Friday, May 06, 2016 2:05 PM 
To: Bonnie Smith 
Cc: Jay Davoll 
Subject: Re: 1691 Parkglen Circle 

 

Ms. Smith: 
 
I received the flood determination document(s). 
 
Thank you very much.  It is with great pleasure that I commend you and the Apopka 
City Government for your courtesy, friendliness and efficiency.  I am impressed by your 
turn around time. 
 
Thanks, 
 
Frank and Zhouping Zhang. 
 

 

Page 246



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. Thank you card to the City from the Family of the Late Reverend Albert E. Dean 
  

Page 247



Page 248


	Top
	1. 05-18-16 - CC - Presentations - Special Presentation to Christian Lamphere and Boy Scout Troop 211
	1. 05-18-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - Appointment of Jose Molina to Planning Commission
	Agenda - 2016-05-18 CC Confirm Appointment of Jose Molina to Planning Commission.pdf
	Agenda - 2016-05-18 CC Resignation Letter of Pamela Toler.pdf
	Agenda - 2016-05-18 CC Jose Molina cover letter and resume.pdf

	2. 05-18-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - Appointment of Commissioner Dean as alternate to MetroPlan Orlando Board of Directors
	Agenda - 2016-05-18 CC Confirm Appointment of Commissioner Dean as MPO Alternate.pdf
	metroplan-orlando-board-internal-operating-procedures-revised-7-11-2012-1.pdf

	3. 05-18-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - PS Concrete Mixer
	PS - Concrete Mixer.pdf

	4. 05-18-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - PS F-550
	PS F 550.pdf
	Pages from AJ Chevy - GMC Roll Over Price Protection request forms.pdf
	2017 f550.pdf
	NJPA-APOPKA, CITY OF-F5G_6923-2.pdf
	FSA-APOPKA, CITY OF-F5G_6313-1.pdf
	FSA-APOPKA, CITY OF-F5G_6313-2.pdf

	5. 05-18-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - PS Traffic Signal Lester/Yothers and Plymouth Sorrento
	PS - Traffic Signal Lester Yothers Plymouth Sorrento.pdf
	Plymouth Sorrento Rd Traffic Signal.pdf

	6. 05-18-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - Sensus&apos; Upgrade Agreement
	Sensus Agreement Staff Report.pdf
	Apopka SaaS Agreement-Sensus May2016.pdf

	7. 05-18-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - PS Geotech
	PS - Geotechnical  Environmental Engineering.pdf

	8. 05-18-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - PS Golden Gem
	PS - Golden Gem Perimeter Clearing Staff Report.pdf
	Golden Gem SJRWMD MOA.pdf
	Collage Perimeter Clearing Proposal.pdf

	9. 05-18-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - Dell Lease for Laptops
	IT - Dell_Lease.pdf
	Dell_MLA.pdf

	10. 05-18-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - PS CMRA Garney
	CMAR Preconstruction Services Approval Staff Report.pdf
	CMAR Agreement.pdf
	Garney City of Apopka WRF Expansion - Preconstruction Scope of Services.pdf

	11. 05-18-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - Banking Services
	Banking Services FCB Staff Report.pdf
	Ranking Sheets - Final.pdf

	1. 05-18-16 - CC - Ordinance - 1st Rd - Ord. #2498 - Change of Zoning - Quasi-Judicial
	1 JTD Land at Rogers Rd LLC - ZON - CC 05-18-16 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2498 - JTD Land at Rogers Rd LLC - ZON.pdf

	1. 05-18-16 - CC - Business - Preliminary Development Plan/Development Agreement - Copart, Inc.
	Copart Staff Report.pdf
	Developers Agreement  &amp; Exhibits.pdf
	1s Copart Site Plan.pdf
	2s Exh Copart C-1 Landscape Plan North.pdf
	3s Exh Copart Landscape Plan South.pdf
	4sCopart Building Elevations.pdf
	5s Entire Site Plan.pdf

	2. Council
	Vice Mayor Dean - LAGD Appointment Letter.pdf

	3. Public
	1. 05-18-16 - CC - Mayor&apos;s Report - Appointments to Lake Apopka Natural Gas District Board of Commissioners
	Agenda - 2016-05-18 CC Confirm Appointment of Mayor Kilsheimer and Diane Velazquez to LANGD.pdf
	House Bill No. 1423 Chapter 99-454.pdf

	1. 05-18-16 - CC - Not Requiring Action - Woman&apos;s Club Letter
	Apopka Woman&apos;s Club - Letter to Mayor.pdf

	2. 05-18-16 - CC - Not Requiring Action - Kids House Letter
	PD - Kids House childrens Advocacy Center Letter.pdf

	3. 05-18-16 - CC - Not Requiring Action - Frank &amp; Zhouping Zhang
	CD - Resdient Compliment Letter - Frank &amp; Zhouping Zhang.pdf

	4. 05-18-16 - CC - Not Requiring Action - Dean letter
	Dean Thank You letter.pdf

	Bottom

